
           

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday, August 11, 2020, 3:00 P.M.
Council Chamber – City Hall – 300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY AND IS COMPLIANT WITH THE

GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDERS ALLOWING FOR A DEVIATION OF
TELECONFERENCE RULES REQUIRED BY THE BROWN ACT.

JOIN THE ZOOM WEBINAR TO PARTICIPATE LIVE AT:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89703323122

To participate telephonically, call any number below:
669 900 9128 (US)

877 853 5247 (Toll Free)
888 788 0099 (Toll Free)

Webinar ID:  897 0332 3122
If prompted to enter a participant ID, press #.

When the host opens public comment for an agenda item and you wish to speak,
press *9.

Help Line 831-648-3128

AGENDA
           
CALL TO ORDER
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 

2. BOARD AND STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS (City-Related Items Only)   
 

3. COUNCIL LIAISON ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT   

Page 1 of 124



4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT
General Public Comment must deal with matters subject to the jurisdiction of the City and the Architectural Review Board that are

not on the Regular Agenda. This is the appropriate place to comment as to items on the Consent Agenda, only if you do not wish to

have the item pulled for individual consideration by the Architectural Review Board. Comments from the public will be limited to three

minutes and will not receive Architectural Review Board action. Comments regarding items on the Regular Agenda shall be heard

prior to Architectural Review Board's consideration of such items at the time such items are called. Whenever possible, written

correspondence should be submitted to the Architectural Review Board in advance of the meeting, to provide adequate time for its

consideration. 

  

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters, and may include action on resolutions, ordinances, or other

public hearings for which testimony is not anticipated. The vote on the Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been

removed. Any member of the Architectural Review Board, staff, or the public may remove an item from the Consent Agenda for

individual consideration. When items are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the end of their respective section

within the Regular Agenda. One motion shall be made to adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda. 

  

 
REGULAR AGENDA
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
For public hearings involving a quasi-judicial determination by the Architectural Review Board, the proponent of an item may be given

10 minutes to speak and others in support of the proponent’s position may be given three minutes each. A designated spokesperson for

opposition to the item may be given 10 minutes to speak and all others in opposition may be given three minutes each. Very brief

rebuttal and surrebuttal may be allowed in the sole discretion of the Architectural Review Board. In public hearings not involving a

quasi-judicial determination by the Architectural Review Board, all persons may be given three minutes to speak on the matter. Public

hearings on non-controversial matters or for which testimony is not anticipated may be placed on the Consent Agenda, but shall be

removed if any person requests a staff presentation or wishes to be heard on the matter.

  

 
A. Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-0302 for 528 Beaumont Avenue (APN 006-686-007)

Description: An Architectural Permit (AP 20-0302) for a 241 sq. ft. addition to the rear of the
existing residence and a small expansion to an existing second-story balcony located at 528
Beaumont Ave.
Zone District/General Plan Designation: R-1 / Medium Density Residential
Coastal Zone: No
Historic Resources Inventory: No
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines 15331, Historical Resources
Restoration/Rehabilitation
Recommended Action: Approve Architectural Permit 20-0302 subject to findings, conditions
of approval, and Class 1 and 31 CEQA exemptions.
Reference: Alyson Hunter, AICP, Senior Planner

 
B. Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-0236 for 1031 Shell Avenue (APN 006-026-016)

Description: The demolition of an existing 1,502 sq. ft. one-story, single family residence, and
the construction of a new 2,545 sq. ft. two-story, single-family residence with an attached 1000
sq. ft. basement ADU.
Zone District/General Plan Designation: R-1 / Medium Density Residential (up to 7.3 du/ac)
Coastal Zone: No
Historic Resources Inventory: No
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, Class 3, Construction or

Page 2 of 124



CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, Class 3, Construction or
Conversion of Small Structures
Recommended Action: Approve the project subject to the recommended findings, conditions
of approval and Class1 and 3 CEQA exemptions.
Reference: Alex Othon, Assistant Planner

 
C. Architectural Permit (AP) and Tree Permit with Development (TPD) No. 20-0169 for 415 11th

Street (APN 006-493-010)
Description: The proposed project includes the development of a new two-story 1,780 sq.ft.
single-family residence with a 441 sq. ft. accessory dwelling unit above a new 420 sq. ft.
detached garage and removal of three (3) oak trees and two (2) black acacia trees on a vacant
undeveloped lot.
Zone District/General Plan Designation: Residential District (R-1) / Medium Density
Residential (7.3 du/acre) 
Coastal Zone: No
Historic Resources Inventory: No
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, Class 3, Construction or
Conversion of Small Structures
Recommended Action: Approve the Architectural Permit and Tree Permit with Development
subject to the recommended findings, conditions of approval, Section 15303(a), Class 3, New
Residential Development. 
Reference: Laurel O'Halloran, Associate Planner

 
D. Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-02131256 for Surf Avenue (APN 006-011-007). 

Description: 
An Architectural Permit to allow the renovation and addition to an existing 2,741 sq. ft.
single-family two-story residence including a garage expansion for a total proposed floor area
of 3,334 sq. ft.  The proposed project consists of 180 sq. ft. addition on the main level, a 275
sq. ft. garage expansion and 138 sq. ft. addition to the upper level including a new 9'-0" x 20' -
0" deck.
Zone District/General Plan Designation: Residential District (R-1) / Medium Density
Residential (7.3 du/acre) 
Coastal Zone: No
Historic Resources Inventory: No
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Class I, Existing Facilities
Recommended Action: Approve the Architectural Permit subject to the recommended
findings, conditions of approval, Class 1, Section 15301(e), Existing Facilities CEQA
exemption.
Reference: Laurel O'Halloran, Associate Planner

 
E. Sign Permit (SP) No. 20-0040 for 1140 Forest Avenue (APN 007-641-008)

Description: Sign Permit (SP) Application #20-0040 to allow for the refacing of three (3)
existing signs and the installation of eight (8) new signs, to read “Valero” to be installed in
various locations around the property.
Zone District/General Plan Designation: C-FH / Commercial Forest Hill

Page 3 of 124



Coastal Zone: No
Historic Resources Inventory: No
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15311, Class 11, Accessory
Structures
Recommended Action: Staff recommends the Architectural Review Board approve Sign
Permit (SP) 20-0040 subject to findings, a Class 11 CEQA exemption, and conditions of
approval, with the additional condition: "Compliance with PGMC 20.04.050: Proposed sign
No. 1 shall be limited to a change of copy, with no digital display added. Proposed sign Nos. 3,
4, 5, 7, and the proposed pump signage shall be removed in order to comply with the size and
location standards set out in PGMC 20.04.050."
Reference: Alex Othon, Assistant Planner

 
7. UNFINISHED AND ONGOING BUSINESS   
 

8. DISCUSSION ITEM(S)   
 
Next Meeting – October 13, 2020
 
ADJOURNMENT
 

NOTICE OF ADA COMPLIANCE: Pursuant to Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Codified At 42 United States Code
Section 12101 and 28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 35), and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the City of Pacific Grove
does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, disability, age or sexual orientation in the provision
of any services, programs, or activities. The City of Pacific Grove does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. City Hall is an
accessible facility. A limited number of assisted listening devices will be available at this meeting. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting or provide the requested agenda
format.

Page 4 of 124



Agenda No. 6 A 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, California 93950

TO: Chair Boyle and Members of the Architectural Review Board
FROM: Alyson Hunter, AICP, Senior Planner
MEETING DATE: 08/11/2020
SUBJECT: Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-0302 for 528 Beaumont Avenue (APN

006-686-007)
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines 15331, Historical Resources

Restoration/Rehabilitation

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Architectural Permit 20-0302 subject to findings, conditions of approval, and Class 1 and 31
CEQA exemptions.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
An Architectural Permit (AP 20-0302) for a 241 sq. ft. addition to the rear of the existing residence and a
small expansion to an existing second-story balcony located at 528 Beaumont Ave.

BACKGROUND
An Architectural Permit (AP 20-0302) application was submitted for a 241 sf rear addition to the main
floor of an existing two-story residence. There is a small basement (144 sf) in the northwest corner of the
house with a 7' ceiling, but for the purposes of this discussion, the main and upper floors will be referred
to as the first and second stories as they are the only floors occupied by conditioned living area. The
project also includes the minor expansion of an existing second-story balcony. Both proposed
modifications are located on the rear of the building. Although the property is not on the Historic
Resources Inventory (HRI), the Spanish-style home built circa 1930, has been reviewed by a qualified
architectural historian and found to be a potential historic resource. A Phase II Historic Assessment
(Seavey, April 2020) was prepared and is included in this report. The Assessment analyzed the proposed
project and found that it complies with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and,
therefore, qualifies for a Class 31, Sec. 15331, CEQA exemption for Historical Resource
Restoration/Rehabilitation. The minor addition also qualifies for a Class 1, Sec. 15301, CEQA exemption
for Minor Modifications. 
 

DISCUSSION
The approximately 7,841 sq. ft. lot is currently developed with a 2,793 sq. ft. two-story residence, a

Page 5 of 124



The approximately 7,841 sq. ft. lot is currently developed with a 2,793 sq. ft. two-story residence, a
detached garage, and a shed. The garage is located at the rear of the property and is accessed by a
driveway off Beaumont Ave. The project proposes a 241 sq. ft. addition off the rear of the house at the
first floor which is elevated above ground level due to a mild slope and a 144 sq. ft. basement with crawl
space. The elevated patio will be approximately 7' above grade, roughly coterminous with the plate
between the small basement and the main floor. The patio will include new stairs down to the yard and
garage beyond. Also included in the project is a modest expansion to the existing second-story balcony
off the northwest corner of the house. The balcony will be expanded to the east or toward the center of
the home, away from the westerly property line. The top of the railing will be approximately 18' above
ground level. 

The project meets the development standards of the R-1 zoning district including, but not limited to,
Gross Floor Area and lot coverage. The proposed addition will result in a GFA of 2,793 sf (max. allowed
is 3,494 sf) and lot coverage of 3,265 sf (max. allowed is 3,875 sf). The GFA includes the small basement.

In designing the project, the applicant considered the following Architectural Review Guidelines:

No. 7 Second floor balconies and decks should be designed and located to minimize the loss of privacy for
neighboring properties.

As mentioned, the small expansion of the existing balcony will be to the east or away from the
neighboring property line and will continue to be obscured by the westerly neighbor's mature oak tree that
overhangs the applicant's property. The new outdoor patio off the proposed first-floor addition will be
approximately 144 sq. ft. in size and will be located in the center of the house, equally distance from
either side property line.

Nos. 10 - 12 Outdoor lighting shall be positioned so that no direct light extends offsite, exterior lighting
shall be unobtrusive, and fixtures should be compatible with project design.

No outdoor lighting is proposed as part of this permit, but these requirements have been included as a
standard condition of approval.

No. 28 An addition should complement and balance the overall form, mass, and composition of the
existing building.

The 7' 4" deep addition is complimentary to the form, mass, and composition of the existing building in
that it will be located off the rear of the building and located in the center of the existing rear massing.
The addition's clay barrel tile roof and roof pitch will match the existing roof style and materials and
openings will be off similar size to the doors and windows elsewhere on the existing home.

No. 38 Exterior materials should be compatible with those that predominate in the neighborhood.

The project proposes to use stucco, red clay tile roofing, wood sash windows and black wrought iron
railings which will not only match the existing materials on the home, but are materials commonly found
on the Spanish style homes throughout this neighborhood and Pacific Grove.

Appendix 1 - Historic resources. Additions to historic buildings should be designed to preserve, as much
as possible, the scale and overall character of the original structure.

Although the property is not on the HRI, it is potentially eligible for the Inventory. For this reason, the
ARB may consider design guidelines from Appendix 1. The addition, being located at the rear of the

Page 6 of 124



home and compatible in design and character to the existing home meets these guidelines. The facade and
other character defining features identified in the Historic Assessment (Seavey, April 2020) will be
substantially preserved.

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) - the project qualifies for two exemptions, Class 1, Sec.
15301(e), for minor modifications to existing single-family residences, and Class 31, Sec. 15331, for
rehabilitation projects effecting historic resources that meet the Secretary of the Interior's Standards. The
project does not fall under any exceptions to these exemptions as described in Sec. 15300.2 of the CEQA
guidelines, including (f) which excepts a project if it will have a substantial adverse effect on a historic
resource. As described, the project meets the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and,
therefore, is not excepted from the use of the Class 31 exemption.
 

Attachments
Application / Project Data Sheet 
Draft Permit 
Notice of Exemption 
Phase II Historic Assessment 
Plan Set 

Page 7 of 124



20-0302
6-30-20
$3,464.70

Page 8 of 124



AP 20-0302

Page 9 of 124



AP 20-0302

Page 10 of 124



Page 11 of 124



 
CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE 
Community Development Department – Planning Division 
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
T : 831.648.3183 • F : 831.648.3184 • www.cityofpacificgrove.org/cedd 

 
ARCHITECTURAL PERMIT (AP) NO. 20-0302 

FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 528 BEAUMONT AVE. TO ALLOW A 241 SF. 1st FLOOR 
ADDITION AND SMALL EXPANSION OF AN EXISTING 2nd STORY BALCONY AT THE REAR 

OF AN EXISTING TWO-STORY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE.  
 

FACTS 
1. The subject site is located at 528 Beaumont Ave., Pacific Grove, CA 93950 (APN 006-686-007) 
2. The subject site has a designation of Medium Density to 7.3 du/ac on the adopted City of Pacific Grove General Plan 

Land Use Map. 
3. The project site is located in the R-1 zoning district. 
4. The subject site is approximately 7,750 square feet (sf). 
5. The subject site is developed with a two-story, single-family residence of approximately 2,325 sf and a detached 

garage of approximately 324 sf. 
6. The subject site is located in the Area of Special Biological Significance (ASBS), but is not in the Coastal zone or 

within the Butterfly Habitat area. 
7. The single-family residence is not included on the Historic Resources Inventory (HRI), but is considered potentially 

eligible for the HRI per the Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by a qualified architectural historian (Seavey, April 
2020). It is the professional opinion of the historian that the proposed rear addition is in compliance with the Secretary 
of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and would not create a significant adverse effect on the environment. 

8. This project has been determined to be CEQA Exempt under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15301 and 15331 pertaining 
to Minor Additions and Historical Resources Restoration/Rehabilitation.  

FINDINGS – PGMC § 23.70.060(f)  
Findings Required for Approval. The Board shall determine from the materials submitted whether: 
1. The architecture and general appearance of the completed project are compatible with the neighborhood;  
2. The completed project will neither be detrimental to the orderly and harmonious development of the city nor impair 

the desirability of investment or occupation in the neighborhood; and 
3. The Board has been guided by and has made reference to applicable provisions of the architectural review guidelines 

in making its determinations on single-family residences. 
 
The proposed minor addition to the rear of the residence will be of complimentary design and materials to the existing 
home. The small expansion to the existing second floor balcony overlooking the rear yard, in concert with the first floor 
addition below, will be compatible with the eclectic architectural styles of the Hillcrest Neighborhood. The project will 
not be detrimental to the orderly and harmonious development of the city nor to the desirability of the neighborhood. The 
project particularly adheres to architectural guidelines #7, #10-12, #28, and #38, including Appendix I pertaining to 
historic buildings. 
PERMIT 
Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0302 
THE APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
1. Permit Expiration.  This permit shall expire and be null and void if a building permit has not been applied for within 

two (2) years from and after the date of approval.  Application for extension of this approval must be made prior to 
the expiration date.  

2. Construction Compliance.  All construction must occur in strict compliance with the proposal as set forth in the 
application, subject to any special conditions of approval herein. Any deviation from approvals must be reviewed and 
approved by staff, and may require Architectural Review Board approval. 

3. Terms and Conditions.  These terms and conditions shall run with the land, and it is the intention of the CDD 
Director and the Permittee to bind all future owners and possessors of the subject property to the terms and conditions, 
unless amended. Amendments to this permit may be achieved only if an application is made and approved, pursuant 
to the Zoning Code. 

Page 12 of 124



 

Page 2 of 2  Permit No. AP 20-0302 
 

4. Public Works, Fire and Building.  Review and approval by the Public Works, Fire and Building Departments are 
required prior to issuance of a building permit.  Work taking place in the public right-of-way shall require an 
encroachment permit prior to issuance of the building permit.   

5. Conformance to Plans.  Development of the site shall conform to approved plans for “Addition & Remodel for Kroll 
Residence” dated June 30, 2020 (as revised), on file with the Community Development Department and to the 
Building Code, with the exception of any subsequently approved changes. Any change to the approved plan(s) is 
subject to review by the CDD and may require an addendum to the Phase II Historic Assessment (Seavey, April 
2020). 

6. Building Plans. All conditions of approval for the Planning permit(s) shall be printed on a full size sheet and included 
with the construction plan set submitted to the Building Department. 

7. Tree Protection Standards During Construction.  Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapters 12.20 and 12.30, and the 
Urban Forestry Standards, all trees that are otherwise protected and will be impacted as a result of Development, both 
proposed for pruning or removal and where the development will impact the critical root zone of the tree are 
protected.  Prior to issuance of the building permit, the Project Arborist shall review grading, drainage, utility, 
building and landscape plans to determine impacts to individual Trees, to determine required minimum Tree 
protection standards during construction. 

8. Archeology.  If cultural resources or human remains are discovered during construction, work shall be halted within 
50 meters of the find until it can be evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist.  If the find is determined to be 
significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated, with the concurrence of the City of Pacific Grove 
staff, and implemented. 

 
9. Outdoor Lighting. Any new outdoor lighting shall adhere to Architectural Guidelines Nos. 10 – 12.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD OF THE CITY OF 
PACIFIC GROVE: 
 
1. The Board determines that each of the Findings set forth above is true and correct, and by this reference incorporates 

those Findings as an integral part of this Permit. 
 
2. The Board authorizes Approval of AP 20-0302 to allow the development of a 241 sf. rear, single-story addition and 

small expansion of the existing second-story balcony. 
 
3. This permit shall become effective upon the expiration of the 10-day appeal period. 
 
4. This permit shall not take effect until the owner acknowledges and agrees to all terms and conditions and agrees to 

conform to and comply with those terms and conditions. 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Architectural Review Board of the City of Pacific Grove on the 11th 
day of August, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:   

NOES:        APPROVED: 

ABSTENTIONS:        _______________________________ 
 
ABSENT:                                  Sarah Boyle, Chair 

          
The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to the approved terms and conditions, and agree to fully conform to, and 
comply with, said terms and conditions. 
 
 
Josh & Ann Kroll, Owner  Date 
 

Page 13 of 124



 
 

 

 
  
 

  

  
   

   

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
     

 
  

 
      
 

   

   
 

      
   

 
   

 

 

  

 

  

 

        Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  

          

   

_______________________________________________

Print Form 

Notice of Exemption Appendix E 

 From: (Public Agency):  ____________________________To: Office of Planning and Research 
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113

 _______________________________________________Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 County Clerk 
(Address) 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

County of:  __________________ 

Project Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Applicant:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Location - Specific: 

Project Location - City: ______________________ Project Location - County: 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

_____________________ 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  _____________________________________________________ 

Name of Person or Agency  Carrying Out Project: ________________________________________________ 

Exempt Status:  (check one): 
Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

Lead Agency 
Contact Person: ____________________________ Area Code/Telephone/Extension: _______________ 

If filed by applicant: 
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No 

Signature: ____________________________ Date: 

Signed by Lead Agency Signed by Applicant 

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:  
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

_______________ 

Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  ____________________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

______________ Title: _______________________ 

Revised 2011 
Page 14 of 124



Page 15 of 124



Page 16 of 124



Page 17 of 124



Page 18 of 124



Page 19 of 124



Page 20 of 124



Page 21 of 124



Page 22 of 124



Page 23 of 124



Page 24 of 124



Page 25 of 124



Page 26 of 124



Page 27 of 124



Page 28 of 124



Page 29 of 124



Page 30 of 124



Page 31 of 124



Page 32 of 124



Page 33 of 124



Page 34 of 124



Page 35 of 124



Page 36 of 124



Received 6-30-20

Page 37 of 124



Received 6-30-20

Page 38 of 124



Received 6-30-20

Page 39 of 124



Received 6-30-20

Page 40 of 124



Agenda No. 6 B 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, California 93950

TO: Chair Boyle and Members of the Architectural Review Board
FROM: Alex Othon, Assistant Planner
MEETING DATE: 08/11/2020
SUBJECT: Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-0236 for 1031 Shell Avenue (APN 006-026-016)
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, Class 3, Construction or

Conversion of Small Structures

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the project subject to the recommended findings, conditions of approval and Classes 1 and 3
CEQA exemptions.

BACKGROUND
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The demolition of an existing 1,502 sq. ft. one-story, single family residence, and the construction of a
new 2,545 sq. ft. two-story, single-family residence with an attached 1000 sq. ft. basement ADU.

Site Description
The subject property is approximately 5,229 sq. ft. and is in a neighborhood with similarly sized lots, on
the south side of Shell Avenue, between Esplanade Street and a Beach Street. The property is relatively
flat and developed with a 1,502 sq. ft. residence and attached garage.
 
Surrounding Land Uses
The parcel’s immediate vicinity is developed primarily with one- and two-story residences.

DISCUSSION
Applicable General Plan Policies 
The Pacific Grove General Plan provides a framework for future growth and development within the
City. The Land Use Element includes goals and polices that call for orderly, well-planned, and balanced
development, consistent with the historic nature of Pacific Grove, the capacity of the City’s infrastructure,
and the City’s ability to assimilate new growth. This residential project helps the City achieve several of
its housing goals as stated in the General Plan and is compatible with the Residential Medium Density
land use designation which allows residential development of up to 7.3 dwelling units per acre.
 
Applicable Zoning Code Regulations
The proposed project is in full compliance with the zoning regulations set forth in PGMC 23.16 (R-1).
This includes and is not limited to the height limit, allowable site and building coverage, and gross floor
area. The allowed Gross Floor Area for this lot is 2,545sq. ft., when complete the property will be at the
maximum allowed Gross Floor Area. The property will also be at the maximum allowed Building

Page 41 of 124

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/html/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2316.html#23.16


maximum allowed Gross Floor Area. The property will also be at the maximum allowed Building
Coverage at project completion.  
 
Architecture and Design Considerations
The project will result in a one-story, single-family residence of 2,545 sq. ft. Exterior finishes on the
proposed residence include standing seam metal roofing, vinyl clad windows, and a mix of wood and
stucco sidings.
The proposed architectural style, layout, and proposed materials assist the project in complying with a
variety of the recommendations in the Residential Design Guidelines, including the following:

Guidelines No. 5: Attempt to locate taller sections of buildings where they will not obstruct sunlight to
adjacent yards, patios, or rooms.
By pushing the proposed second story towards the front half of the structure and not utilizing a complete
second story there will be no obstruction of light to adjacent properties.
 
Guidelines No. 24: A new structure should appear similar in scale to those seen as traditional in the
neighborhood.
The proposed home will not feel out of place nor out of scale with the surrounding homes as the area has
a mix of architectural styles and many two-story homes.
 
Guideline No. 27: A building should be in scale with its site.
Although the project utilizes 100% of the allowed Gross Floor Area, it is in an area with other similarly
sized homes and will not feel out of scale when viewed in the context of the neighborhood.
 
Guideline No. 36: Design a façade to provide visual interest to the street.
By varying the exterior finishes and avoiding large, blank facades, the design softens elevations which
might otherwise appear bulky.
 
ARCHEOLOGIC RESOURCES
The subject property is located in the City’s Archaeological Zone. An Archaeological Resources Report
(Morley, July 2020) was prepared for this project. No evidence of cultural or archaeological resources
were identified on site, however as a precaution the report recommends that all work be halted if human
remains are found. As such, a Condition of Approval for inadvertent discovery has been added to this
project.
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
The proposed project qualifies for Classes 1 and 3 exemptions from CEQA requirements, pursuant to
Section 15301(l) and 15303(a) – Existing Facilities and New Construction, respectively. The proposed
new residence does not present any unusual circumstances that would result in a potentially significant
impact to the environment. The proposed alterations do not constitute a substantial adverse impact, thus
conforming to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
 
This Class of exemption is subject to exceptions listed under §15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. Staff
finds that none of these exceptions apply and that the proposed project qualifies for the Class 1 and 3
exemption.
 

Attachments
Application 

Page 42 of 124



Permit 
Notice of Exemption 
Plans 

Page 43 of 124



Page 44 of 124



Page 45 of 124



 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE 

Community Development Department – Planning Division 
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
T : 831.648.3183 • F : 831.648.3184 • www.ci.pg.ca.us/cdd 

 
ARCHITECTURAL PERMIT (AP) 20-0236 FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1031 SHELL TO ALLOW FOR 

THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING 1,502 SQ. FT. TWO-STORY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH 
AN ATTACHED GARAGE AND CONSTRUCT A NEW 2,545 SQ. FT. TWO-STORY SINGE-FAMILY 

RESIDENCE WITH AN ATTACHED GARAGE AND A 1000 SQ. FT. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT IN 
THE BASEMENT.  

FACTS 
1. The subject site is located at 1031 Shell Avenue, Pacific Grove CA, 93950 (APN 006-026-016) 
2. The subject site has a designation of Medium Density Residential (7.3 du/ac) on the adopted City of Pacific Grove 

General Plan Land Use Map. 
3. The project site is located in the R-1 zoning district. 
4. The subject site is 5,018 square feet. 
5. The subject site is located in the Area of Special Biological Significance and the Archeological Zone. 
6. The subject site is developed with a single family dwelling and attached garage, 
7. This project has been determined to be CEQA Exempt under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15301(l) & 15303 (a) – 

Existing Facilities & New Construction, respectively.  
AP FINDINGS 
1. The proposed development will meet the development regulations set forth in the R-1 zoning district including 

building coverage and height requirements; 
 

2. The architecture and general appearance of the completed project is compatible with the neighborhood because 
the proposed exterior will be compatible with the size, scale and proportions of the existing residence and other 
residences in the neighborhood, in that the proposal is consistent with Architectural Review Guidelines No.’s 5, 
24, 27, and 36; 

 
3. The completed project will neither be detrimental to the orderly and harmonious development of the city nor 

impair the desirability of investment or occupation in the neighborhood because the project will be improving the 
subject property, and; 

 
4. The Staff have been guided by and made reference to applicable provisions of the Architectural Review 

Guidelines in making its determinations on single-family residences. 
 

PERMIT 
Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0236 for a property at 1031 Shell Avenue to allow the demolition of an existing 1,502 sq. ft. 
one-story, single family residence, and the construction of a new 2,545 sq. ft. two-story, single-family residence with an 
attached 1000 sq. ft. basement ADU. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. Permit Expiration.  This permit shall expire and be null and void if a building permit has not been applied for 

within one (1) year from and after the date of approval.  Application for extension of this approval must be made 
prior to the expiration date.  

2. Construction Compliance.  All construction must occur in strict compliance with the proposal as set forth in the 
application, subject to any special conditions of approval herein. Any deviation from approvals must be reviewed 
and approved by staff, and may require Architectural Review Board approval. 

3. Terms and Conditions.  These terms and conditions shall run with the land, and it is the intention of the CDD 
Director and the Permittee to bind all future owners and possessors of the subject property to the terms and 

Page 46 of 124



 

Page 2 of 3 
 Permit No. AP 20-0236 

 

conditions, unless amended. Amendments to this permit may be achieved only if an application is made and 
approved, pursuant to the Zoning Code. 

4. Public Works, Fire and Building.  Review and approval by the Public Works, Fire and Building Departments 
are required prior to issuance of a building permit.  Work taking place in the public right-of-way shall require an 
encroachment permit prior to issuance of the building permit.   
 

5. Conformance to Plans.  Development of the site shall conform to approved plans for “Hadlock Residence” dated 
5/11/2020, on file with the Community Development Department and to the Building Code, with the exception of 
any subsequently approved changes. 
 

6. Tree Protection Standards During Construction.  Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapters 12.20 and 12.30, and 
the Urban Forestry Standards, all trees that are otherwise protected and will be impacted as a result of 
Development, both proposed for pruning or removal and where the development will impact the critical root zone 
of the tree are protected.  Prior to issuance of the building permit, the Project Arborist shall review grading, 
drainage, utility, building and landscape plans to determine impacts to individual Trees, to determine required 
minimum Tree protection standards during construction. 

 
7. Lighting. All exterior lighting must conform to Architectural Review Guidelines Nos. 10,11,12 

 
8. Story Poles and Netting. Following the 10 day appeal period all story poles and netting are required to be 

removed. 
 

9. Building Plans. All conditions of approval for the Planning permit(s) shall be printed on a full size sheet and 
included with the construction plan set submitted to the Building Department. 
 

10. Archeology.  If cultural resources or human remains are discovered during construction, work shall be halted 
within 50 meters of the find until it can be evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist.  If the find is 
determined to be significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated, with the concurrence of the 
City of Pacific Grove staff, and implemented. 
 

11.  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD OF THE CITY OF 
PACIFIC GROVE: 
 

1. The Board determines that each of the Findings set forth above is true and correct, and by this reference 
incorporates those Findings as an integral part of this Permit. 
 

2. The Board authorizes Approval of AP 20-0236 for a property at 1031 Shell Avenue to allow the demolition of 
an existing 1,502 sq. ft. one-story, single family residence, and the construction of a new 2,545 sq. ft. two-
story, single-family residence with an attached 1000 sq. ft. basement ADU. 

 
3. This permit shall become effective upon the expiration of the 10-day appeal period. 

 
4. This permit shall not take effect until the owner acknowledges and agrees to all terms and conditions and 

agrees to conform to and comply with those terms and conditions. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Architectural Review Board of the City of Pacific Grove on the 11tt 
day of August, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:   

Page 47 of 124



 

Page 3 of 3 
 Permit No. AP 20-0236 

 

NOES:    

ABSENT:    

                                                  
APPROVED: 

 
 
      _______________________________ 
                     Sarah Boyle, Chair 
 
The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to the approved terms and conditions, and agree to fully conform to, and 
comply with, said terms and conditions. 

 
 
 
Richard Hadlock, Owner  Date 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 124



Page 49 of 124



W 
I L

 L
 I 

A 
M
  
  
  
M
 E

 F
 F

 O
 R

 D
C

Page 50 of 124



W 
I L

 L
 I 

A 
M
  
  
  
M
 E

 F
 F

 O
 R

 D
C

Page 51 of 124



W 
I L

 L
 I 

A 
M
  
  
  
M
 E

 F
 F

 O
 R

 D
C

Page 52 of 124



W 
I L

 L
 I 

A 
M
  
  
  
M
 E

 F
 F

 O
 R

 D
C

Page 53 of 124



Page 54 of 124



Agenda No. 6 C 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, California 93950

TO: Chair Boyle and Members of the Architectural Review Board
FROM: Laurel O'Halloran, Associate Planner
MEETING DATE: 08/11/2020
SUBJECT: Architectural Permit (AP) and Tree Permit with Development (TPD) No. 20-0169

for 415 11th Street (APN 006-493-010)
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, Class 3, Construction or

Conversion of Small Structures

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Architectural Permit and Tree Permit with Development subject to the recommended
findings, conditions of approval, Section 15303(a), Class 3, New Residential Development. 
 

BACKGROUND
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The proposed project includes the development of a new two-story 1,780 sq. ft. single-family residence
with a 441 sq. ft. accessory dwelling unit above a new 420 sq. ft. detached garage and removal of three
(3) oak trees and two (2) black acacia trees on a vacant undeveloped lot.

Site Description
The approximately 4,000 sq. ft. parcel is currently an undeveloped lot without a water meter.
 
Surrounding Land Uses
The parcel is located in a residential neighborhood. The neighborhood consists of one and two-story
residences on relatively flat parcels. The subdivision map was recorded December 29, 2019 creating this
as a legal parcel with a new address and APN.

DISCUSSION

Applicable General Plan Policies 
The neighborhood is designated Medium Density Residential with an allowed density of up to 12.1
dwelling units per acre. The Pacific Grove General Plan provides a framework for future growth and
development within the City. The Land Use Element includes goals and policies that call for the orderly,
well-planned, and balanced development, consistent with the historic nature of Pacific Grove, the
capacity of the City’s infrastructure, and the ability to assimilate new growth. This residential project
helps the City achieve several of its housing goals as stated in the General Plan including the following:
 
Chapter 2, Land Use

Page 55 of 124



Policy 2:          Ensure that new development is compatible with adjacent existing development.
Policy 4:          Continue to preserve Pacific Grove’s character and regulate development.

Chapter 3, Housing
Policy 8:          Strive to provide the City’s share of the region’s housing needs.
The policies of the General Plan and Housing Element are implemented through the R-1 zoning district
which allows single-family development in areas with adequate public services.  Through the addition of
an ADU, the project does result in a minor increase in housing units, as supported in the Plan.

Applicable Zoning Code Regulations
Chapter 23.24 of the PGMC describes the permitted uses and development standards of the R-1 zoning
district; the intent of this chapter is to regulate uses within the multi-family zoning district. This district
allows single or two-family dwellings and multiple family dwelling uses. The applicant has provided a
Project Data Sheet (attached) indicating that the development standards of the zoning district, including
building coverage, site coverage, and gross floor area, have been met. No exceptions are requested.
 
The Architectural Permit (AP) is required per Section 23.70.060(c)(1) of the PGMC. The required
findings for the AP are located in the Permit (attached).
 
Architecture and Design Consideration
The proposed project will allow for a new two-story 1,780 sq. ft. single-family residence with a 441 sq. ft.
accessory dwelling unit above a new 420 sq.ft. detached garage with light gray horizontal exterior wood
siding, stone wainscoting, and aluminum dark bronze clad windows and doors. Other finishes include an
autumn blend asphalt shingle roof and a grape stake fence.
 
Architecture Review Guidelines:
The project proposal appears to adhere to the following Architectural Review Guidelines:
 
Guideline #1: The mass and height of a new building should blend well with neighboring structures and
not overwhelm them with disproportionate size or a design that is out of character.
The proposed new structure is designed to harmonize and complements the neighboring residences and
maintains the character of the neighborhood.
 
Guideline #24: A new structure should appear similar in scale to those seen as traditional in the
neighborhood.
The project proposal of a two-story house and ADU above the garage maintains a proportional
relationship to adjoining properties. Across the street from the parcel and next door are second story
residences.
 
Guideline #32: A building should have an overall proportional orientation that is similar to other
structure in the setting.
The project proposes remains consistent with the predominant orientation in the immediate area.
 
Guideline #35: Design a façade to appear similar in scale and character to those in its context.
The project proposes the establishment of newly planted trees and landscaping to enhance and soften the
second story residence and the ADU above the garage.
 
Lighting
Standard residential exterior lighting in compliance with Design Guidelines #10 – 12 is required as a
condition of approval.
 

Page 56 of 124

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/#!/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2370.html


 
Tree Removal
Tree removal and pruning activities are subject to the standards and requirements of Chapter 12 of the
PGMC. The project includes the removal of three (3) oak trees and two (2) black acacia trees ranging in
size from 12” – 24” diameter. A Tree Removal Assessment and Management Plan were prepared by
Frank Ono in March 2020, a qualified arborist, and reviewed by the City arborist. The recommendations
of these reports, as well as of the City arborist, have been included as conditions of approval (Draft
Permit, Attachment 2).
 
Although the trees proposed to be removed are relatively healthy, they are within the footprint of the
proposed residence.
 
The Tree Removal Permit shall have an expiration date of 24 months concurrent with the Architectural
Permit. As stated earlier no tree removal or trimming will be allowed until a building permit is issued.
Required tree replanting and landscaping will be implemented at this time.
 
Stormwater Treatment Measure
Less than 2,500 sq. ft. of impervious surface will be replaced therefore, the project does not trigger
stormwater requirements.

This project, if approved, will be added to the City’s Water Wait List because the parcel does not have a
water meter and is subject to the State Water Control Board’s Cease and Desist Order moratorium
regarding Water Meters.
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
In reviewing this action, the City has followed guidelines adopted by the State of California as published
in California Administrative Code, Title 14, §15000, et seq.  The proposed project is found to be exempt
under the CEQA Guidelines Categorical Exemptions, 15303(a), Class 3, New Construction.
 
The exceptions to exemptions in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines pertaining to location,
cumulative impacts, significant effects, scenic highways, hazardous waste sites, and historical resources.
 

Attachments
application 
data sheet 
AP draft 
CEQA 
Arborist Report 
Plans 
WWL 

Page 57 of 124

http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/art19.html


Page 58 of 124



Page 59 of 124



Page 60 of 124



 

[Rev. 01/14/14]   

 

PROJECT DATA SHEET 
 

Project Address: 
 Submittal Date:  

Applicant(s): 
 Permit Type(s) & No(s):  

  

 
REQUIRED/ 

Permitted 

Existing 

Condition 

Proposed 

Condition 
Notes 

Zone District     

Building Site Area     

Density (multi-family projects only)     

Building Coverage     

Site Coverage     

Gross Floor Area      

Square Footage not counted towards 

Gross Floor Area 
    

Impervious Surface Area Created 

and/or Replaced 
    

Exterior Lateral Wall Length to be 

demolished in feet & % of total* 
_______ _______ ___ft/___%  

Exterior Lateral Wall Length to be built _______ _______   

Building Height     

Number of stories     

Front Setback     

_______________Side Setback  
(specify side) 

    

_______________Side Setback  
(specify side) 

    

Rear Setback     

Garage Door Setback     

Covered Parking Spaces     

Uncovered Parking Spaces     

Parking Space Size 

(Interior measurement) 
9’ x 20’    

Number of Driveways 1    

Driveway Width(s)     

Back-up Distance     

Eave Projection (Into Setback) 3’ maximum    

Distances Between Eaves & Property 

Lines 
3’ minimum    

Open Porch/Deck  Projections     

Architectural Feature Projections     

Number & Category of Accessory 

Buildings 
    

Accessory Building Setbacks     

Distance between Buildings     

Accessory Building Heights     

Fence Heights     

*If project proposes demolition to an HRI structure, also indicate % of proposed demolition of the surface of all 

exterior walls facing a public street or streets, if applicable. 

Page 61 of 124



 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE 
Community Development Department – Planning Division 
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
T : 831.648.3183 • F : 831.648.3184 • www.cityofpacificgrove.org 

 

 

FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 415 11
th

 STREET TO ALLOW A NEW ARCHITECTURAL PERMIT 

(AP) AND TREE REMOVAL PERMIT (TPD) 20-0169 

FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW TWO-STORY 1,780 SQ. FT. SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE  

WITH A 441 SQ. FT. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT  

ABOVE A NEW 420 SQ.FT. DETACHED GARAGE.  

THE PROJECT PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF THREE (3) OAK TREES AND TWO (2) BLACK 

ACACIA TREES. 
THE PROJECT WOULD BE ADDED TO THE WATER WAITLIST. 

 

FACTS 

1. The subject site is located at 415 11th Street, Pacific Grove, 93950 (APN 006-493-010) 

2. The subject site has a designation of Medium Density Residential on the adopted City of Pacific Grove General Plan 
Land Use Map and is located in the Single Family Residential District (R-1) zoning district. 

3. The subject site is approximately 4,000 square feet in size.  

4. The subject site is currently not developed. 

5. A certified arborist prepared a Tree Resource Assessment and Management Plan (Ono, March 19, 2020) 

which was reviewed by the City’s arborist. The recommendations of the Management Plan have been 

incorporated herein as conditions of approval. 
6. The project would be added to the City’s water waitlist. 

7. The project site does not have a water meter and is subject to the State water Control Board Cease and Desist Order. 

8. This project has been determined to be CEQA Exempt under CEQA Guideline Section 15303, New 

Residential Development. 
 

FINDINGS  

For the Architectural Permit per PGMC Section 23.70.060(f): 

1. The architecture and general appearance of the completed project are compatible with the neighborhood; 

2. The proposed development will meet the development regulations set forth in the R-1-H zoning district including 

setbacks and height requirements; 
3. The completed project will neither be detrimental to the orderly and harmonious development of the City nor impair 

the desirability of investment or occupation in the neighborhood; 

4. The Board has been guided by and has made reference to applicable provisions of the Architectural Review 
Guidelines in making its determinations on the structure. 

 

The architectural style and materials, and site design are in substantial conformance to the City’s Residential 

Design Guidelines, specifically Nos. 1, 24, 32, and 35 relating to the site’s natural setting, high quality materials 

and finishes, and neighborhood compatibility, and Nos. 10-12 relating to exterior lighting. 

 

In order to issue a Tree Permit, the following findings of PGMC Section 12.20.040 must be made: 

1. The Tree is causing or is projected to cause significant damage to hardscape (house foundations, driveways, 

retaining walls, patios, etc.), utility service lines, or infrastructure (sidewalk, curb, storm drain, Street, etc.) 

and there are not more cost-effective remedial solutions. 

2. Such other conditions as agreed to by the city arborist and the property owner. 

The proposed tree removal and new construction are in compliance with the zoning code and General Plan. 

The tree removal is subject to the recommendations of the applicant’s licensed Arborist and Biologist and 

conditions imposed by the City’s arborist in compliance with PGMC Title 12.   
 

PERMIT 

Page 62 of 124

http://www.cityofpacificgrove.org/


                                                                                                                         

Page 2 of 3  Permit No. AP 20-0169 

 

Architectural Permit (AP) and Tree Permit with Development (TPD) 20-0169 to allow:  

the development of a new two-story 1,780 sq. ft. single-family residence with a 441 sq. ft. accessory dwelling 

unit above a new 420 sq.ft. detached garage.  

The project includes removal of three (3) oak trees and two (2) black acacia trees. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. Permit Expiration.  This permit shall expire and be null and void if a building permit has not been applied for within 
TWO (2) years from and after the date of approval.  Application for extension of this approval must be made prior to 

the expiration date.  

 

2. Construction Compliance.  All construction must occur in strict compliance with the proposal as set forth in the 
application, subject to any special conditions of approval herein. Any deviation from approvals must be reviewed and 

approved by staff, and may require Architectural Review Board approval. 

 

3. Terms and Conditions.  These terms and conditions shall run with the land, and it is the intention of the Community 

Development Director and the Permittee to bind all future owners and possessors of the subject property to the terms 

and conditions, unless amended. Amendments to this permit may be achieved only if an application is made and 

approved, pursuant to the Zoning Code. 
 

4. Public Works, Fire and Building.  Review and approval by the Public Works, Fire and Building Departments are 

required prior to issuance of a building permit.   
 

5. Tree Permit with Development. Tree removal and trimming cannot go into effect until a Building Permit is issued. 

 
6. Tree Replant. The City Arborist will determine the tree replant and landscaping requirements upon issuance of a 

Building Permit. 

 

7. Tree Protection Standards During Construction.  Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapters 12.20 and 12.30, and the 
Urban Forestry Standards, all trees that are otherwise protected and will be impacted as a result of Development, both 

proposed for pruning or removal and where the development will impact the critical root zone of the tree are 

protected.  Prior to issuance of the building permit, the Project Arborist shall review grading, drainage, utility, 
building and landscape plans to determine impacts to individual Trees, to determine required minimum Tree 

protection standards during construction. 

 

8. Stormwater Control Plan.  An erosion and sediment control plan shall be provided by the property owner 

to the City of Pacific Grove at the time of building permit submittal. 

 

9. Archeology.  If archaeological resources or human remains are discovered during construction, work shall 

be halted within 50 meters of the find until it can be evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist.  If 

the find is determined to be significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated, with the 

concurrence of the City of Pacific Grove staff, and implemented. 

 

10. Story Poles and Netting. Following the 10 day appeal period all story poles and netting are required to be removed. 
 

11. Conformance to Plans.  Development of the site shall conform to approved plans for “11th Street Residence ” 

dated3/16/2020, on file with the Community Development Department and to the Building Code, with the exception 
of any subsequently approved changes. 

 

12. Construction Hours.  All construction activities shall comply to PGMC Section 11.96.040.  

 

13. Water. An approval from the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District would be required prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

Page 63 of 124



                                                                                                                         

Page 3 of 3  Permit No. AP 20-0169 

 

 

14. Water Meter. A water meter is required before applying for a Building Permit. 

 

15. Building Plans. All conditions of approval for the Planning permit(s) shall be printed on a full size sheet and included 

with the construction plan set submitted to the Building Department. 

 

16. Exterior Lighting: All exterior lighting fixtures shall conform to Architectural Review Guidelines #10-12. 

 

17. Copper Gutters. All proposed copper gutters will be replaced with a copper alternative. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD OF THE CITY OF 

PACIFIC GROVE: 

 
1. The Architectural Review Board determines that each of the Findings set forth above is true and correct, and by this 

reference incorporates those Findings as an integral part of this Permit. 

 
2. The Board authorizes Approval of AP 20-0169 as conditioned and pursuant to Class 1 CEQA categorical exemptions 

for Minor Residential Additions.  

 

3. This permit shall become effective upon the expiration of the 10-day appeal period. 
 

4. This permit shall not take effect until the owner acknowledges and agrees to all terms and conditions and agrees to 

conform to and comply with those terms and conditions. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE ARCHITECTURL REVIEW BOARD OF THE 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE ON THE 11TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2020, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES:  

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

APPROVED: 

               _______________________________ 
    Sarah Boyle, Chair 

                                                                                                                                                         

The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to the approved terms and conditions, and agree to fully conform to, and 
comply with, said terms and conditions. 

 

 

William Bluhm, owner 
 

 

 Date 

Helen Bluhm, owner  Date 

 

Page 64 of 124



Page 65 of 124



 
 

Tree Survey Report 
415 11th Street 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

Mr. and Mrs. Bill and Helen Bluhm 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Frank Ono 
Urban Forester 

Member Society of American Foresters #48004 
ISA Certified Arborist #536 

1213 Miles Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

March 19, 2020 
  

Page 66 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

2 

 
Owner: 
 

William & Helen Bluhm  
792 Lighthouse Avenue  
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

 
Architect: 
 
 Samuel Pitnick Architects 

P.O. Box 22412  
Carmel, CA 93922 

 
Forester and Arborist 
 
 Frank Ono, Member SAF #48004, ISA Certified Arborist #536 
 F.O. Consulting 

1213 Miles Ave 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Development is proposed for this site requiring excavation near existing protected trees. The 
project proposes to build a new, approximately 1000 square foot single-family dwelling and 
415 square foot detached garage and ADU on a subdivided lot. There are several exotic trees 
on the property as well as existing native trees; the trees are considered to be in fair to poor 
condition both structurally and in health. Excavation will be performed near trees, in 
particular several Coast live oak trees. At this time, it appears the project requires the removal 
of five (5) trees with the current design. A tree survey/arborist report has been prepared that 
identifies and addresses the effects that the project will have on the existing tree resources on-
site as well as a list of recommendations regarding trees on the project. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This tree assessment/arborist report is prepared for Mr. and Mrs. Bill and Helen Bluhm, the 
owners of the property located at 415 11th Street by Frank Ono, Urban Forester and Certified 
Arborist (member Society of American Foresters #48004 and International Society of 
Arboriculture Certified Arborist #536) due to the proposed construction. The City of Pacific 
Grove Land Use Plan and City Zoning Ordinances identify “all native trees on the private 
property six inches or greater in trunk diameter and all non-native trees twelve inches or 
greater (on private property), measured at 54 inches above native grade, and all public trees, 
regardless of size” as requiring protection and special consideration for management. 
 
  

Page 67 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

3 

ASSIGNMENT/SCOPE OF PROJECT 
 
To ensure the protection of the tree resources on-site, the property owner, Mr. and Mrs. Bill 
and Helen Bluhm, have requested an assessment of the trees in proximity to proposed 
development areas. The findings of the report are to be documented in an arborist report to 
work in conjunction with other conditions for approval of the building permit application.  To 
accomplish this assignment, the following tasks have been completed; 

 
• Evaluate health, structure, and preservation suitability for each tree within or adjacent 

(15 feet or less) to the proposed development of trees greater than or equal to six 
diameter inches at 24 inches above grade. 

• Review proposed building site plans as provided by Mr. Bill Bluhm.  
• Make recommendations for alternative methods and preconstruction treatments to 

facilitate tree retention.  
• Create preservation specifications, as it relates to a Tree Location/Preservation Map.  
• Determine the number of trees affected by construction as defined by the City of 

Pacific Grove Zoning Ordinance; as well as mitigation requirements for those to be 
affected.  

• Document findings in the form of a report as required by the City of Pacific Grove 
Planning Department. 

 
LIMITATIONS 
 
This assignment is limited to the review of plans submitted to me dated February 13, 2020, by 
Mr. Bill Bluhm to assess effects from potential construction to trees within or adjacent to 
construction activities. The assessment has been made of these plans specifically and no other 
plans were reviewed. Only minor grading and erosion details are discussed in this report as it 
relates to tree health. It is not the intent of this report to provide a risk assessment for any tree 
on this parcel, as any tree can fail at any time. No clinical diagnosis was performed on any 
pest or pathogen that may or may not be present. In addition to an inspection of the property, 
F.O. Consulting relied on information provided in the preparation of this report (such as 
surveys, property boundaries, and property ownership) and must reasonably rely on the 
accuracy of the information provided. F.O. Consulting shall not be responsible for another's 
means, methods, techniques, schedules, sequence or' procedures, or for contractor safety or 
any other related programs; or another's failure to complete the work following the plans and 
specifications. 
 
  

Page 68 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

4 

PURPOSE AND GOAL 
 
This Tree Assessment/Arborist report is prepared for this parcel due to proposed construction 
activities located at 415 11th Street, Pacific Grove, CA 93950. The purpose of the assessment 
is to determine what, if any, of the trees will be affected by the proposed project. Native trees 
6-inches or greater, and non-native trees 12 inches or greater are considered protected trees as 
defined by the City of Pacific Grove Zoning Ordinance (12.20.020). 
 
The goal of this report is to protect and maintain the Pacific Grove Urban forested resources 
through the adherence of development standards, which allow the protection, and maintenance 
of its forest resources. Furthermore, it is the intended goal of this report to aid in planning to 
offset any potential effects of a proposed development on the property while encouraging 
urban forest stability and sustainability, perpetuating the urban forested character of the 
property and the immediate vicinity. 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
  

1) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 006-493-010-000 

2) Location: 415 11th Street, Pacific Grove, CA 93950. 

3) Parcel size: 0.092 Acres. 

4) Existing Land Use: The parcel is vacant and zoned for residential use (R-1). 

5) Slope: The site is mildly sloped. Slopes range from 2% to 5%.  
 
6) Soils: The parcel is located on soils classified by the Monterey County Soils report as 

“Narlon loamy fine sand” soils about 55 inches deep. This is a moderately poorly 
drained soil located on marine terraces. Runoff is very high, and the erosion hazard is 
moderate. Roots can penetrate to a depth of 53 inches. The available water capacity is 
low (about 1.3 inches).   

 
7) Vegetation: The vegetation on site is composed primarily of a few native Coast live 

oaks and Black acacias. Understory plants are comprised of native and nonnative 
grasses. The site is developed and has ornamental planting. 

 
8) Forest Condition and Health: The stand of trees and health are evaluated with the use of 

the residual trees combined with surrounding adjacent trees as a complete stand. The 
surrounding forest canopy is a fragmented transitional Monterey pine and Coast live oak 
forest in a highly developed area. The site is comprised entirely of semi-mature to 
mature Coast live oaks and Black acacias that range from poor to good health. Before 
subdivision, this site experienced heavy tree removal in the form of 5 Black acacias and 
one hazardous Monterey pine. The remainder of the property that was not subdivided 
has several Coast live oak and Black acacia trees ranging in condition from fair to poor.  

Page 69 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

5 

BACKGROUND 
 

The assessment focuses on the incorporation of the preliminary location of site improvements 
coupled with consideration for the general goals of the site improvement desired of the 
landowner. Proposed improvements assessed included preserving trees to the greatest extent 
feasible, maintaining the viewshed, and general aesthetic quality of the area while complying 
with the City of Pacific Grove Municipal Codes. The study of individual trees determined 
treatments necessary to complete the project and meet the goals of the landowner. Trees within 
and immediately adjacent proposed development areas were located, measured, inspected, 
flagged, and recorded. The assessment of each tree concluded with an opinion of whether the 
tree should be removed, or preserved, based on the extent and effect of construction activity 
on the short and long-term health of the tree. All meetings and field reviews were focused on 
the area immediately surrounding the proposed development.  
 
TREE CHART 
 

ID Diameter  Species  Structure Health Remove Comments  
856 11 Coast live oak Fair Fair x  In garage footprint 
857 20 Coast live oak Fair Fair x  In garage footprint 
858 9,9 Black Acacia Fair Fair  x  Affected by grading  
859 12,12 Black Acacia Poor Poor x Thinning, codominant  trunks 
860 18 Coast live oak Good Good     
861 7 Coast live oak Fair Fair x  In house footprint  
862 5 Black Acacia Fair Fair     
863 12 Black Acacia Fair Poor   Thinning 

OBSERVATIONS/DISCUSSION 
The following list includes observations made while on-site and summarizes details 
discussed during this stage of the planning process. 

• The site is a subdivision of a developed property with an existing historical structure 
on the remaining parcel.  

• Five (5) trees on the property are proposed to be removed with the current design:  
• #856 is an 11-inch diameter semi-mature Coast live oak located in the 

proposed garage footprint in fair condition. 
• #857 is a 20-inch diameter Coast live oak located in the garage footprint in 

fair condition. 
• #858 is a double stemmed 9 + 9-inch diameter Black acacia in fair condition. 

The tree is not within the footprint of proposed development but the 
excavation for the ADU foundation will impact the tree necessitating its 
removal. 

• #859 is a multi-stemmed 12 and 12-inch diameter Black acacia located in the 
proposed home footprint. This tree is in poor condition with codominant 
trunks and a thinning crown. 

• #861 is a 7-inch diameter Coast live oak located in the proposed home 
footprint in fair condition.     

• #860 is an 18-inch diameter Coast live oak in good condition located near the 
proposed home construction. The tree is approximately four to five feet away from the 
proposed structure and care will need to be taken while excavating for foundations.  

 

Page 70 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

6 

 
CONCLUSION/PROJECT ASSESSMENT 
 
No alternate building sites were considered for this assessment as the site is constrained for 
reasonable development by lack of available space. The tree removal proposed is the minimum 
amount with the current design due to setbacks. Native tree removal is minimal with remaining 
trees expected to survive when properly protected and monitored. The remainder of the 
property contains tree cover, which will remain undisturbed.  
 
Short Term Effects 
 
Site disturbance will occur during building construction. Short term effects are confined to the 
construction envelope and immediate surroundings some trees may be trimmed and root 
systems reduced. The pruning of tree crowns above 30% and reduction of root area may have 
short term effects on those trees treated, including a reduction of growth and potential limb 
dieback.  
 
Long Term Effects 
 
No significant long-term effects on the urban forest ecosystem are anticipated as this is already 
a developed residential site. The project as proposed is not likely to significantly reduce the 
availability of wildlife habitat over the long term. Whenever construction activities take place 
near trees, there is the potential for those trees to experience a decline in the long term as well. 
The greatest attempt has been made to identify for removal those trees likely to experience 
decline. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Tree Pruning 
 
It is to be understood that the pruning of retained trees may be expected for this site, 
especially near building construction areas. Pruning will include trees with deadwood, minor 
structural defects or disease that must be compensated, and possibly vehicle or pedestrian 
clearance. Trees should be monitored on occasion for health and vigor after pruning. Should 
the health and vigor of any tree decline it will be treated as appropriately recommended by a 
certified arborist or qualified forester. Remedial pruning should occur before construction. 
Following construction, any above-ground tree pruning/trimming should be delayed until one 
year after completion of construction. Following construction, a qualified arborist should 
monitor trees adjacent to the area of the improvement and if any decline in health that is 
attributable to the construction is noted, additional trees should be planted on the site. 
 
  

Page 71 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

7 

Tree Protection 
 
Before the commencement of construction activities: 
 

• Trees located adjacent to construction areas shall be protected from damage by 
construction equipment by the use of temporary fencing and through wrapping of 
trunks with protective materials.  

• Fencing shall consist of chain link, supported snowdrift or plastic mesh, hay bales, or 
field fence. Fencing shall have cross bracing (typically 2x4 material) on both the top 
and lower edges of the fencing material to prevent sagging and provide lateral 
support.   

• Fencing shall stand a minimum height of four feet above grade and be placed to the 
farthest extent possible from the base of the tree protecting the trees drip line area 
(typically 10-12 feet away from the base of a tree).   

• In cases where access or space is limited for tree protection, it is permissible to protect 
the tree within the 10-12-foot distance after determination and approval by a qualified 
forester or arborist.  

• Soil compaction, parking of vehicles or heavy equipment, stockpiling of construction 
materials, and/or dumping of materials should not be allowed adjacent to trees on the 
property especially within fenced areas.  

• Fenced areas and the trunk protection materials must remain in place during the entire 
construction period.  

 
During grading and excavation activities:  
 

• All trenching, grading or any other digging or soil removal that is expected to 
encounter tree roots will be monitored by a qualified arborist or forester to ensure 
against drilling or cutting into or through major roots.  

• The project arborist should be on-site during excavation activities to direct any minor 
field adjustments that may be needed.  

• Trenching located adjacent to any tree should be done by hand where practical and any 
roots greater than 3-inches diameter should be bridged or pruned appropriately.  

• Any roots that must be cut shall be cut by manually digging a trench and cutting 
exposed roots with a saw, vibrating knife, rock saw narrow trencher with sharp blades, 
or other approved root pruning equipment.  

• Any roots damaged during grading or excavation should be exposed to sound tissue 
and cut cleanly with a saw. 

 
If at any time potentially significant roots are discovered: 

 
• The arborist/forester will be authorized to halt excavation until appropriate mitigation 

measures are formulated and implemented.  

• If significant roots are identified that must be removed that will destabilize or 
negatively affects the target trees, the property owner will be notified immediately and 
a determination for removal will be assessed and made as required by law for 
treatment of the area that will not risk death decline or instability of the tree consistent 
with the implementation of appropriate construction design approaches to minimize 
effects, such as hand digging, bridging or tunneling under roots, etc.. 

 

Page 72 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

8 

Best Management Practices to Observe (BMP) 
 
The following best management practices must be adhered to: 
 

A) Tree service contractors will verify animal or bird nesting prior to tree work. If the 
nesting activity of migratory birds is found, work must stop, and a wildlife biologist 
consulted before commencing work (the typical bird nesting season ranges from 
February 22 to August 1). 

B) Do not deposit any fill around trees, which may compact soils and alter water and air 
relationships. Avoid depositing fill, parking equipment, or staging construction 
materials near existing trees. Covering and compacting soil around trees can alter water 
and air relationships with the roots. Fill placed within the drip line may encourage the 
development of oak root fungus (Armillaria mellea). As necessary, trees may be 
protected by boards, fencing or other materials to delineate protection zones. 

C) Pruning shall be conducted so as not to unnecessarily injure the tree. General- 
Principals of pruning include placing cuts immediately beyond the branch collar, 
making clean cuts by scoring the underside of the branch first, and for live oak, 
avoiding the period from February through May.  

D) Native live trees are not adapted to summer watering and may develop crown or root 
rot as a result. Do not regularly irrigate within the drip line of oaks. Native, locally 
adapted, drought-resistant species are the most compatible with this goal. 

E) Root cutting should occur outside of the springtime. Late June and July would likely 
be the best. Pruning of the live crown should not occur February through May. 

F) Tree material greater than 3 inches in diameter remaining on-site more than one month 
that is not cut and split into firewood must be covered with thick clear plastic that is 
dug in securely around the pile to discourage infestation and dispersion of bark beetles. 

G) A mulch layer up to approximately 4 inches deep should be applied to the ground under 
selected trees following construction. Only 1 to 2 inches of mulch should be applied 
within 1 to 2 feet of the trunk, and under no circumstances should any soil or mulch be 
placed against the root crown (base) of trees. The best source of mulch would be from 
chipped material generated on-site. 

H) If trees along near the development are visibly declining in vigor, a Professional 
Forester or Certified Arborist should be contacted to inspect the site to recommend a 
course of action. 

 
Report Prepared By: 
 
_________________________________     March 19, 2020 
Frank Ono, SAF Forester #48004 and ISA Certified Arborist #536  Date 
  

Page 73 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

9 

PHOTOGRAPHS 

 
Trees #856, #857, #859 and #858 

Page 74 of 124



415 11th Street – Tree Survey Report 
March 19, 2020 This is Not an Official City Document 

10 

 
Trees #859, #860, #861, #862, and #863. Note #860 is to be retained 

Page 75 of 124



15'-0"

FRONT SETBACK 15'-0"

REAR SETBACK

3
'-2

3 8"
S

ID
E

4
'-0

"

S
ID

E

15'-0"

FRONT SETBACK 15'-0"

REAR SETBACK

3
'-2

3 8"
S

ID
E

4
'-0

"

S
ID

E

20'-11
2"

1
8'

-0
"

11TH STREET
PACIFIC GROVE, CA

93950

P
.O

. 
B

O
X

 2
2

41
2,

 C
A

R
M

E
L

, C
A

 9
3

92
2

P
H

O
N

E
: (

8
3

1
) 

2
41

-1
89

5
E

M
A

IL
: 

S
A

M
U

E
LP

IT
N

IC
K

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

REVISIONS DATE

U
se

 o
f t

h
es

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d

 to
 th

e 
o

rig
in

a
l s

ite
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
w

er
e

 p
re

pa
re

d
 a

n
d 

p
ub

lic
a

tio
n

 th
er

eo
f i

s 
e

xp
re

ss
ly

 li
m

ite
d

 to
 s

uc
h

 u
se

.  
R

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

or
 p

u
b

lic
at

io
n 

b
y 

an
y 

m
e

th
o

d,
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t, 
is

 p
ro

hi
b

ite
d.

  T
itl

e
 to

 th
e

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 r
em

ai
n

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
 w

ith
ou

t p
re

ju
di

ce
. 

 V
is

ua
l c

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

p
la

ns
 a

n
d

 s
pe

ci
fic

a
tio

n
s 

sh
a

ll 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

pr
im

a 
fa

ci
e 

e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 t
h

e 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
se

 r
e

st
ri

ct
io

ns
.

11TH
STREET

RESIDENCE

Job: -

ARCHITECTURAL

Drawn By: SBP

Scale: SEE DWG.

02/13/2020

L
I C

E
N S E D A R C H I T E

C
T

SAMUEL B. PITNICK
C - 34362

REN. 05/31/21

I

O
L

R

AS
T

A

FC

N

IA

T
E

OF

EXISTING &
PROPOSED
SITE PLANS

A1.0

SCALE:
1

EXISTING SITE PLAN
1/8"=1'-0"

0' 4' 8' 16'

SCALE:
2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
1/8"=1'-0"

0' 4' 8' 16'

Page 76 of 124



11TH STREET

PACIFIC GROVE, CA

93950

P
.
O

.
 
B

O
X

 
2
2
4
1
2
,
 
C

A
R

M
E

L
,
 
C

A
 
9
3
9
2
2

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
8
3
1
)
 
2
4
1
-
1
8
9
5

E
M

A
I
L
:
 
S

A
M

U
E

L
P

I
T

N
I
C

K
@

G
M

A
I
L
.
C

O
M

REVISIONS DATE

U
s
e

 
o

f
 
t
h

e
s
e

 
p

l
a

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
s
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
b

e
 
r
e

s
t
r
i
c
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
o

r
i
g

i
n

a
l
 
s
i
t
e

 
f
o

r
 
w

h
i
c
h

 
t
h

e
y
 
w

e
r
e

 
p

r
e

p
a

r
e

d
 
a

n
d

 
p

u
b

l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
t
h

e
r
e

o
f
 
i
s
 
e

x
p

r
e

s
s
l
y
 
l
i
m

i
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
s
u

c
h

 
u

s
e

.
 
 
R

e
p

r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
p

u
b

l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
b

y
 
a

n
y
 
m

e
t
h

o
d

,
 
i
n

 
w

h
o

l
e

 
o

r
 
i
n

 
p

a
r
t
,
 
i
s
 
p

r
o

h
i
b

i
t
e

d
.
 
 
T

i
t
l
e

 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
p

l
a

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
s
 
r
e

m
a

i
n

s
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
a

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
p

r
e

j
u

d
i
c
e

.
 
 
V

i
s
u

a
l
 
c
o

n
t
a

c
t
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
s
e

 
p

l
a

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
s
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
c
o

n
s
t
i
t
u

t
e

 
p

r
i
m

a
 
f
a

c
i
e

 
e

v
i
d

e
n

c
e

 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
a

c
c
e

p
t
a

n
c
e

 
o

f
 
t
h

e
s
e

 
r
e

s
t
r
i
c
t
i
o

n
s
.

11TH

STREET

RESIDENCE

Job:

-

ARCHITECTURAL

Drawn By: SBP

Scale: SEE DWG.

02/21/2020

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

SAMUEL B. PITNICK

C - 34362

REN. 05/31/21

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

PROJECT

INFORMATION

G1.0

PROJECT TEAM

OWNER

ARCHITECT

SURVEYOR

ARBORIST

WILLIAM & HELEN BLUHM

PACIFIC GROVE, CA 93950

SAMUEL PITNICK ARCHITECTS, INC.

LICENSE # C-34362

PO BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

MONTEREY BAY ENGINEERS, INC.

607 CHARLES AVE B, SEASIDE, CA 93955

PHONE: (831) 899-7899

FRANK ONO

1213 MILES AVENUE

PACIFIC GROVE, CA 93950

PHONE: (831) 373-7086

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROPERTY ADDRESS

APN

ZONING

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION

OCCUPANCY GROUP

11TH STREET

PACIFIC GROVE, CA 93950

(ADDRESS NOT YET ASSIGNED)

T.B.D.

R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

TYPE V-B

R-3 / SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

U / GARAGE

SCOPE OF WORK

CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW TWO STORY 1,780 SF SINGLE FAMILY

HOME AND DETACHED 420 SF TWO CAR GARAGE WITH 441 SF

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT(A.D.U.) ABOVE.

SCOPE ALSO INCLUDES THE CONSTRUCTION OF NEW WOOD

FENCES AND GATES AROUND PROPERTY, LANDSCAPING,

FLAGSTONE WALKWAYS & PATIOS, AND A SAND-SET PAVER

DRIVEWAY.

BUILDING CODE INFO

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

2019 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

2019 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE

PROJECT

SITE

SHEET INDEX

PARCEL MAP

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT

SITE

BUILDING INFORMATION & LOT COVERAGE

LOT SIZE

ALLOWABLE BUILDING COVERAGE

(P) BUILDING COVERAGE

ALLOWABLE SITE COVERAGE

(P) SITE COVERAGE:

(P) STRUCTURES

(P) FLAGSTONE PATIOS/WALKWAYS

(P) CONC. PAD FOR TRASH

(P) TOTAL

ALLOWABLE FLOOR AREA

(P) FLOOR AREA:

(P) FIRST FLOOR

(P) SECOND FLOOR

(P) GARAGE

TOTAL

(P) ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT

ALLOWABLE HEIGHT LIMIT

(P) HEIGHT OF HOUSE

(P) HEIGHT OF GARAGE & A.D.U.

4,000 SF

45% OR 1,800 SF

34.6% OR 1,385 SF

60% OR 2,400 SF

1,385 SF

877 SF

24 SF

2,286 SF

2,200 SF

956 SF

824 SF

420 SF

2,200 SF

441 SF

25'-0"

24'-7 3/4"

21'-10 1/4"

MISCELLANEOUS

WATER SOURCE

WASTE DISPOSAL SYSTEM

TREES TO BE REMOVED

GRADING ESTIMATES

(P) PARKING

(P) BUILDING SPRINKLERED

CAL AM

SEWER

(1) 5" TREE

(1) 6"+8" PRONG TREE

(1) 7" TREE

(1) 9"+9" PRONG TREE

(1) 11" TREE

*SEE ARBORIST REPORT FOR MORE INFO

NONE

2 SPACES (COVERED)

YES

PROPOSED MATERIALS

PROJECT INFORMATION

SURVEY

EXISTING & PROPOSED SITE PLANS

PROPOSED FIRST & SECOND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

G1.0

G1.1

A1.0

A2.0

A2.1

A3.0

A3.1

GENERAL NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY SURVEY AND EXISTING

CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL NOTIFY THE

ARCHITECT IN WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT EXISTING TREES AND ROOT

SYSTEM. ALL EXCAVATION AROUND EXISTING TREES SHALL BE

MADE BY HAND.

3. CULTURAL, ARCHAEOLOGICAL, HISTORICAL, OR

PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES NOTIFICATION: "STOP WORK

WITHIN 50 METERS (165 FEET) OF UNCOVERED RESOURCE AND

CONTACT THE CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE AND A QUALIFIED

ARCHAEOLOGIST IMMEDIATELY IF CULTURAL, ARCHAEOLOGICAL,

HISTORICAL, OR PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES ARE

UNCOVERED".

4. SMOKE DETECTORS IN THE MAIN DWELLING SHALL BE INSTALLED

AND FIELD VERIFIED IN EACH BEDROOM, IN THE HALLWAY

LEADING TO THE BEDROOMS AND ON EACH FLOOR PER CRC

R314.2. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHLL BE INSTALLED AND

FIELD VERIFIED ON EACH FLOOR PER CRC R315.2.

5. THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT SHALL NOT PREVENT THE BUILDING

OFFICIAL FROM REQUIRING THE CORRECTION OF ERRORS ON

THESE PLANS OR FROM PREVENTING ANY VIOLATION OF THE

CODES ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY, RELEVANT LAWS,

ORDINANCES, RULES AND/OR REGULATIONS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN AN 8-1-1/DIG ALERT TICKET PRIOR TO

PERMIT ISSUANCE AND TO MAINTAIN THE TICKET IN ACTIVE

STATUS AND ON SITE FOR INSPECTION THROUGHOUT THE

PROJECT.

7. SHEAR WALLS WITH NAILING REQUIREMENTS TIGHTER THAN 4"

O.C. REQUIRE A THIRD PARTY INSPECTION AND APPROVAL.

8. A SEWER BACK WATER VALVE AND SEWER RELIEF VENT SHALL BE

INSTALLED.

DEFERRED SUBMITTALS

FIRE SPRINKLERS

(1) 12" TREE

(1) 12"+12" PRONG TREE

(1) 7" COAST LIVE OAK

(1) 11" COAST LIVE OAK

(1) 20" COAST LIVE OAK

NEW ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF -

'AUTUMN BLEND' BY CERTAINTEED

LIGHT GRAY HORIZ. WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOTING

FRONT DOOR & TRIM COLOR,

COPPER GUTTERS

WHITE WOOD & GLASS GARAGE DOOR

ALUM. CLAD WINDOWS & DOORS -

DARK BRONZE COLOR

GRAPE STAKE FENCE FLAGSTONE PATIOS & WALKWAY

Page 77 of 124



Page 78 of 124



1
5

'
-
0

"

F
R

O
N

T
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

1
5

'
-
0

"

R
E

A
R

 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

3'-2

3

8

"

SIDE

4'-0"

SIDE

1
5

'
-
0

"

F
R

O
N

T
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

2
0

'
-
0

"

R
E

A
R

 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

3'-2

3

8

"

SIDE

4'-0"

SIDE

1
5

'
-
1

1 2

"

18'-0"

4'-0"

6'-0"

4'-3"

3'-5

1

2

"

1
1
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
G

R
O

V
E

,
 
C

A

9
3
9
5
0

P.O. BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

EMAIL: SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

Use of these plans and specifications shall be restricted to the original site for which they were prepared and publication thereof is expressly limited to such use.  Reproduction or publication by any method, in whole or in part, is prohibited.  Title to the plans and specifications remains with the architect without prejudice.  Visual contact with these plans and specifications shall constitute prima facie evidence of the acceptance of these restrictions.

1
1
T

H

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

C
E

J
o
b
:

-

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L

D
r
a

w
n

 
B

y
:
 
S

B
P

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.

0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

S
A

M
U

E
L

 
B

.
 
P

I
T

N
I
C

K

C
 
-
 
3

4
3

6
2

R
E

N
.
 
0

5
/
3

1
/
2

1

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
&

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
S

A
1

.
0

S
C

A
L
E

:

1

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

1
/
8
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

4
'

8
'

1
6

'

S
C

A
L
E

:

2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

1
/
8
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

4
'

8
'

1
6

'

Page 79 of 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
15+18"S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+8"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
12+12"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
9+9"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
11+24"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SHED TO REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (120.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (32.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (40.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH STREET (A 29.9' WIDE CITY STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTEREY AVENUE (A 49.9' WIDE CITY STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 4,000 SF PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (100.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (20.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE  (8.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
15+18"S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"T

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
11+24"K

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (120.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (32.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (40.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH STREET (A 29.9' WIDE CITY STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTEREY AVENUE (A 49.9' WIDE CITY STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 6'H WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (100.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (20.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE  (8.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) TWO STORY HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) GARAGE  & ADU

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CURB CUT & CONC. DRIVEWAY APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 4'H WOOD GRAPE  STAKE FENCE & GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 6'H WOOD GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CONC. PAD FOR TRASH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SAND-SET  DRIVEWAY PAVERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SAND-SET  FLAGSTONE PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SAND-SET FLAGSTONE PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 6'H WOOD GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SAND-SET  FLAGSTONE PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 4'H WOOD GRAPE  STAKE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 6'H WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH



4
8

'
-
1

1
"

7
'
-
4

1 4

"
1

4
'
-
8

1 2

"
1

1
'
-
9

3 4

"

1
2

'
-
0

"

22'-0"

12'-1"

8'-6

1

2

"

3
'
-
8

1 2

"

1
5

'
-
2

"
3

'
-
0

"
1

2
'
-
0

"

4
'
-
0

"
3

5
'
-
8

"

12'-1"

13'-0" 9'-0"

8'-6

1

2

"

1
'
-
6

"

9
'
-
3

"

2
0

'
-
0

"

21'-0"

2'-0" 8'-0" 1'-0" 8'-0" 2'-0" 3'-0"

METAL SHOWER TRIM BANCROFT K-10583-4

METALSHOWER TRIMBANCROFTK-10583-4

12'-1"

1
'
-
6
"

1
1
'
-
5
"

5
'
-
6
"

1
1
'
-
5
"

2
'
-
0
"

1
6
'
-
6
"

4
8
'
-
1
1
"

5'-3

1

2

"

3'-3"

7'-4"

4'-5

1

2

"

8
'
-
1
1
"

2
'
-
8
"

3
'
-
5

1 2

"

12'-1"

3'-6

1

2

"

5'-0"

8'-6

1

2

"

3
'
-
0
"

4
'
-
0
"

METAL SHOWER TRIM BANCROFT K-10583-4

2
'
-
0
"

1
0
'
-
6
"

2
1
'
-
0
"

9'-10

3

4

"

2'-7" 3'-6"

21'-0"

3'-0"

8'-0"

9'-10

3

4

"

5'-5"

2
'
-
6
"

7
'
-
0
"

1
1
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
G

R
O

V
E

,
 
C

A

9
3
9
5
0

P.O. BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

EMAIL: SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

Use of these plans and specifications shall be restricted to the original site for which they were prepared and publication thereof is expressly limited to such use.  Reproduction or publication by any method, in whole or in part, is prohibited.  Title to the plans and specifications remains with the architect without prejudice.  Visual contact with these plans and specifications shall constitute prima facie evidence of the acceptance of these restrictions.

1
1
T

H

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

C
E

J
o
b
:

-

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L

D
r
a

w
n

 
B

y
:
 
S

B
P

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.

0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

S
A

M
U

E
L

 
B

.
 
P

I
T

N
I
C

K

C
 
-
 
3

4
3

6
2

R
E

N
.
 
0

5
/
3

1
/
2

1

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
S

A
2

.
0

S
C

A
L
E

:

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
F

I
R

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

S
C

A
L
E

:

2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

Page 80 of 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWDR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW W/ BENCH SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.V.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) FIREPLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) STORAGE  BELOW STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.A.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD STEPS &  COVERED PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD RAILING AROUND  PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW W/ BENCH SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW W/ BENCH SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLO./ PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.D.U.-LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
207

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.D.U.-BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.D.U.-BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW W/ BENCH SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SKYLIGHT ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF O/ ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF OVER FRONT ENTRY PORCH



1
'
-
0

"
1

'
-
0

"
3

"
3

"

6"

1'-0"1'-0"

1
'
-
0

"

1'-0"

1
'
-
0

"

1'-0"

1'-0"1'-0"

1
'
-
0

"

6
"

3" 3"

3" 3"

1
'
-
0

"
1

'
-
0

"

1
'
-
0

"
1

'
-
0

"

6"

6" 6"

3'-8"

3" 3" 3" 3"

6
"

1
2

'
-
6

"

4
'
-
6

"

1
1
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
G

R
O

V
E

,
 
C

A

9
3
9
5
0

P.O. BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

EMAIL: SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

Use of these plans and specifications shall be restricted to the original site for which they were prepared and publication thereof is expressly limited to such use.  Reproduction or publication by any method, in whole or in part, is prohibited.  Title to the plans and specifications remains with the architect without prejudice.  Visual contact with these plans and specifications shall constitute prima facie evidence of the acceptance of these restrictions.

1
1
T

H

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

C
E

J
o
b
:

-

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L

D
r
a

w
n

 
B

y
:
 
S

B
P

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.

0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

S
A

M
U

E
L

 
B

.
 
P

I
T

N
I
C

K

C
 
-
 
3

4
3

6
2

R
E

N
.
 
0

5
/
3

1
/
2

1

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
O

O
F

 
P

L
A

N

A
2

.
1

S
C

A
L
E

:

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
R

O
O

F
 
P

L
A

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

Page 81 of 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) COPPER GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) COPPER GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) COPPER GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) COPPER GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) STRUCTURE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) STRUCTURE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) STRUCTURE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CHIMNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) SKYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF  O/ ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF  O/ ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE  ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE  ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF  O/ COVERED PORCH



9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

5'-3

1

4

"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"

2'-6"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

5'-3

1

4

"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"2'-8"

2'-2

1

4

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

4'-10

1

4

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

4'-10

1

4

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"2'-8"

2'-2

1

4

"

1
1
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
G

R
O

V
E

,
 
C

A

9
3
9
5
0

P.O. BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

EMAIL: SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

Use of these plans and specifications shall be restricted to the original site for which they were prepared and publication thereof is expressly limited to such use.  Reproduction or publication by any method, in whole or in part, is prohibited.  Title to the plans and specifications remains with the architect without prejudice.  Visual contact with these plans and specifications shall constitute prima facie evidence of the acceptance of these restrictions.

1
1
T

H

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

C
E

J
o
b
:

-

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L

D
r
a

w
n

 
B

y
:
 
S

B
P

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.

0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

S
A

M
U

E
L

 
B

.
 
P

I
T

N
I
C

K

C
 
-
 
3

4
3

6
2

R
E

N
.
 
0

5
/
3

1
/
2

1

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

A
3

.
0

S
C

A
L
E

:

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
W

E
S

T
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

S
C

A
L
E

:

2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
E

A
S

T
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

S
C

A
L
E

:

3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

A
R

A
G

E
 
&

 
A

.
D

.
U

.
 
-
 
W

E
S

T
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

S
C

A
L
E

:

4

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

A
R

A
G

E
 
&

 
A

.
D

.
U

.
 
-
 
E

A
S

T
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

Page 82 of 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CHIMNEY CLAD IN NATURAL STONE VENEER & COPPER CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) NATURAL STONE VENEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD & GLASS FRONT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXP. ROOF FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXT.  DOWNLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CHIMNEY CLAD IN NATURAL STONE VENEER & COPPER CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ALUM. CLAD WINDOWS W/ PAINTED WOOD TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD & GLASS DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ALUM. CLAD WINDOW W/ PAINTED WOOD TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXP. RAFTER TAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXT. DOWNLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD & GLASS GARAGE DOORS



9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"1'-10

1

2

"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"1'-10

1

2

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

4'-10

1

4

"

2'-6"

3'-6"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"1'-10

1

2

"

9'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

3'-4

3

4

"1'-10

1

2

"

8'-0"1'-0"8'-0"

4'-10

1

4

"

1
1
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
G

R
O

V
E

,
 
C

A

9
3
9
5
0

P.O. BOX 22412, CARMEL, CA 93922

PHONE: (831) 241-1895

EMAIL: SAMUELPITNICK@GMAIL.COM

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

Use of these plans and specifications shall be restricted to the original site for which they were prepared and publication thereof is expressly limited to such use.  Reproduction or publication by any method, in whole or in part, is prohibited.  Title to the plans and specifications remains with the architect without prejudice.  Visual contact with these plans and specifications shall constitute prima facie evidence of the acceptance of these restrictions.

1
1
T

H

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

C
E

J
o
b
:

-

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L

D
r
a

w
n

 
B

y
:
 
S

B
P

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
S

E
E

 
D

W
G

.

0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

L

I

C

E

N

S

E

D

 
A

R

C

H

I

T

E

C

T

S
A

M
U

E
L

 
B

.
 
P

I
T

N
I
C

K

C
 
-
 
3

4
3

6
2

R
E

N
.
 
0

5
/
3

1
/
2

1

 

 

I

O

L

R

A

S

T

A

F

C

N

I

A

T

E

O

F

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

A
3

.
1

S
C

A
L
E

:

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

O
U

T
H

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

S
C

A
L
E

:

2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
N

O
R

T
H

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N

1
/
4
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

0
'

2
'

4
'

8
'

Page 83 of 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ALUM. CLAD WINDOWS W/ PAINTED WOOD TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) DOOR FINISHED TO MATCH ADJ. WOOD SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXT. DOWNLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD & GLASS DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXP. ROOF FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD STAIRS & RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 1ST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-4 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ORIEL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) CHIMNEY CLAD IN NATURAL STONE VENEER & COPPER CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) NATURAL STONE VENEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ALUM. CLAD WINDOWS W/ PAINTED WOOD TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. GARAGE FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) HORIZ. WOOD SIDING, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) WOOD & GLASS DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ALUM. CLAD WINDOW W/ PAINTED WOOD TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) EXP. ROOF FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 



Page 84 of 124



Agenda No. 6 D 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, California 93950

TO: Chair Boyle and Members of the Architectural Review Board
FROM: Laurel O'Halloran, Associate Planner
MEETING DATE: 08/11/2020
SUBJECT: Architectural Permit (AP) No. 20-02131256 for Surf Avenue (APN 006-011-007). 
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Class I, Existing

Facilities

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Architectural Permit subject to the recommended findings, conditions of approval, Class 1,
section 15301(e), Existing Facilities CEQA exemption.

BACKGROUND
Project Description
An Architectural Permit to allow the renovation and addition to an existing 2,741 sq. ft. single-family
two-story residence including a garage expansion for a total proposed floor area of 3,334 sq. ft.  The
proposed project consists of 180 sq. ft. addition on the main level, a 275 sq. ft. garage expansion and 138
sq. ft. addition to the upper level including a new 9'-0" x 20'-0" deck.

Site Description
The approximately 7,200 sq. ft. parcel is currently developed with a 2,741 sq. ft. residence. The property
is in the Area of Special Biological Significance and the Archeological Zone. A Preliminary Cultural
Resources Reconnaissance was prepared by Susan Morley, M.A., Professional Archeologists in June of
2020. A condition of approval is included in the draft AP:
 
If archeologic resources or human remains are discovered during construction, work shall be halted
within 50 meters of the find until it can be evaluated by a qualified professional archeologist.  If the find
is determined to be significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated, with the
concurrence of the City of Pacific Grove staff and implemented.
 
The owners have also agreed, as a courtesy, to have a Tribal monitor on-site during the ground
disturbance.
 
Surrounding Land Uses
The parcel is located in a residential neighborhood. The neighborhood consists of one and two-story
residences on flat lots in the Beach Tract neighborhood.
 

DISCUSSION
Page 85 of 124



Applicable General Plan Policies 
The neighborhood is designated Medium Density Residential with an allowed density of up to 7.3
dwelling units per acre. The Pacific Grove General Plan provides a framework for future growth and
development within the City. The Land Use Element includes goals and polices that call for the orderly,
well-planned, and balanced development, consistent with the historic nature of Pacific Grove, the
capacity of the City’s infrastructure, and ability to assimilate new growth. This residential project helps
the City achieve several of its housing goals as stated in the General Plan including the following:
 
Chapter 2, Land Use
Policy 2:          Ensure that new development is compatible with adjacent existing development.
Policy 4:          Continue to preserve Pacific Grove’s character and regulate development.
 
Chapter 3, Housing
Policy 8:          Strive to provide the City’s share of the region’s housing needs.
 
The policies above are implemented through the R-1 zoning district which allows single-family
developments in areas with adequate public services.  
 
 Applicable Zoning Code Regulations
General Plan policies are implemented through the R-1-H zoning district which allows single-family
residential development in areas with adequate public services.
The proposed project is in full compliance with the zoning regulations set forth in PGMC 23.16 (R-1) and 
23.56 (R-H). This includes, but is not limited, to the height limit of 25’, setback requirements, gross floor
area, and allowable site coverage. The project is also in compliance with the parking standards for
single-family residential development in PGMC Section 23.16.070 which requires one covered and one
uncovered parking space.

The applicant has provided a Project Data Sheet (attached) indicating that the development standards of
the zoning district, including building coverage, site coverage, and gross floor area, have been met. No
exceptions are requested.
 
The Architectural Permit (AP) is required per Section 23.70.060(c)(1) of the PGMC. The required
findings for the AP are located in the Draft Permit (attached).
 
Architecture and Design Consideration
The proposed project will allow for an addition to an existing 2741 sq. ft. residence. The addition is set
back 30’ from the front yard setback. Exterior finishes include board and batten siding mixed with cedar
shingle siding and stone, cedar beams and posts, a new stainless steel cable railing on the new deck and a
standing seam metal roof. A new permeable sequoia sandstone paver driveway will also be installed.
 
Architecture Review Guidelines:
The project proposal appears to adhere to the following Architectural Review Guidelines:
 
Guideline #7: Second-floor deck and balconies should be located to minimize the loss of privacy for
neighboring properties
The proposed design should allow for privacy screening to protect neighbors who are close to the existing
building.

Guideline #28: An addition should complement and balance the overall form, mass, and composition
of the existing building.

Page 86 of 124

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/html/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2316.html#23.16
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/#!/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2356.html
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/html/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2316.html#23.16.070
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/PacificGrove/#!/PacificGrove23/PacificGrove2370.html


 
The proposed addition uses less than the allowable building and site coverage. This allows for more
landscaping which can assist to soften the second story addition.
 
Guideline #33: Door and window proportions should relate to the scale and style of the building itself.
 
The project proposes windows that relate to the overall height and width of the facade and the structure.
 
Guideline #36: Design a facade to provide visual interest to the street
The proposed design provides a creative use of details and avoids large blank facades, by using varying
materials and a combination of horizontal and vertical elements

Lighting
Standard residential exterior lighting in compliance with Design Guidelines #10 – 12 is required as a
condition of approval.
 
Stormwater Treatment Measure
Less than 2,500 sq. ft. of impervious surface will be replaced therefore, the project does not trigger
stormwater requirements.
 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
In reviewing this action, the City has followed guidelines adopted by the State of California as published
in California Administrative Code, Title 14, §15000, et seq.  The proposed project is found to be exempt
under the CEQA Guidelines Categorical Exemptions, 15301(e), Class 1, Minor Residential Additions.
 
 
The Class 1 exemption consists of the minor alteration of existing private structures, involving negligible
or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. The key
consideration is whether the project involves negligible or no expansion of an existing use. Examples
include: (e) Additions to existing structures provided that the addition will not result in an increase of
more than: (1) 50 percent of the floor area of the structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet,
whichever is less. The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan and the neighborhood within
which the project is located is not environmentally sensitive
 
The exceptions to exemptions in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines pertaining to location,
cumulative impacts, significant effects, scenic highways, hazardous waste sites, and historical resources.
 

Attachments
application 
data sheet 
AP draft 
CEQA 
Plans 

Page 87 of 124

http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/art19.html


Page 88 of 124



Page 89 of 124



Page 90 of 124



 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE 
Community Development Department – Planning Division 
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
T : 831.648.3183 • F : 831.648.3184 • www.ci.pg.ca.us/cdd 

 

ARCHITECTURAL PERMIT (AP) 20-0213 

FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1256 SURF AVENUE TO ALLOW AN ADDITION TO THE EXISTING 

2,741 SQ. FT. TWO STORY, SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE FOR A TOTLA RESIDNCE OF 3,334 SQ. FT. 

FACTS 

1. The subject site is located at 1256 Surf Avenue (APN 006-011-007) 

2. The subject site has a designation of Medium Density to 7.3 DU/AC on the adopted City of Pacific Grove General 

Plan Land Use Map. 

3. The subject site is located in the R-1-H zoning district. 

4. The subject site is approximately 7,200 sf with a 2,741 sq.ft.  two- story single family dwelling. 

5. The property is located in an archaeologically sensitive area and in the Area of Special Biological Significance 

(ASBS). 

6. An Initial Historic Screening will be completed at the September Historic Resources Committee meeting and Staff is 

recommending the structure is not historically significant. 

7. This project has been determined to be CEQA Exempt under CEQA Guidelines, Section 15301(a)(1), Class 1  

FINDINGS  

For the Architectural Permit per PGMC Section 23.70.060(f): 

1. The architecture and general appearance of the completed project are compatible with the neighborhood; 
2. The proposed development will meet the development regulations set forth in the R-1-H zoning district including 

setbacks and height requirements; 

3. The completed project will neither be detrimental to the orderly and harmonious development of the City nor impair 

the desirability of investment or occupation in the neighborhood; 
4. The Board has been guided by and has made reference to applicable provisions of the Architectural Review 

Guidelines in making its determinations on the structure. 

 
The architectural style and materials, and site design are in substantial conformance to the City’s Residential Design 

Guidelines, specifically Nos. 7, 28, 33, and 36 relating to the site’s natural setting, high quality materials and finishes, and 

neighborhood compatibility, and Nos. 10-12 relating to exterior lighting. 

 
PERMIT 

Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0213 to allow the renovation and addition to an existing 2741 sq. ft. single family two-story 

residence including a garage expansion for a total proposed floor area of 3,334 sq. ft. The proposed project consists of a 
180 sq.ft. addition to allow for a master suite on the main level, a 275 sq. ft garage expansion on the main level and 138 

sq. ft addition to the upper level including a new 9'-0" x 20'-0" deck looking to the North with metal railing. 

 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. Permit Expiration.  This permit shall expire and be null and void if a building permit has not been applied for 

within TWO (2) years from and after the date of approval.  Application for extension of this approval must be 

made prior to the expiration date.  

2. Construction Compliance.  All construction must occur in strict compliance with the proposal as set forth in the 

application, subject to any special conditions of approval herein. Any deviation from approvals must be reviewed 

and approved by staff and may require Architectural Review Board approval. 

3. Terms and Conditions.  These terms and conditions shall run with the land, and it is the intention of the 

Community Development Director and the Permittee to bind all future owners and possessors of the subject 

Page 91 of 124

http://www.ci.pg.ca.us/cdd


 

Page 2 of 3  Permit No. AP 20-0213 

 

property to the terms and conditions, unless amended. Amendments to this permit may be achieved only if an 

application is made and approved, pursuant to the Zoning Code. 

4. Public Works, Fire and Building.  Review and approval by the Public Works, Fire and Building Departments 
are required prior to issuance of a building permit.  Work taking place in the public right-of-way shall require an 

encroachment permit prior to issuance of the building permit.   

 
5. Stormwater Treatment Measure.  The stormwater treatment measures shall be maintained by the property 

owner in perpetuity and City of Pacific Grove staff shall be allowed access to inspect all stormwater treatment 

measures on an annual basis.  

 
6. Lighting. All exterior lighting must conform to Architectural Review Guidelines Nos. 10,11,12. 

 

7. Initial Historic Screening. Prior to issuance of building permit, applicant shall obtain an Initial Historic 
Screening with a finding of ineligible for the City’s Historic Resources. 

 

8. Building Plans. All conditions of approval for the Planning permit(s) shall be printed on a full size sheet and 
included with the construction plan set submitted to the Building Department. 

 

9. Archeology.  Archaeological Monitoring is required as a mitigation measure. If archaeological resources or 

human remains are discovered during construction, work shall be halted within 50 meters of the find until it can 
be evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist.  If the find is determined to be significant, appropriate 

mitigation measures shall be formulated, with the concurrence of the City of Pacific Grove staff, and 

implemented. 
 

10. Tribal Resources. The applicant, as a courtesy, will work with the Tribal Representative to allow for tribal 

monitoring during ground disturbance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD OF THE CITY OF 

PACIFIC GROVE: 

 
1. The Board determines that each of the Findings set forth above is true and correct, and by this reference incorporates 

those Findings as an integral part of this Permit. 

 
2. The Board authorizes Approval of Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0213 as conditioned and pursuant to a Class 1, 

Section 15301, CEQA categorical exemption for Existing Facilities. 

 

3. This permit shall become effective upon the expiration of the 10-day appeal period. 
 

4. This permit shall not take effect until the owner acknowledges and agrees to all terms and conditions and agrees to 

conform to and comply with those terms and conditions. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD OF THE 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE ON THE 11th DAY OF AUGUST, 2020, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES:    

NOES:   

ABSENT:        

APPROVED: 

Page 92 of 124



 

Page 3 of 3  Permit No. AP 20-0213 

 

     _______________________________ 
                    Sarah Boyle, Chair                                                                                                                                                   

 

The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to the approved terms and conditions, and agree to fully conform to, and 

comply with, said terms and conditions. 
 

 

 
  

 
Richard Wald,  Owner  Date 

Page 93 of 124



Page 94 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

A
1.

0

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
AT

A
S

H
E

E
T 

IN
D

E
X

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F 
W

O
R

K
C

O
D

E
S

A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

S
 M

A
P

V
IC

IN
IT

Y 
M

A
P

N
O

TE
S

N
e
w

 A
d

d
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l
 M

r
. 

&
 M

r
s
. 

W
a
l
d

 R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 

C
a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

 9
3

9
5

0

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
A

TA
S

H
E

E
T

 IN
D

E
X

PR
O

JE
C

T 
A

D
D

R
ES

S

PA
R

C
EL

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

PA
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
VE

 Z
O

N
IN

G
:

SI
TE

 A
R

EA
:

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:

O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
Y 

TY
PE

:

ST
O

R
IE

S:

SE
W

ER
 S

YS
TE

M
:

SQ
U

A
R

E 
FO

O
TA

G
E:

 
(E

) R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(M
A

IN
 &

 U
PP

ER
):

 
(E

) A
TT

A
C

H
ED

 G
A

R
A

G
E:

 
(N

) R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

:
 

(N
) A

TT
A

C
H

ED
 G

A
R

A
G

E 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
:

 
 

 
TO

TA
L:

 SI
TE

 C
O

VE
R

A
G

E:

 
(E

) R
ES

ID
EN

C
E:

 
(E

) G
A

R
A

G
E:

 
(N

) A
D

D
IT

IO
N

:
 

(E
) W

A
LK

W
AY

S:
 

(N
) W

A
LK

W
AY

S:
  

TO
TA

L 
SI

TE
 C

O
VE

R
A

G
E:

FI
R

E 
SP

R
IN

K
LE

R
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
T:

TR
EE

S 
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D
:

M
A

XI
M

U
M

 H
EI

G
H

T 
A

LL
O

W
ED

:

A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

S
 M

A
P

A
P

P
LI

C
A

B
LE

 C
O

D
E

S

FI
R

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 N

O
T

E
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

N
EW

 1
80

 S
.F

. M
A

ST
ER

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 T
O

 M
A

IN
 L

EV
EL

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
2,

28
0 

S.
F.

 S
IN

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
D

W
EL

LI
N

G
.

N
EW

 2
75

 S
.F

. G
A

R
A

G
E 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 T
O

 M
A

IN
 L

EV
EL

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E.

N
EW

 1
38

 S
.F

. U
PS

TA
IR

S 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E.

EN
TI

R
E 

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

IN
TE

R
IO

R
 R

EM
O

D
EL

.

N
EW

 W
IN

D
O

W
S 

(M
IL

G
A

R
D

 V
IN

YL
 - 

W
H

IT
E)

N
EW

 5
0 

YE
A

R
 C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 (C

O
LO

R
 - 

C
H

A
R

C
O

A
L)

N
EW

 M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G
 T

O
 R

EB
U

IL
T 

D
EC

K
IN

G
 A

T 
R

EA
R

 O
F 

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E.

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.

A
1.

0 
 

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T,

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
AT

A
, N

O
TE

S
, A

S
S

E
S

S
O

R
S

 M
A

P
A

1.
1 

 
E

N
TI

R
E

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

A
1.

2 
 

B
E

S
T 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
S

 (B
M

P
'S

)
A

1.
3 

 
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

, D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
A

1.
4 

 
N

E
W

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 (M

A
IN

 L
E

V
E

L)
, N

E
W

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 (U

P
P

E
R

 L
E

V
E

L)
A

1.
5 

 
E

X
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

, W
IN

D
O

W
 F

LA
S

H
IN

G
 D

TA
IL

S
A

1.
6 

 
E

X
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

, W
IN

D
O

W
 F

LA
S

H
IN

G
 D

E
TA

IL
S

A
1.

7 
 

N
E

W
 R

O
O

F 
P

LA
N

, F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 N

O
TE

S

12
56

 S
U

R
F 

AV
E

N
U

E
PA

C
IF

IC
 G

R
O

V
E

, C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 9

39
50

00
6-

01
1-

00
7

R
-1

-H

7,
39

1 
S

.F
.

V-
B

R
-3

2-
S

TO
R

Y

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
E

W
E

R
 S

Y
S

TE
M

2,
28

0 
S

.F
.

   
46

1 
S

.F
.

   
31

8 
S

.F
.

   
27

5 
S

.F
.

3,
33

4 
S

.F
. (

3,
33

9 
S

.F
. A

LL
O

W
E

D
)

1,
88

2 
S

.F
.

   
46

1 
S

.F
.

   
45

5 
S

.F
.

   
15

7 
S

.F
.

   
  5

6 
S

.F
. (

D
R

IV
E

W
AY

 P
AV

E
R

S
)

3,
01

1 
S

.F
. (

41
.8

1%
 C

O
V

E
R

A
G

E
)

R
EQ

U
IR

ED

N
O

 T
R

EE
S 

TO
 B

E 
R

EM
O

VE
D

25
 F

EE
T

TH
IS

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

SH
A

LL
 C

O
M

PL
Y 

W
IT

H
 A

LL
 C

U
R

R
EN

T 
C

O
D

ES
 L

IS
TE

D
 A

S 
FO

LL
O

W
S:

20
19

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

C
O

D
E

20
19

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 F

IR
E 

C
O

D
E

20
19

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
A

L 
C

O
D

E

20
19

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 C

O
D

E

20
19

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

C
O

D
E

20
19

 T
IT

LE
 2

4 
EN

ER
G

Y 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E

TY
P

IC
A

L 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

E
 2

01
9 

C
R

C
 S

H
A

LL
 A

P
P

LY
 W

H
E

R
E

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

B
LE

 A
N

D
W

H
E

N
 N

O
T 

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
LL

Y 
N

O
TE

D
 O

TH
E

R
W

IS
E

 O
N

 T
H

E
 D

R
AW

IN
G

S
.

SI
TE

 F
A

M
IL

IA
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

:  
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 I

S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 T
O

 A
C

Q
U

A
IN

T 
H

IM
S

E
LF

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 P

R
IO

R
TO

 S
U

B
M

IT
TI

N
G

 A
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L.
  

IF
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 D
IS

C
O

V
E

R
S

 A
N

Y 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 D

U
R

IN
G

 H
IS

 S
IT

E
V

IS
IT

 F
A

M
IL

IA
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 W
H

IC
H

 H
E

 F
E

E
LS

 W
IL

L 
A

D
V

E
R

S
E

LY
 A

FF
E

C
T 

TH
E

 W
O

R
K

, 
O

R
 W

H
IC

H
 H

E
 F

E
E

LS
H

AV
E

 N
O

T 
B

E
E

N
 A

D
E

Q
U

AT
E

LY
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

, H
E

 IS
 T

O
 N

O
TI

FY
 T

H
E

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 IN

 W
R

IT
IN

G
.

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

A
IL

S:
 N

O
T 

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
LL

Y 
S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E
 D

R
AW

IN
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

A
R

R
IE

D
 O

U
T 

B
Y

R
E

S
P

E
C

TI
V

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
S

 I
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 B
E

S
T 

C
O

M
M

O
N

 P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
 A

N
D

/O
R

 W
IT

H
M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
E

R
S

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 IN

S
TA

LL
AT

IO
N

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

IR
 M

AT
E

R
IA

LS
 O

R
 IT

E
M

S
.

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
:  C

O
O

R
D

IN
AT

E
 A

LL
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 O

W
N

E
R

.  
V

E
R

IF
Y 

W
IT

H
 O

W
N

E
R

W
H

IC
H

 IT
E

M
S

, I
F 

A
N

Y,
 H

E
 W

IS
H

E
S

 T
O

 R
E

TA
IN

 F
O

R
 H

IS
 U

S
E

A
G

E
.  

A
LL

 O
TH

E
R

 IT
E

M
S

 B
E

C
O

M
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
O

F 
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 A

N
D

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
LY

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
. 

 U
TI

LI
ZE

 D
U

S
T

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 D
U

R
IN

G
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
.

G
LA

ZI
N

G
:  

A
LL

 D
O

O
R

S
 A

R
E

 T
O

 H
AV

E
 T

E
M

P
E

R
E

D
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

. 
 A

LL
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

 I
N

 A
N

Y 
A

R
E

A
S

 S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
H

U
M

A
N

 IM
PA

C
T 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 T
E

M
P

E
R

E
D

 G
LA

S
S

. 
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

 W
IT

H
IN

 2
4"

 O
F 

A
N

Y 
E

D
G

E
 O

F 
D

O
O

R
 O

R
 W

IT
H

IN
18

" O
F 

TH
E

 F
LO

O
R

 M
U

S
T 

C
O

M
P

LY
.

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
:  

IT
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
S

S
E

N
C

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 T

H
AT

 A
LL

 S
Y

S
TE

M
S

 S
H

A
LL

FU
N

C
TI

O
N

 W
E

LL
 I

N
D

IV
ID

U
A

LL
Y 

A
N

D
 I

N
 C

O
M

B
IN

AT
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 O
TH

E
R

 S
Y

S
TE

M
S

. 
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 I
S

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 L

AY
O

U
T 

FO
R

 A
LL

 F
IX

TU
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T.

G
FI

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

:  
A

LL
 1

25
 V

O
LT

, 
S

IN
G

LE
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
5 

A
N

D
 2

0 
A

M
P 

R
E

C
E

P
TA

C
LE

 O
U

TL
E

TS
 I

N
S

TA
LL

E
D

O
U

TD
O

O
R

S
, I

N
 G

A
R

A
G

E
S

, I
N

 B
AT

H
R

O
O

M
S

 A
N

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 6

 F
E

E
T 

O
F 

K
IT

C
H

E
N

 S
IN

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 C

O
U

N
TE

R
TO

P
S

U
R

FA
C

E
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
A

U
LT

 C
IR

C
U

IT
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
. A

LL
 K

IT
C

H
EN

 R
EC

EP
TA

C
LE

S 
TO

 B
E 

G
FC

I.

SM
O

K
E 

D
ET

EC
TO

R
S:

 A
N

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 
S

M
O

K
E

 
D

E
TE

C
TO

R
 

S
H

A
LL

 
B

E
 

C
E

N
TR

A
LL

Y 
LO

C
AT

E
D

 
IN

 T
H

E
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

 O
R

 A
R

E
A 

G
IV

IN
G

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 B
E

D
R

O
O

M
S

. 
 S

M
O

K
E

 D
E

TE
C

TO
R

S
 A

R
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 T

O
 B

E
IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 I

N
 E

A
C

H
 S

LE
E

P
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
A

C
H

 S
TO

R
Y 

A
N

D
 I

N
 T

H
E

 B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T 

(W
H

E
R

E
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
B

LE
).

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 S

M
O

K
E

 D
E

TE
C

TO
R

S
 S

H
A

LL
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
P

O
W

E
R

 F
R

O
M

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
IR

E
. 

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
O

R
 R

E
PA

IR
S

 W
IT

H
 A

 V
A

LU
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

$1
,0

00
 O

R
 M

O
R

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
 T

H
AT

 S
M

O
K

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 B
E

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

.
IN

 D
W

E
LL

IN
G

 U
N

IT
S

 W
H

E
R

E
 T

H
E

 C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T 

O
F 

A 
R

O
O

M
 O

P
E

N
 T

O
 T

H
E

 H
A

LL
W

AY
 B

Y 
24

" 
O

R
 M

O
R

E
,

S
M

O
K

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 IN
 T

H
E

 H
A

LL
W

AY
 A

N
D

 IN
 T

H
E

 A
D

JA
C

E
N

T 
R

O
O

M
.  

D
E

TE
C

TO
R

S
S

H
A

LL
 S

O
U

N
D

 A
N

 A
LA

R
M

 I
N

 A
LL

 S
LE

E
P

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

S
. 

(R
E

FE
R

 T
O

 2
01

3 
R

E
S

ID
E

N
TI

A
L 

C
O

D
E

 F
O

R
 S

M
O

K
E

D
E

TE
C

TO
R

S
).

N
A

IL
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 IN

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 2
01

9 
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 
C

O
D

E  
TA

B
LE

.

A
LL

 H
O

T 
W

AT
E

R
 F

A
U

C
E

TS
 T

H
AT

 H
AV

E
 M

O
R

E
 T

H
A

N
 1

0 
FE

E
T 

O
F 

P
IP

E
 B

E
TW

E
E

N
 T

H
E

 F
A

U
C

E
T 

A
N

D
 T

H
E

H
O

T 
W

AT
E

R
 H

E
AT

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IN
G

 S
U

C
H

 F
A

U
C

E
T 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 E
Q

U
IP

P
E

D
 W

IT
H

 A
 H

O
T 

W
AT

E
R

 R
E

C
IR

C
U

LA
TI

N
G

S
Y

S
TE

M
. (

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 6
 (Q

), 
O

R
D

. 3
52

2)
.

N
O

 P
E

R
S

O
N

 M
AY

 T
A

P 
IN

TO
 A

N
Y 

FI
R

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T 

FO
R

 A
N

Y 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 F
IR

E
 S

U
P

P
R

E
S

S
IO

N
 O

R
E

M
E

R
G

E
N

C
Y 

A
ID

, 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
FI

R
S

T 
O

B
TA

IN
IN

G
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 A
P

P
R

O
VA

L 
FR

O
M

 T
H

E
 W

AT
E

R
 P

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

U
P

P
LY

IN
G

 W
AT

E
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T 

A
N

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 M
O

N
TE

R
E

Y 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
E

A
LT

H
 D

E
PA

R
TM

E
N

T.

A
LL

 H
O

S
E

S
 U

S
E

D
 IN

 C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
O

N
 W

IT
H

 A
N

Y 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 E
Q

U
IP

P
E

D
 W

IT
H

 A
S

H
U

T-
O

FF
 N

O
ZZ

LE
. 

 W
H

E
N

 A
N

 A
U

TO
M

AT
IC

 S
H

U
T-

O
FF

 N
O

ZZ
LE

 C
A

N
 B

E
 P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
D

 O
R

 O
TH

E
R

W
IS

E
O

B
TA

IN
E

D
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 S

IZ
E

 O
R

 T
Y

P
E

 O
F 

H
O

S
E

 IN
 U

S
E

, T
H

E
 N

O
ZZ

LE
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 A

N
 A

U
TO

M
AT

IC
 S

H
U

T-
O

FF
N

O
ZZ

LE
.

A
LL

 M
A

N
U

FA
C

TU
R

E
R

S
 I

N
S

TA
LL

AT
IO

N
 G

U
ID

E
S

 T
O

 B
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 T

O
 I

N
S

P
E

C
TO

R
 A

T 
TI

M
E

 O
F 

FI
E

LD
IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
.

TH
E

 H
O

T 
W

AT
E

R
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

C
IR

C
U

LA
TI

N
G

 H
O

T 
W

AT
E

R
 S

Y
S

TE
M

.

C
A

R
B

O
N

 M
O

N
O

XI
D

E 
D

ET
EC

TO
R

S:
 A

N
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 C

A
R

B
O

N
 M

O
N

O
X

ID
E

 D
E

TE
C

TO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
E

N
TR

A
LL

Y
LO

C
AT

E
D

 
IN

 
TH

E
 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
 

O
R

 
A

R
E

A 
G

IV
IN

G
 

A
C

C
E

S
S

 
TO

 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

S
. 

 
C

A
R

B
O

N
 

M
O

N
O

X
ID

E
D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 A
R

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 T
O

 B
E

 I
N

S
TA

LL
E

D
 I

N
 E

A
C

H
 S

TO
R

Y 
A

N
D

 I
N

 T
H

E
 B

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(W

H
E

R
E

A
P

P
LI

C
A

B
LE

). 
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 C
A

R
B

O
N

 M
O

N
O

X
ID

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 S
H

A
LL

 R
E

C
E

IV
E

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

P
O

W
E

R
 F

R
O

M
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 W

IR
E

.  
C

A
R

B
O

N
 M

O
N

O
X

ID
E

 D
E

TE
C

TO
R

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 H

A
LL

W
AY

.  
D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

S
H

A
LL

 S
O

U
N

D
 A

N
D

 A
LA

R
M

 I
N

 A
R

E
A

S
 L

O
C

AT
E

D
 N

E
A

R
 S

LE
E

P
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
S

. 
 (

R
E

FE
R

 T
O

 2
01

3 
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
A

L 
C

O
D

E
 F

O
R

 C
A

R
B

O
N

 M
O

N
O

X
ID

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

, S
E

C
TI

O
N

 R
31

5)
.

FI
R

E0
07

 - 
D

R
IV

EW
AY

S
D

R
IV

E
W

AY
S

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 1

2 
FE

E
T 

W
ID

E
 U

N
O

B
S

TR
U

C
TE

D
, W

IT
H

 A
N

 U
N

O
B

S
TR

U
C

TE
D

 V
E

R
TI

C
A

L
C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 O

F 
N

O
T 

LE
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 1

5 
FE

E
T.

  T
H

E
 G

R
A

D
E

 F
O

R
 A

LL
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
S

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
E

X
C

E
E

D
 1

5 
P

E
R

C
E

N
T.

W
H

E
R

E
 T

H
E

 G
R

A
D

E
 E

X
C

E
E

D
S

 8
 P

E
R

C
E

N
T.

  
A 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
A

L 
R

O
A

D
W

AY
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 O

F 
0.

17
 F

E
E

T 
O

F
A

S
P

H
A

LT
IC

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 O

N
 0

.3
4 

FE
E

T 
O

F 
A

G
G

R
E

G
AT

E
 B

A
S

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

. 
 T

H
E

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
A

PA
B

LE
 O

F 
S

U
P

P
O

R
TI

N
G

 T
H

E
 IM

P
O

S
E

D
 L

O
A

D
 O

F 
FI

R
E

 A
P

PA
R

AT
U

S
 (2

2 
TO

N
S

), 
A

N
D

 B
E

 A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

B
Y 

C
O

N
V

E
N

TI
O

N
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
, I

N
C

LU
D

IN
G

 S
E

D
A

N
S

. 
 F

O
R

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

S
 W

IT
H

 T
U

R
N

S
 9

0 
D

E
G

R
E

E
S

 A
N

D
LE

S
S

, 
TH

E
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

IN
S

ID
E

 R
A

D
IU

S
 O

F 
C

U
R

VA
TU

R
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 2
8 

FE
E

T.
  

FO
R

 A
LL

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

TR
U

N
S

, A
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
S

U
R

FA
C

E
 O

F 
4 

FE
E

T 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 A

D
D

E
D

. 
 A

LL
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
S

 E
X

C
E

E
D

IN
G

 1
50

 F
E

E
T 

IN
LE

N
G

TH
, 

B
U

T 
LE

S
S

 T
H

A
N

 8
00

 F
E

E
T 

IN
 L

E
N

G
TH

, 
S

H
A

LL
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

 T
U

R
N

O
U

T 
N

E
A

R
 T

H
E

 M
ID

P
O

IN
T 

O
F 

TH
E

D
R

IV
E

W
AY

. 
 W

H
E

R
E

 T
H

E
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
 E

X
C

E
E

D
S

 8
00

 F
E

E
T,

 T
U

R
N

O
U

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 A
T 

N
O

 G
R

E
AT

E
R

TH
A

N
 4

00
-F

O
O

T 
IN

TE
R

VA
LS

. 
 T

U
R

N
O

U
TS

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

12
 F

E
E

T 
W

ID
E

 A
N

D
 3

0 
FE

E
T 

LO
N

G
 W

IT
H

 A
M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

25
-F

O
O

T 
TA

P
R

E
 A

T 
B

O
TH

 E
N

D
S

.  
TU

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 O
N

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

S
 IN

 E
X

C
E

S
S

O
F 

15
0 

FE
E

T 
O

F 
S

U
R

FA
C

E
 L

E
N

G
TH

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 L

O
C

AT
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 5

0 
FE

E
T 

O
F 

TH
E

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

.  
TH

E
M

IN
IM

U
M

 T
U

R
N

IN
G

 R
A

D
IU

S
 F

O
R

 A
 T

U
R

N
A

R
O

U
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 4

0 
FE

E
T 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E

 C
E

N
TE

R
 

 L
IN

E
 O

F 
TH

E
D

R
IV

E
W

AY
.  

IF
 A

 H
A

M
M

E
R

H
E

A
D

 / 
T 

IS
 U

S
E

D
, T

H
E

 T
O

P 
O

F 
TH

E
 "T

" S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

60
 F

E
E

T 
IN

 L
E

N
G

TH
.

FI
R

E0
11

 - 
A

D
D

R
ES

SE
S 

FO
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
A

LL
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IS
S

U
E

D
 A

N
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 M
O

N
TE

R
E

Y 
C

O
U

N
TY

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

 N
O

.
12

41
. 

 E
A

C
H

 O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
Y,

 E
X

C
E

P
T 

A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

Y 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

, 
S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 I
TS

 O
W

N
 P

E
R

M
A

N
E

N
TL

Y 
P

O
S

TE
D

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
.  

W
H

E
N

 M
U

LT
IP

LE
 O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

IE
S

 E
X

IS
T 

W
IT

H
IN

 A
 S

IN
G

LE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
, E

A
C

H
 IN

D
IV

ID
U

A
L 

O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
Y

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 S
E

PA
R

AT
E

LY
 I

D
E

N
TI

FI
E

D
 B

Y 
IT

S
 O

W
N

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
. 

 L
E

TT
E

R
S

, 
N

U
M

B
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 S

Y
M

B
O

LS
 F

O
R

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
E

S
 

S
H

A
LL

 
B

E
 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 

O
F 

4 
IN

C
H

 
H

E
IG

H
T,

 
1/

2 
IN

C
H

 
S

TR
O

K
E

, 
C

O
N

TR
A

S
TI

N
G

 
W

IT
H

 
TH

E
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
LO

R
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

IG
N

, A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 A

R
A

B
IC

. 
 T

H
E

 S
IG

N
 A

N
D

 N
U

M
B

E
R

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

LA
C

E
D

 A
T

E
A

C
H

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

 E
N

TR
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 A
T 

E
A

C
H

 D
R

IV
E

W
AY

 S
P

LI
T.

  A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 S

IG
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 V

IS
IB

LE
 A

N
D

 L
E

G
IB

LE
FR

O
M

 B
O

TH
 D

IR
E

C
TI

O
N

S
 O

F 
TR

AV
E

L 
A

LO
N

G
 T

H
E

 R
O

A
D

. 
 IN

 A
LL

 C
A

S
E

S
, T

H
E

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

O
S

TE
D

 A
T

TH
E

 B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
 O

F 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
E

D
 T

H
E

R
E

A
FT

E
R

.  
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 S
IG

N
S

 A
LO

N
G

 O
N

E
-

W
AY

 R
O

A
D

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 V

IS
IB

LE
 F

R
O

M
 B

O
TH

 D
IR

E
C

TI
O

N
S

 O
F 

TR
AV

E
L.

  
W

H
E

R
E

 M
U

LT
IP

LE
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

E
S

 A
R

E
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 A
T 

A 
S

IN
G

LE
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
, 

TH
E

Y 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 M

O
U

N
TE

D
 O

N
 A

 S
IN

G
LE

 S
IG

N
. 

 W
H

E
R

E
 A

 R
O

A
D

W
AY

P
R

O
V

ID
E

S
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 S

O
LE

LY
 T

O
 S

IN
G

LE
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
Y,

 T
H

E
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 S
IG

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

LA
C

E
D

 A
T

TH
E

 N
E

A
R

E
S

T 
R

O
A

D
 I

N
TE

R
S

E
C

TI
O

N
 P

R
O

V
ID

IN
G

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 T
H

AT
 S

IT
E

. 
 P

E
R

M
A

N
E

N
T 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
O

S
TE

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
TI

N
G

 F
IN

A
L 

C
LE

A
R

A
N

C
E

.

FI
R

E0
19

 - 
D

EF
EN

SI
B

LE
 S

PA
C

E 
R

EQ
U

R
EM

EN
TS

 (S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
)

M
A

N
A

G
E

 C
O

M
B

U
S

TI
B

LE
 V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 F

R
O

M
 W

IT
H

IN
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F 
10

0 
FE

E
T 

O
F 

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
S

, 
O

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

, 
W

H
IC

H
E

V
E

R
 I

S
 C

LO
S

E
R

. 
 T

R
IM

 T
R

E
E

 L
IM

B
S

 T
O

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 H
E

IG
H

T 
O

F 
6 

FE
E

T 
FR

O
M

 T
H

E
G

R
O

U
N

D
.  

R
E

M
O

V
E

 L
IM

B
S

 W
IT

H
IN

 1
0 

FE
E

T 
O

F 
C

H
IM

N
E

Y
S

.  
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
A

N
D

/O
R

 A
LT

E
R

N
AT

E
 F

IR
E

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

O
R

 F
IR

E
B

R
E

A
K

S
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 F

IR
E

 A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y 
M

AY
 B

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 T
O

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 R
E

A
S

O
N

A
B

LE
 F

IR
E

S
A

FE
TY

. 
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

TA
LL

Y 
S

E
N

S
IT

IV
E

 A
R

E
A

S
 M

AY
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
 A

LT
E

R
N

AT
IV

E
 F

IR
E

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

, 
TO

 B
E

D
E

TE
R

M
IN

E
D

 B
Y 

R
E

V
IE

W
IN

G
 A

U
TH

O
R

IT
Y 

A
N

D
 T

H
E

 D
IR

E
C

TO
R

 O
F 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
.

FI
R

E0
29

 - 
R

O
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
A

LL
 N

E
W

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 A

LL
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

S
 R

E
C

E
IV

IN
G

 N
E

W
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

V
E

R
 2

5 
P

E
R

C
E

N
T 

O
R

M
O

R
E

 O
F 

TH
E

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 R
O

O
F 

S
U

R
FA

C
E

 W
IT

H
IN

 A
 O

N
E

-Y
E

A
R

 P
E

R
IO

D
, 

S
H

A
LL

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

IC
B

O
C

LA
S

S
 "A

" R
O

O
F 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

.

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

P
R

E
-C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 M

E
E

TI
N

G
 IS

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 B

E
FO

R
E

 S
TA

R
T 

O
F

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

.

S
H

E
A

R
 W

A
LL

S
 W

IT
H

 N
A

IL
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 T

IG
H

TE
R

 T
H

A
N

 4
" O

.C
.

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

 A
 T

H
IR

D
 P

A
R

TY
 IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 A
P

P
R

O
VA

L.

S
E

W
E

R
 B

A
C

K
 W

AT
E

R
 V

A
LV

E
 A

N
D

 S
E

W
E

R
 R

E
LI

E
F 

V
E

N
T 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 S

H
A

LL
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

 S
IN

G
LE

 L
IN

E
 G

A
S

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

 A
T

FR
A

M
IN

G
 IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
.

1. 2. 3. 4.

R
-1

-H

7,
20

0

N
/A

W
ES

T

EA
ST

40
%

3,
33

9

12
56

 S
U

R
F 

AV
EN

U
E

A
PR

IL
 2

8,
 2

02
0

A
A

R
O

N
 S

. T
O

LL
EF

SO
N

2,
50

8
3,

01
1 

(4
1.

81
%

)

2,
74

1
3,

33
4

N
/A

N
/A

11
8.

0' 17
0.

00
'

25
'-0

"
23

'-1
0"

2
2

2

15
'-0

"

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

1

49
'-0

"
20

'-0
"

1

19
' x

 2
3'

1
1

20
'-0

"
20

'-0
"

N
/A

N
/A

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

3'
-1

0"
3'

-1
0"

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

6'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 D

A
TA

11
8.

0' 30
'-1

1"

2,
34

3
2,

79
8 

(3
8.

86
%

)

15
'-6

"

35
'-0

"

2 2

2 2

19
' x

 2
2'

49
'-0

"
35

'-0
"

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

10
'-0

"

60
%

N
/A

21
'-6

"

15
'-6

"

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

6'
-4

" 
(1

0%
)

40
'-0

"

Page 95 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

S 
  H

   
E 

  L
   

L 
   

   
  A

   
V 

  E
   

N
   

U
   

E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E 

 (6
4.

74
')

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E 

 (6
4.

74
')

PROPERTY LINE  (114.17')

PROPERTY LINE  (114.17')

(N
) 1

80
 S

.F
. A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
R

ES
ID

EN
C

E 
W

/ 1
80

 S
.F

.
B

A
LC

O
N

Y 
A

B
O

VE

(N
) 2

75
 S

.F
. G

A
R

A
G

E
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E

(N
)

2-
C

A
R

 G
A

R
A

G
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E

(N
)

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

TO
RY

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

6'
-4

"
10

%
 S

.B
.

6'
-4

"
10

%
 S

.B
.

6'
-4

"
10

%
 S

.B
.

6'
-4

"
10

%
 S

.B
.

15'-0" SETBACK

(E) 15'-6"

10'-0" SETBACK

(E) 40'-0"

D
N

(3
98

 S
.F

. E
XI

ST
IN

G
 W

/ N
EW

 1
38

 S
.F

. A
D

D
IT

IO
N

)
FI

N
. F

LR
. E

LE
V.

 =
 1

09
.0

0'
)

A
.P

.N
. =

 0
06

-0
11

-0
07

LO
T 

SI
ZE

 =
 7

,2
00

 S
.F

.
(E

) H
O

U
SE

 &
 G

A
R

A
G

E 
SI

ZE
 =

 2
,3

43
 S

.F
.

(F
IN

. F
LR

. E
LE

V.
 =

 1
00

.0
0'

 A
SS

U
M

ED
)

(F
IN

. F
LR

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
8.

50
')

(N
)

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

(F
IN

. F
LR

. E
LE

V.
 =

 1
00

.0
0'

)

(E
)

C
O

N
C

. P
AV

ER
 D

R
IV

EW
AY

TO
 R

EM
A

IN
(P

ER
VI

O
U

S)

(N
)

C
O

N
C

. P
AV

ER
 W

A
LK

W
AY

(P
ER

VI
O

U
S)

35'-0" DRIVEWAY

D
N

(E
) 2

00
 A

M
P 

M
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L 
PL

A
N

EL
&

 M
ET

ER
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N

(E
) G

A
S 

M
ET

ER
LO

C
AT

IO
N

30'-11"

R
E-

B
U

IL
T 

D
EC

K
(3

18
 S

.F
.)

A
1.

1

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

N
O

TE
S

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

En
tir

e 
Si

te
 P

la
n

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0
"

N
O

R
TH

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 E

R
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
N

O
TE

S:

LA
N

D
 C

LE
A

R
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 K

E
P

T 
TO

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

.  
V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 T
H

AT
 A

M
O

U
N

T
N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y 

FO
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

, A
C

C
E

S
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
.

W
IN

TE
R

 O
P

E
R

AT
IO

N
 N

O
TE

S
:  

 
O

C
TO

B
E

R
 1

5 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 A

P
R

IL
 1

5

W
H

E
N

 W
IN

TE
R

 O
P

E
R

AT
IO

N
S

 T
A

K
E

 P
LA

C
E

, T
H

E
 F

O
LL

O
W

IN
G

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 M
U

S
T 

B
E

 T
A

K
E

N
 

 
TO

P
R

E
V

E
N

T 
A

C
C

E
LE

R
AT

E
D

 E
R

O
S

IO
N

:

V
E

G
E

TA
TI

O
N

 R
E

M
O

VA
L 

B
E

TW
E

E
N

 O
C

TO
B

E
R

 1
5 

A
N

D
 A

P
R

IL
 1

5 
S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T 

P
R

E
C

E
D

E
  

 
 

S
U

B
S

E
Q

U
E

N
T 

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 O
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S
 B

Y 
M

O
R

E
 T

H
A

N
 1

5 
D

AY
S

.
M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

 P
LA

C
E

.

B
E

TW
E

E
N

 O
C

TO
B

E
R

 1
5 

A
N

D
 A

P
R

IL
 1

5 
D

IS
TU

R
B

E
D

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

S
 N

O
T 

IN
V

O
LV

E
D

 IN
 T

H
E

  
 

 
IM

M
E

D
IA

TE
 O

P
E

R
AT

IO
N

S
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
 P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 B
Y 

M
U

LC
H

IN
G

 A
N

D
/O

R
 O

TH
E

R
  

 
 

 
E

FF
E

C
TI

V
E

 M
E

A
N

S
 O

F 
S

O
IL

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

.

R
U

N
-O

FF
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 D

E
TA

IN
E

D
 O

R
 F

IL
TE

R
E

D
 B

Y 
B

E
R

M
S

, V
E

G
E

TA
TE

D
  

 
 

FI
LT

E
R

 S
TR

IP
 A

N
D

/O
R

 C
AT

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S
 T

O
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T 

TH
E

 E
S

C
A

P
E

 O
F 

S
E

D
IM

E
N

T 
FR

O
M

  
 

 
TH

E
 D

IS
TU

R
B

E
D

 A
R

E
A 

O
R

 S
IT

E
.  

TH
E

S
E

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 C

O
N

TR
O

LS
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

E
D

 B
Y 

 
 

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 A
S

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y 
TO

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

 T
H

E
IR

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T 
TH

E
  

 
 

LI
FE

 O
F 

TH
E

  P
R

O
JE

C
T.

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
 P

LA
C

E
 A

T 
TH

E
 E

N
D

 O
F 

E
A

C
H

 D
AY

S
 O

F 
 

 
 

W
O

R
K

.

TH
E

 D
IR

E
C

TO
R

 O
F 

TH
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

PA
R

TM
E

N
T 

M
AY

 S
TO

P 
O

P
E

R
AT

IO
N

S
  

 
 

D
U

R
IN

G
 P

E
R

IO
D

S
 O

F 
IN

C
LE

M
E

N
T 

W
E

AT
H

E
R

 IF
 H

E
 D

E
TE

R
M

IN
E

S
 T

H
AT

 E
R

O
S

IO
N

   
 

 
P

R
O

B
LE

M
S

 A
R

E
 N

O
T 

B
E

IN
G

 C
O

N
TR

O
LL

E
D

 A
D

E
Q

U
AT

E
LY

.

G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

S
 D

IS
TU

R
B

E
D

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 W

AT
E

R
E

D
 D

O
W

N
 T

O
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
D

U
S

T.

N
O

 E
A

R
TH

 O
R

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

 M
AT

E
R

IA
L 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 D
E

P
O

S
IT

E
D

 O
R

 P
LA

C
E

D
 W

H
E

R
E

 IT
 M

AY
 D

IR
E

C
TL

Y 
B

E
C

A
R

R
IE

D
 IN

TO
 A

 S
TR

E
A

M
, M

A
R

S
H

, S
LO

U
G

H
, L

A
G

O
O

N
 O

R
 B

O
D

Y 
O

F 
W

AT
E

R
.

M
U

LC
H

IN
G

, F
E

R
TI

LI
ZI

N
G

, W
AT

E
R

IN
G

 O
R

 O
TH

E
R

 M
E

TH
O

D
S

 M
AY

 B
E

 U
TI

LI
ZE

D
 T

O
 E

S
TA

B
LI

S
H

 N
E

W
V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
, I

F 
N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y,

 O
N

 S
LO

P
E

S
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 2

0%
, T

O
P

S
O

IL
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 S

TO
C

K
P

IL
E

D
 A

N
D

R
E

A
P

P
LI

E
D

.

A
LL

 G
R

A
D

E
D

 A
R

E
A

S
 O

F 
TH

E
 R

O
A

D
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

LA
N

TE
D

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

E
D

 A
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
B

Y 
TH

E
 C

O
U

N
TY

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

 T
O

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

E
R

O
S

IO
N

.  
A

LL
 C

U
T 

A
N

D
 F

IL
L 

S
LO

P
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 S

TA
B

IL
IZ

E
D

.

C
U

T 
S

LO
P

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
E

X
C

E
E

D
 2

:1
.

U
TI

LI
TY

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

R
E

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

C
AT

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E
 A

R
E

A 
O

F 
R

O
U

G
H

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 F
O

R
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
S

 T
O

E
LI

M
IN

AT
E

 T
R

E
N

C
H

IN
G

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 C

U
T 

S
LO

P
E

S
 W

H
E

R
E

 F
E

A
S

IB
LE

.

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TE
D

 A
C

R
O

S
S

 C
U

T/
FI

LL
 L

IN
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 C
O

M
PA

C
TI

O
N

 T
E

S
TS

 T
A

K
E

N
 IN

 T
H

E
N

AT
IV

E
 (C

U
T)

 A
R

E
A 

A
S

 W
E

LL
 A

S
 T

E
S

TS
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 F

IL
L 

A
R

E
A

.  
TE

S
TS

 S
H

A
LL

 M
E

E
T 

90
%

 O
F 

TH
E

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

D
E

N
S

IT
Y 

P
E

R
 A

S
TM

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 D

15
57

.

A
LL

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 S

H
A

LL
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 1
%

 S
LO

P
E

 T
O

 D
IS

P
O

S
A

L 
P

O
IN

TS
.

A
LL

 D
O

W
N

S
P

O
U

TS
 T

O
 E

M
P

TY
 IN

TO
 D

R
A

IN
 L

IN
E

S
 U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 A
N

D
 T

O
 D

IS
S

P
E

R
TI

O
N

 P
IT

S
.

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10
.

11
.

12
.

13
.

14
.

15
.

16
.

17
.

PL
U

M
B

IN
G

 N
O

TE
S:

IN
 E

V
E

R
Y 

C
A

S
E

 W
H

E
R

E
 T

H
E

 O
U

TL
E

T 
O

F 
A 

TR
A

P 
FO

R
 A

 P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 F
IX

TU
R

E
 IS

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 O
R

 L
O

C
AT

E
D

 A
T 

A
N

E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

 W
H

IC
H

 IS
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 T

W
O

 F
E

E
T 

A
B

O
V

E
 T

H
E

 R
IM

 O
F 

TH
E

 N
E

A
R

E
S

T 
M

A
N

H
O

LE
 U

P
H

IL
L 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E

 P
O

IN
T 

O
F

C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
W

E
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
 P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E

W
E

R
 IN

 A
N

Y 
N

E
W

 O
R

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 S

Y
S

TE
M

,
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 T

Y
P

E
S

 O
F 

B
A

C
K

W
AT

E
R

 V
A

LV
E

, R
E

LI
E

F 
V

E
N

T 
A

N
D

 C
LE

A
N

-O
U

T 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
W

E
R

 A
T 

TH
E

 P
O

IN
T 

O
F 

LO
W

E
S

T 
E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

IT
E

 O
U

TS
ID

E
O

F 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 O

R
 A

T 
S

U
C

H
 O

TH
E

R
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 A

S
 IS

 P
E

R
M

IT
TE

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 IN

S
P

E
C

TO
R

, P
R

O
V

ID
IN

G
 T

H
AT

 A
T

A
N

Y 
S

U
C

H
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
, T

H
E

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

 IS
 N

O
T 

LE
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 T

W
O

 F
E

E
T 

B
E

LO
W

 T
H

E
 L

O
W

E
S

T
TR

A
P 

O
U

TL
E

T 
S

E
R

V
E

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
W

E
R

.

TH
E

 IN
S

TA
LL

AT
IO

N
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
N

S
IS

T 
O

F 
A

N
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 F

R
E

S
H

 A
IR

 IN
LE

T 
A

N
D

 A
 "Y

" B
R

A
N

C
H

 O
R

 C
O

M
B

IN
AT

IO
N

 F
IT

TI
N

G
IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 IN

 S
E

Q
U

E
N

C
E

 IN
 T

H
E

 L
IN

E
 O

F 
FL

O
W

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
.  

TH
E

 V
E

N
T 

FR
O

M
 T

H
IS

 F
R

E
S

H
 A

IR
 IN

LE
T 

S
H

A
LL

B
E

 P
IP

E
D

 T
O

 T
H

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 A

N
D

 C
A

P
P

E
D

 W
IT

H
 A

 V
E

N
T 

C
A

P.
  P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 B
Y 

E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

A
B

O
V

E
 T

H
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 O
R

 B
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 M
E

A
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
V

E
N

TI
N

G
 T

H
E

 O
B

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 V

E
N

T 
O

P
E

N
IN

G
 O

R
 T

H
E

FL
O

W
 O

F 
W

TA
E

R
 T

H
E

R
E

IN
.  

TH
E

 C
LE

A
N

-O
U

T 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

LA
C

E
D

 A
S

 C
LO

S
E

 T
O

 T
H

E
 V

A
LV

E
 A

S
 IS

 P
R

A
C

TI
C

A
L 

A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
B

E
 P

IP
E

D
 T

O
 W

IT
H

IN
 O

N
E

 F
O

O
T 

O
F 

TH
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

 A
N

D
 C

LO
S

E
D

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 C

LE
A

N
-O

U
T 

P
LU

G
.

E
V

E
R

Y 
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 IN

S
TA

LL
AT

IO
N

 W
H

IC
H

 IN
C

LU
D

E
S

 A
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 F

IX
TU

R
E

 T
R

A
P 

O
U

TL
E

T 
W

H
IC

H
 IS

 L
E

S
S

 T
H

A
N

 T
W

O
FE

E
T 

A
B

O
V

E
 T

H
E

 R
IM

 O
F 

TH
E

 N
E

A
R

E
S

T 
M

A
N

H
O

LE
 U

P
H

IL
L 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E

 P
O

IN
T 

O
F 

C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

E
W

E
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
 P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E

W
E

R
 IS

 H
E

R
E

B
Y 

D
E

C
LA

R
E

D
 T

O
 B

E
 D

A
N

G
E

R
O

U
S

, U
N

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y 
A

N
D

 A
 M

E
N

A
C

E
 T

O
 L

IF
E

,
H

E
A

LT
H

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

.  
W

H
E

N
E

V
E

R
 IT

 S
H

A
LL

 C
O

M
E

 T
O

 T
H

E
 A

TT
E

N
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
S

P
E

C
TO

R
 T

H
AT

 S
U

C
H

A
N

D
 IN

S
TA

LL
AT

IO
N

 E
X

IS
TS

, H
E

 O
R

 S
H

E
 IS

 H
E

R
E

B
Y 

E
M

P
O

W
E

R
E

D
 T

O
 O

R
D

E
R

 A
N

D
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
 T

H
AT

 S
U

C
H

 P
LU

M
B

IN
G

O
U

TL
E

T 
B

E
 IM

M
E

D
IA

TE
LY

 P
LU

G
G

E
D

 O
R

 C
A

P
P

E
D

, O
R

 T
H

AT
 T

H
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

D
E

S
C

R
IB

E
D

 IN
 T

H
E

 P
R

E
C

E
D

IN
G

PA
R

A
G

R
A

P
H

 O
F 

TH
IS

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 B
E

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 IM
M

E
D

IA
TE

LY
. (

P
G

M
C

 1
8.

04
.0

10
(d

))
.

1. 2.

Page 96 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

A
1.

2

B
E

S
T 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
S

(B
M

P
'S

)

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

12

3 4

ST
O

C
K

PI
LE

 M
A

N
A

G
M

EN
T 

D
ET

A
IL

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
W

A
ST

E 
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
D

ET
A

IL

SA
N

IT
A

RY
 W

A
ST

E 
D

ET
A

IL
ER

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

-  
FI

B
ER

 R
O

LL
 D

ET
A

IL

A
LL

 W
AT

E
R

 C
LO

S
E

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 A
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
 F

LU
S

H
 V

O
LU

M
E

 O
F 

1.
28

 G
A

LL
O

N
S

, A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 M

E
E

T 
O

R
 E

X
C

E
E

D
 T

H
E

 M
IN

IM
U

M
P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 C

R
IT

E
R

IA
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
E

D
 F

O
R

 C
E

R
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
H

IG
H

-E
FF

IC
IE

N
C

Y 
TO

IL
E

TS
 U

N
D

E
R

 T
H

E
 W

AT
E

R
 S

E
N

S
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
A

D
O

P
TE

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 E

PA
.

P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 F
IX

TU
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 F

IT
TI

N
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 M

E
E

T 
TH

E
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S
 R

E
FE

R
E

N
C

E
D

 IN
 C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

N
 4

.3
03

.3
W

AT
ER

 C
LO

SE
TS

 
 

= 
1.

28
 G

P
F

SH
O

W
ER

H
EA

D
S 

 
= 

M
A

X
. 2

.0
 G

P
M

 @
 8

0 
P

S
I

M
U

LT
IP

LE
 S

H
O

W
ER

H
EA

D
S 

= 
2.

0 
G

P
M

 @
 8

0 
P

S
I C

O
M

B
IN

E
D

LA
VA

TO
R

IE
S 

FA
U

C
ET

S 
 

= 
M

A
X

. 1
.2

 G
P

M
 @

 6
0 

P
S

I
K

IT
C

H
EN

 F
A

U
C

ET
S 

 
= 

M
A

X
. 1

.8
 G

P
M

 @
 6

0 
P

S
I

IN
 A

U
TO

M
AT

IC
 IR

R
IG

AT
IO

N
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 C
O

N
TR

O
LL

E
R

S
 F

O
R

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

 A
R

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 B
U

IL
D

E
R

 A
N

D
 IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 A

T 
TH

E
 T

IM
E

O
F 

FI
N

A
L 

IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

, T
H

E
Y 

S
H

A
LL

 C
O

M
P

LY
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 O

F 
C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.3

04
.1

M
IN

IM
U

M
 5

0%
 O

F 
TH

E
 N

O
N

-H
A

ZA
R

D
O

U
S

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 O
R

 D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 D
E

B
R

IS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
C

Y
C

LE
D

 A
N

D
/O

R
 S

A
LV

A
G

E
D

, U
N

LE
S

S
A 

LO
C

A
L 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 W

A
S

TE
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 IN

 M
O

R
E

 S
TR

IN
G

E
N

T.
  W

H
E

R
E

 T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
L

JU
R

IS
D

IC
TI

O
N

 D
O

E
S

 N
O

T 
H

AV
E

 A
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
TE

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

, A
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
TE

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

P
LA

N
 C

O
M

P
LY

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.4

08
.2

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 S
U

B
M

IT
TE

D
 F

O
R

 A
P

P
R

O
VA

L

AT
 T

H
E

 T
IM

E
 O

F 
FI

N
A

L 
IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
, A

N
 "O

P
E

R
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

N
U

A
L"

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
LA

C
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 T

H
AT

C
O

N
TA

IN
S

 T
H

E
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
B

LE
 IT

E
M

S
 L

IS
TE

D
 IN

 C
G

B
S

C
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.4
10

.1
.

IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 G
A

S
 F

IR
E

P
LA

C
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 D

IR
E

C
T-

V
E

N
T 

S
E

A
LE

D
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

O
N

 T
Y

P
E

 (C
G

B
S

C
 4

.5
03

.1
)

D
U

C
TS

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 R

E
LA

TE
D

 A
IR

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

S
H

A
LL

 H
AV

E
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 W

IT
H

 T
A

P
E

, P
LA

S
TI

C
, S

H
E

E
T 

M
E

TA
L

O
R

 O
TH

E
R

 A
C

C
E

P
TA

B
LE

 M
E

TH
O

D
S

. (
C

G
B

S
C

 4
.5

04
.1

)

FI
N

IS
H

 M
AT

E
R

IA
LS

, C
A

R
P

E
T 

S
Y

S
TE

M
S

, R
E

S
IL

IE
N

T 
FL

O
O

R
IN

G
, A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 W
O

O
D

 P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
M

P
LY

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

P
O

LL
U

TA
N

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 O

F 
C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.5

04
.2

 A
N

D
 4

.5
04

.3
.

C
A

R
P

E
T 

A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 5
0 

(V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
C

A
R

P
E

T 
PA

D
 A

D
H

E
S

IV
E

 =
 5

0 
(V

O
C

 L
IM

IT
)

W
O

O
D

 F
LO

O
R

IN
G

 A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 1
00

 (V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
S

U
B

FL
O

O
R

 A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 5
0 

(V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
D

R
Y

W
A

LL
 A

D
H

E
S

IV
E

 =
 5

0 
(V

O
C

 L
IM

IT
)

M
O

IS
TU

R
E

 C
O

N
TE

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

LL
 A

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 F
R

A
M

IN
G

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 V

E
R

IF
IE

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 E

N
C

LO
S

U
R

E
, F

R
A

M
IN

G
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
 E

N
C

LO
S

E
D

 W
H

E
N

 M
O

IS
TU

R
E

 C
O

N
TE

N
T 

E
X

C
E

E
D

S
 1

9%
 (C

G
B

S
C

 4
.5

05
.3

)

B
AT

H
R

O
O

M
 E

XH
A

U
ST

 F
A

N
S 

SH
A

LL
 C

O
M

PL
Y 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

:
E

N
E

R
G

Y 
S

TA
R

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
T 

A
N

D
 B

E
 D

U
C

TE
D

 T
O

 T
E

R
M

IN
AT

E
 O

U
TS

ID
E

 O
F 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

.  
U

N
LE

S
S

 F
U

N
C

TI
O

N
IN

G
 A

S
 A

 P
A

R
T 

O
F 

A 
W

H
O

LE
H

O
U

S
E

 V
E

N
TI

LA
TI

O
N

 S
Y

S
TE

M
, F

A
N

S
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
 C

O
N

TR
O

LL
E

D
 B

Y 
A 

H
U

M
ID

IS
TA

T 
W

H
IC

H
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
A

D
IL

Y 
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

LE
.  

H
U

M
ID

IS
TA

T
C

O
N

TR
O

LS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

A
PA

B
LE

 O
F 

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
T 

B
E

TW
E

E
N

 A
 R

E
LA

TI
V

E
 H

U
M

ID
IT

Y 
R

A
N

G
E

 O
F 

50
-8

0%
.

D
U

C
T 

S
Y

S
TE

M
S

 A
R

E
 S

IZ
E

D
, D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T 
IS

 S
E

LE
C

TE
D

 P
E

R
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.5
07

.2
.  

H
VA

C
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
R

S
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
TR

A
IN

E
D

 A
N

D
 C

E
R

TI
FI

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

P
E

C
IA

L 
IN

S
P

E
C

TO
R

S
 E

M
P

LO
Y

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 E
N

FO
R

C
IN

G
 A

G
E

N
C

Y 
M

U
S

T 
B

E
 Q

U
A

LI
FI

E
D

.

P
R

O
TE

C
T 

A
N

N
U

LA
R

 S
PA

C
E

S
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
E

S
, E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

C
A

B
LE

S
, C

O
N

D
U

IT
S

 O
R

 O
TH

E
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 A
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 W
A

LL
S

 A
G

A
IN

S
T

TH
E

 P
A

S
S

A
G

E
 O

F 
R

O
D

E
N

TS
 (4

.4
06

.1
).

C
O

V
E

R
 D

U
C

T 
O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 R

E
LA

TE
D

 A
IR

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T 
O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 (4

.5
04

.1
).

PA
IN

T,
 S

TA
IN

S
 A

N
D

 O
TH

E
R

 C
O

AT
IN

G
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
 C

O
M

P
LI

A
N

T 
W

IT
H

 V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

S
 (4

.5
04

.2
.2

).

A
E

R
O

S
O

L 
PA

IN
TS

 A
N

D
 C

O
AT

IN
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
T 

W
IT

H
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T 

W
E

IG
H

TE
D

 M
IR

 L
IM

IT
S

 F
O

R
 R

O
C

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 T

O
X

IC
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
S

 (4
.5

04
.2

.3
). 

 V
E

R
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

.

M
IN

IM
U

M
 8

0%
 O

F 
FL

O
O

R
 A

R
E

A 
R

E
C

E
IV

IN
G

 R
E

S
IL

IE
N

T 
FL

O
O

R
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
M

P
LY

 W
IT

H
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.5
04

.4
.

PA
R

TI
C

LE
B

O
A

R
D

, M
E

D
IU

M
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y 
FI

B
E

R
B

O
A

R
D

 (M
D

F)
 A

N
D

 H
A

R
D

W
O

O
D

 P
LY

W
O

O
D

 U
S

E
D

 IN
 IN

TE
R

IO
R

 F
IN

IS
H

 S
Y

S
TE

M
S

 S
H

A
LL

C
O

M
P

LY
 W

IT
H

 L
O

W
 F

O
R

M
A

LD
E

H
Y

D
E

 E
M

IS
S

IO
N

S
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S
 (4

.5
04

.5
).

IN
S

TA
LL

 C
A

P
IL

LA
R

Y 
B

R
E

A
K

 A
N

D
 V

A
P

O
R

 R
E

TA
R

D
E

R
 A

T 
S

LA
B

 O
N

 G
R

A
D

E
 F

O
U

N
D

AT
IO

N
S

 (4
.5

05
.2

).

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10
.

11
.

12
.

13
.

14
.

15
.

16
.

17
.

18
.20
19

 C
A

LG
R

EE
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
:

Page 97 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

L

W
CS

L
W

C

SH
O

W
ER

L
W

C

SH
O

W
ER

W
H

FA
U

L

D
W S

R
EF

R
IG

R
A

N
G

E

O
VE

N
S

S

D
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 W

A
LL

S 
TO

 R
EM

A
IN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 W

A
LL

S 
TO

 D
EM

O
LI

SH

LE
G

EN
D

:

(E
)

LI
VI

N
G

 R
O

O
M

(E
)

EN
TR

Y

(E
)

B
ED

R
O

O
M

(E
)

H
A

LL

(E
)

K
IT

C
H

EN

(E
)

D
IN

IN
G

(E
)

2-
C

A
R

 G
A

R
A

G
E

(E
)

M
A

ST
ER

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

(E
)

B
AT

H

(E
)

B
AT

H(E
)

B
ED

R
O

O
M

(E
)

FA
M

IL
Y 

R
O

O
M

(E
)

PW
D

R

(E
)

H
A

LL(E
)

D
EC

K

A
1.

3

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

Ex
is

tin
g 

Fl
oo

r &
 D

em
ol

iti
on

 P
la

n
1/

4"
 =

 1
'-0

"

Ex
is

tin
g 

So
ut

h 
El

ev
at

io
n

Ex
is

tin
g 

So
ut

h 
El

ev
at

io
n

Ex
is

tin
g 

So
ut

hw
es

t E
le

va
tio

n

Ex
is

tin
g 

R
es

id
en

ce
 P

ho
to

s

Page 98 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

32
'-2

"

6'
-7

"
3'

-1
1"

2'
-1

1"
2'

-8
"

2'
-8

"
2'

-1
1"

3'
-1

1"
6'

-7
"

19
'-5

"

9'
-6

"
9'

-1
1"

4'
-8

"

4'-8"

67'-10"

19'-6"39'-3"9'-1"

7'-11"
1'-2"

6'-4" 4'-2 1/2"
1'-9 1/2"

2'-3"
1'-10"

8'-8" 14'-2"

3'-2" 11'-0"

51
'-7

"

6'-1 1/2" 4'-5" 4'-5" 4'-6 1/2"

67'-10"

9'-1" 58'-9"

4'-3" 14'-11" 2'-5" 4'-8 1/2" 5'-5 1/2"

9'-5"

2'
-5

"

3'-6"

1'
-1

"
1'

-9
"

7'
-6

"
3'

-7
"

51
'-7

"

19
'-1

0"
31

'-9
"

4'
-6

"
5'

-5
"

5'
-5

"
4'

-6
"

3'
-1

0"
5'

-5
"

5'
-5

"
3'

-1
0"

6'
-7

 1
/2

"
6'

-7
 1

/2
"

4'
-0

"
9'

-1
"

5'
-5

"
5'

-8
"

1'
-9

"
1'

-6
"

10
'-1

1"

8'-11" 2'-8" 4'-10" 3'-6" 2'-5" 3'-8"

20'-9"

6'-7" 14'-2"

4'-0" 2'-7" 2'-11" 2'-6" 4'-5" 4'-4"

9'-1"

9'-1" 20'-9"

4'-4 1/2" 12'-0" 4'-4 1/2"

33
'-1

0"

14
'-0

"
19

'-1
0"

4'
-6

"
5'

-5
"

5'
-5

"
4'

-6
"

9'
-3

"
4'

-9
"

33
'-1

0"

3'
-1

0 
1/

2"
3'

-1
1"

4'
-3

"
3'

-1
1"

3'
-5

 1
/2

"
3'

-9
"

3'
-1

1"
6'

-9
"

4'
-0

"

8'
-0

"

5'
-8

"

4'-0"

7'
-8

"

4'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

27
5 

sq
 ft

18
0 

sq
 ft

13
8 

sq
 ft

(E
)

B
ED

R
O

O
M

(E
)

B
ED

R
O

O
M

(N
)

ST
U

D
Y

(N
)

M
A

ST
ER

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

(N
)

M
A

ST
ER

 B
AT

H

(N
)

D
R

ES
SI

N
G

SH
O

W
ER

W
C

C
LO

SE
T

(N
)

2-
C

A
R

 G
A

R
A

G
E

(N
)

D
IN

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

(E
)

LI
VI

N
G

 R
O

O
M

42
"

R
EF

R
IG

PA
N

TR
Y

PA
N

TR
Y

U
PP

ER
S

UPPERS

R
EM

O
D

EL
ED

K
IT

C
H

EN

(N
)

B
AT

H
(N

)
FA

M
IL

Y 
R

O
O

M
SH

O
W

ER

D
N

U
P

(N
)

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 B
A

LC
O

N
Y

G
A

R
A

G
E 

C
A

B
IN

ET
RY

ST
O

R
A

G
E

U
N

D
ER

ST
A

IR
S

S

30
"

D
B

L
O

VE
N

S

42
"

C
O

O
K

TO
P

C
O

AT
S

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 W

A
LL

S 
TO

 R
EM

A
IN

N
EW

 W
A

LL
S 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D

LE
G

EN
D

:

W
A

LL
S 

D
EM

O
LI

SH
ED

(1
9'

-0
" 

x 
15

'-0
") (1

9'
-0

" 
x 

22
'-0

")

L
W

C

(1
9'

-0
" 

x 
23

'-5
")

(1
3'

-7
" 

x 
5'

-0
")

L

W
A

SH
ER

D
RY

ER
(N

)
LA

U
N

D
RY

C
LO

SE
T

(E
)

SK
YL

IG
H

T

R
EM

O
D

EL
ED

B
AT

H

W
C

L
LI

N
EN

S

SH
O

W
ER

C
LO

SE
T

R
E-

B
U

IL
D

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 D

EC
K

D
N

C
LO

SE
T

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

CENTERLINE

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E

D
W

S

TR
A

SH

L

ST
O

R

M
W CABINETRY

UPPERS

L

VA
N

IT
Y

L
ST

O
R

A
1.

4

N
E

W
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

S A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

N
ew

 F
lo

or
 P

la
n 

(M
ai

n 
Le

ve
l)

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

N
ew

 F
lo

or
 P

la
n 

(U
pp

er
 L

ev
el

)

Ju
ly

 1
6,

 2
02

0 
(R

ev
is

io
ns

)

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

Page 99 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

8'-0"8'-0"

8'-0"

23'-10"

3'-6"

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-0

"

(E
)

8'-0"

3'-6"

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

1'
-6

"

(E
)

(E
)

2'
-0

"

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E
N

EW
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

R
EB

U
IL

D
 U

PS
TA

IR
S

N
EW

 U
PS

TA
IR

S 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N

N
EW

 G
A

R
A

G
E 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E

R
EB

U
IL

D
 U

PS
TA

IR
S

N
EW

 U
PS

TA
IR

S 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N

8'-0" 8'-0"

8'-0"

8'-0"

23'-0"

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

M
A

X.
 R

ID
G

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
 G

R
A

D
E

12
4

12
4

FI
XE

D
W

IN

FI
XE

D
W

IN
FI

XE
D

W
IN

FI
XE

D
W

IN

FI
XE

D
FI

XE
D

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

(N
)

W
IN

TE
M

P 
G

LA
SS

(N
)

W
IN

TE
M

P 
G

LA
SS

(N
)

W
IN

TE
M

P 
G

LA
SS

FI
XE

D

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

TE
M

P
G

LA
SS

(N
)

W
IN

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

PR
O

VI
D

E 
(N

) R
O

O
F

C
R

IC
K

ET
 F

O
R

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E

PR
O

VI
D

E 
(N

) R
O

O
F

C
R

IC
K

ET
 F

O
R

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E

(E
) P

LA
TE

FI
N

. F
LR

.
7/

8"
 T

H
K

. C
EM

EN
T 

PL
A

ST
ER

 F
IN

. O
/

(1
) L

AY
ER

 G
R

A
D

E 
"D

" 
B

LD
G

. P
A

PE
R

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

(N
) P

O
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
ED

M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G

(N
) P

O
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
ED

M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G
R

EP
LA

C
E 

(E
) W

IN
 W

/ N
EW

(S
A

M
E 

SI
ZE

)

FI
XE

D
W

IN

FI
XE

D
W

IN
FI

XE
D

W
IN

FI
XE

D
W

IN

(N
)

W
IN

D
O

W
(N

)
W

IN
D

O
W

(N
)

W
IN

D
O

W
(N

)
W

IN
D

O
W

FI
XE

D
W

IN
FI

XE
D

W
IN

(E
)

FI
XE

D
 W

IN
(E

)
FI

XE
D

 W
IN

(N
)

SE
C

TI
O

N
A

L 
G

LA
SS

 G
A

R
A

G
E 

D
O

O
R

(N
)

W
IN

D
O

W
(N

)
W

IN
D

O
W

(N
)

W
IN

D
O

W
(N

)
W

IN
D

O
W

(N
)

EN
TR

Y
D

O
O

R
(N

)
W

IN
(N

)
W

IN

12
4

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E
7/

8"
 T

H
K

. C
EM

EN
T 

PL
A

ST
ER

 F
IN

. O
/

(1
) L

AY
ER

 G
R

A
D

E 
"D

" 
B

LD
G

. P
A

PE
R

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

G
A

R
A

G
E 

PL
AT

E

G
A

R
A

G
E 

FI
N

. F
LR

.PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

M
A

X.
 R

ID
G

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
 G

R
A

D
E

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

1. 2. 3.N
O

TE
S:

LI
N

TE
L

W
IN

D
O

W
R

O
U

G
H

-IN
O

PE
N

IN
G

LI
N

TE
L

W
IN

D
O

W
R

O
U

G
H

-IN
O

PE
N

IN
G

SE
E 

N
O

TE
S 

B
EL

O
W

ST
EP

 1
ST

EP
 2

ST
EP

 3
ST

EP
 4

LI
N

E-
W

IR
E 

W
H

EN
 U

SE
D

 A
S 

B
A

C
K

IN
G

 T
O

 S
U

PP
O

R
T 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

B
EN

EA
TH

 W
IR

E 
LA

TH
 (N

ET
TI

N
G

) F
O

R
 P

O
R

TL
A

N
D

 C
EM

EN
T 

(S
TU

C
C

O
),

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
ED

, A
S 

FO
LL

O
W

S:

W
IR

E 
G

A
U

G
E,

 S
PA

C
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S.

PE
R

IP
H

ER
A

L 
FL

A
SH

IN
G

 A
T 

A
LL

 E
D

G
ES

 O
F 

W
A

LL
 O

PE
N

IN
G

S 
M

U
ST

C
O

VE
R

 T
H

E 
W

IR
E 

B
A

C
K

IN
G

.

N
O

 A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

D
EV

IC
ES

 N
O

R
 T

H
E 

W
IR

E 
B

A
C

K
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
VE

R
O

R
   

   
   

 P
EN

ET
R

AT
E 

TH
E 

FL
A

SH
IN

G
 M

AT
ER

IA
L.

M
O

IS
TO

P 
FL

A
SH

IN
G

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 9

" 
W

ID
E.

PR
O

VI
D

E 
SE

A
LA

N
T 

A
S 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 B
Y 

W
IN

D
O

W
 M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 IN

ST
A

LL
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

W
IN

D
O

W
 O

R
 S

LI
D

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

.

C
O

M
M

EN
C

IN
G

 A
T 

TH
E 

B
O

TT
O

M
 (S

O
LE

PL
AT

E)
 O

F 
TH

E 
W

A
LL

, L
AY

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

U
N

D
ER

 S
IL

L 
ST

R
IP

.

N
O

TE
:

C
U

T 
A

N
Y 

EX
C

ES
S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

 T
H

AT
M

AY
 E

XT
EN

D
 A

B
O

VE
 T

H
E 

SI
LL

 F
LA

N
G

E
LI

N
E 

O
N

 E
A

C
H

 S
ID

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
O

PE
N

IN
G

.

D
O

 N
O

T 
SP

LI
C

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

A
PE

R
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
TA

LL
Y 

SO
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
PA

PE
R

 W
IL

L
LA

P 
O

VE
R

 T
H

E 
JA

M
B

 S
TR

IP
S.

  I
N

ST
A

LL
EX

C
ES

SI
VE

 L
IN

ES
 O

F 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

A
PE

R
 (B

,
C

, D
, E

TC
.) 

O
VE

R
 J

A
M

B
 A

N
D

 H
EA

D
FL

A
N

G
ES

, L
A

PP
IN

G
 E

A
C

H
 C

O
U

R
SE

.

IN
ST

A
LL

 W
IN

D
O

W
 IN

TO
 R

O
U

G
H

 O
PE

N
IN

G
W

IT
H

 S
IL

L 
A

N
D

 J
A

M
B

 F
LA

N
G

ES
 O

VE
R

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

IN
ST

A
LL

ED
 F

LA
SH

IN
G

.
AT

TA
C

H
 H

EA
D

 F
LA

SH
IN

G
 O

VE
R

 T
H

E
W

IN
D

O
W

 F
LA

N
G

E.

AT
TA

C
H

 J
A

M
B

 S
TR

IP
S 

W
IT

H
 S

ID
E 

ED
G

E
EV

EN
 W

IT
H

 R
O

U
G

H
-J

A
M

B
 F

R
A

M
IN

G
, S

TA
R

T
ST

R
IP

 1
" 

B
EL

O
W

 L
O

W
ER

 E
D

G
E 

O
F 

SI
LL

ST
R

IP
 A

N
D

 E
XT

EN
D

 4
" 

A
B

O
VE

 L
O

W
ER

ED
G

E 
O

F 
LI

N
TE

L.

AT
TA

C
H

 S
IL

L 
ST

R
IP

 W
IT

H
 T

O
P 

ED
G

E 
LE

VE
L

W
IT

H
 R

O
U

G
H

 S
IL

L:
 E

XT
EN

D
 B

EY
O

N
D

 E
D

G
E

O
F 

R
O

U
G

H
 O

PE
N

IN
G

 A
T 

LE
A

ST
 8

".
 S

EC
U

R
E

A
LL

 M
O

IS
TO

P 
O

R
 S

IM
IL

A
R

 A
PP

R
O

VE
D

FL
A

SH
IN

G
 M

AT
ER

IA
L 

W
IT

H
 G

A
LV

A
N

IZ
ED

N
A

IL
S 

O
R

 P
O

W
ER

-D
R

IV
EN

 S
TA

PL
ES

.

ABC

A
1.

5

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S
W

IN
D

O
W

 F
LA

S
H

IN
G

 D
E

TA
IL

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

W
in

do
w

 F
la

sh
in

g 
D

et
ai

ls
1 2

N
ew

 N
or

th
 E

xt
er

io
r E

le
va

tio
n

1/
4"

 =
 1

'-0
"

N
ew

 S
ou

th
 E

xt
er

io
r E

le
va

tio
n

1/
4"

 =
 1

'-0
"

Page 100 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

23'-10"

8'-0"8'-0"

3'-6"

8'-0"

8'-0"

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-0

"

1'
-6

"

8'-0" 8'-0"

23'-10"

3'-6"

3'-6"

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'
-6

"

8'-0"

N
EW

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E
N

EW
 G

A
R

A
G

E 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

R
EB

U
IL

D
 U

PS
TA

IR
S

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

FI
N

. F
LR

.

PL
AT

E

M
A

X.
 R

ID
G

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
 G

R
A

D
E

12
3

12
3

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

S.
C

. D
O

O
R

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

PL
AT

E 
@

 G
A

R
A

G
E

FI
N

. G
A

R
A

G
E 

SL
A

B

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

FI
XE

D
 W

IN

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E
7/

8"
 T

H
K

. C
EM

EN
T 

PL
A

ST
ER

 F
IN

. O
/

(1
) L

AY
ER

 G
R

A
D

E 
"D

" 
B

LD
G

. P
A

PE
R

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

R
EP

LA
C

E 
(E

) W
IN

 W
/ N

EW
(S

A
M

E 
SI

ZE
)

(N
)

W
IN

(N
) P

O
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
ED

M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

50
 Y

R
. C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 R

O
O

FI
N

G
 O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 3

0#
 F

EL
T 

PA
PE

R
(C

O
LO

R
: C

H
A

R
C

O
A

L)

(N
)

W
IN

(N
)

W
IN

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

PL
AT

E

FI
N

. F
LR

.

M
A

X.
 R

ID
G

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
 G

R
A

D
E

7/
8"

 T
H

K
. C

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
ST

ER
 F

IN
. O

/
(1

) L
AY

ER
 G

R
A

D
E 

"D
" 

B
LD

G
. P

A
PE

R
 A

N
D

 W
IR

E

(E
) P

LA
TE

FI
N

. F
LR

.

(N
) P

O
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
ED

M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G

(N
) P

O
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
ED

M
ET

A
L 

R
A

IL
IN

G

1. 2. 3.N
O

TE
S:

LI
N

TE
L

W
IN

D
O

W
R

O
U

G
H

-IN
O

PE
N

IN
G

LI
N

TE
L

W
IN

D
O

W
R

O
U

G
H

-IN
O

PE
N

IN
G

SE
E 

N
O

TE
S 

B
EL

O
W

ST
EP

 1
ST

EP
 2

ST
EP

 3
ST

EP
 4

LI
N

E-
W

IR
E 

W
H

EN
 U

SE
D

 A
S 

B
A

C
K

IN
G

 T
O

 S
U

PP
O

R
T 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

B
EN

EA
TH

 W
IR

E 
LA

TH
 (N

ET
TI

N
G

) F
O

R
 P

O
R

TL
A

N
D

 C
EM

EN
T 

(S
TU

C
C

O
),

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
ED

, A
S 

FO
LL

O
W

S:

W
IR

E 
G

A
U

G
E,

 S
PA

C
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

SH
A

LL
 B

E 
IN

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S.

PE
R

IP
H

ER
A

L 
FL

A
SH

IN
G

 A
T 

A
LL

 E
D

G
ES

 O
F 

W
A

LL
 O

PE
N

IN
G

S 
M

U
ST

C
O

VE
R

 T
H

E 
W

IR
E 

B
A

C
K

IN
G

.

N
O

 A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

D
EV

IC
ES

 N
O

R
 T

H
E 

W
IR

E 
B

A
C

K
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
VE

R
O

R
   

   
   

 P
EN

ET
R

AT
E 

TH
E 

FL
A

SH
IN

G
 M

AT
ER

IA
L.

M
O

IS
TO

P 
FL

A
SH

IN
G

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 9

" 
W

ID
E.

PR
O

VI
D

E 
SE

A
LA

N
T 

A
S 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 B
Y 

W
IN

D
O

W
 M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 IN

ST
A

LL
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

W
IN

D
O

W
 O

R
 S

LI
D

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

.

C
O

M
M

EN
C

IN
G

 A
T 

TH
E 

B
O

TT
O

M
 (S

O
LE

PL
AT

E)
 O

F 
TH

E 
W

A
LL

, L
AY

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

U
N

D
ER

 S
IL

L 
ST

R
IP

.

N
O

TE
:

C
U

T 
A

N
Y 

EX
C

ES
S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
A

PE
R

 T
H

AT
M

AY
 E

XT
EN

D
 A

B
O

VE
 T

H
E 

SI
LL

 F
LA

N
G

E
LI

N
E 

O
N

 E
A

C
H

 S
ID

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
O

PE
N

IN
G

.

D
O

 N
O

T 
SP

LI
C

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

A
PE

R
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
TA

LL
Y 

SO
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
PA

PE
R

 W
IL

L
LA

P 
O

VE
R

 T
H

E 
JA

M
B

 S
TR

IP
S.

  I
N

ST
A

LL
EX

C
ES

SI
VE

 L
IN

ES
 O

F 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

A
PE

R
 (B

,
C

, D
, E

TC
.) 

O
VE

R
 J

A
M

B
 A

N
D

 H
EA

D
FL

A
N

G
ES

, L
A

PP
IN

G
 E

A
C

H
 C

O
U

R
SE

.

IN
ST

A
LL

 W
IN

D
O

W
 IN

TO
 R

O
U

G
H

 O
PE

N
IN

G
W

IT
H

 S
IL

L 
A

N
D

 J
A

M
B

 F
LA

N
G

ES
 O

VE
R

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

IN
ST

A
LL

ED
 F

LA
SH

IN
G

.
AT

TA
C

H
 H

EA
D

 F
LA

SH
IN

G
 O

VE
R

 T
H

E
W

IN
D

O
W

 F
LA

N
G

E.

AT
TA

C
H

 J
A

M
B

 S
TR

IP
S 

W
IT

H
 S

ID
E 

ED
G

E
EV

EN
 W

IT
H

 R
O

U
G

H
-J

A
M

B
 F

R
A

M
IN

G
, S

TA
R

T
ST

R
IP

 1
" 

B
EL

O
W

 L
O

W
ER

 E
D

G
E 

O
F 

SI
LL

ST
R

IP
 A

N
D

 E
XT

EN
D

 4
" 

A
B

O
VE

 L
O

W
ER

ED
G

E 
O

F 
LI

N
TE

L.

AT
TA

C
H

 S
IL

L 
ST

R
IP

 W
IT

H
 T

O
P 

ED
G

E 
LE

VE
L

W
IT

H
 R

O
U

G
H

 S
IL

L:
 E

XT
EN

D
 B

EY
O

N
D

 E
D

G
E

O
F 

R
O

U
G

H
 O

PE
N

IN
G

 A
T 

LE
A

ST
 8

".
 S

EC
U

R
E

A
LL

 M
O

IS
TO

P 
O

R
 S

IM
IL

A
R

 A
PP

R
O

VE
D

FL
A

SH
IN

G
 M

AT
ER

IA
L 

W
IT

H
 G

A
LV

A
N

IZ
ED

N
A

IL
S 

O
R

 P
O

W
ER

-D
R

IV
EN

 S
TA

PL
ES

.

ABC

A
1.

6

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S
W

IN
D

O
W

 F
LA

S
H

IN
G

 D
E

TA
IL

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

W
in

do
w

 F
la

sh
in

g 
D

et
ai

ls
1 2

N
ew

 W
es

t E
xt

er
io

r E
le

va
tio

n
1/

4"
 =

 1
'-0

"

N
ew

 E
as

t E
xt

er
io

r E
le

va
tio

n
1/

4"
 =

 1
'-0

"

Page 101 of 124



D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
: 

A
S

T

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 D
A

T
E

S
:

S
H

E
E

T

T
H

E
 

U
S

E
 

O
F

 
T

H
E

S
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

IS
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 

T
O

 
T

H
E

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
S

IT
E

 
F

O
R

 
W

H
IC

H
 

T
H

E
Y

 
W

E
R

E
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
F

 I
S

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
L

Y
 L

IM
IT

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

C
H

 U
S

E
. 

R
E

U
S

E
,

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

R
 P

U
B

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 A
N

Y
M

E
T

H
O

D
 

IN
 

W
H

O
L

E
 

O
R

 
IN

 
P

A
R

T
 

IS
P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D
. 

 
T

IT
L

E
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
W

IT
H

 
T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
O

R
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
 

A
N

D
 

V
IS

U
A

L
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

W
IT

H
 

T
H

E
M

 
C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
P

R
IM

A
 

F
A

C
IE

 
E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 
O

F
 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

IO
N

S
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

 &
 R

e
m

o
d

e
l

F
o

r
:

1
2

5
6

 S
u

r
f
 A

v
e
n

u
e

P
a
c
if

ic
 G

r
o

v
e
, 
C

a
l
if

o
r

n
ia

A
.P

.N
.:
 0

0
6

-0
1

1
-0

0
7

W
a
l
d

R
e
s
id

e
n

c
e

A
S

T
D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
9

5
7

 A
n

g
e
l
u

s
 W

a
y

D
e
l
 R

e
y
 O

a
k
s
, 

C
A

 9
3

9
4

0
P

h
o

n
e
: 

(8
3

1
) 

5
7

8
-3

4
5

0

A
a
r

o
n

 S
. 

T
o

l
l
e
f
s
o

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

(E
)

(E
)

1'
-6

"

2'-0"1'-6"

2'
-6

"

2'-6"2'-6"

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

2'-6" 2'-6"

2'
-6

"

(E) RIDGE(E) RIDGE(E) RIDGE

(N
) R

ID
G

E

(N) RIDGE

(N
) V

ALLEY

(N
) V

ALLEY

(N) V
ALLEY

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SLOPE 3:12SLOPE 3:12

SLOPE 3:12

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

SL
O

PE
 4

:1
2

N
EW

 1
80

 S
.F

. B
A

LC
O

N
Y

N
ew

 R
oo

f P
la

n
1/

4"
 =

 1
'-0

"

S
H

O
W

E
R

 A
R

E
A 

W
A

LL
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 F
IN

IS
H

E
D

 W
IT

H
 A

 S
M

O
O

TH
, H

A
R

D
, N

O
N

-A
B

S
O

R
B

A
N

T 
S

U
R

FA
C

E
 T

O
 A

 H
E

IG
H

T 
O

F 
70

" M
IN

. A
B

O
V

E
 T

H
E

D
R

A
IN

 IN
LE

T 
(S

E
C

TI
O

N
 8

07
1.

3,
 C

B
C

).

B
AT

H
R

O
O

M
 F

A
N

S
 T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 5

 A
IR

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 P

E
R

 H
O

U
R

.

G
LA

ZI
N

G
 IN

 A
R

E
A

S
 S

U
B

JE
C

T 
TO

 H
U

M
A

N
 IM

PA
C

T,
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 2

4"
 T

O
 D

O
O

R
S

 A
N

D
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 1

8"
 F

LO
O

R
 T

O
 W

IN
D

O
W

, S
H

A
LL

 B
E

S
A

FE
TY

 G
LA

ZI
N

G
 M

AT
E

R
IA

L 
S

U
C

H
 A

S
 W

IR
E

D
 G

LA
S

S
, L

A
M

IN
AT

E
D

 G
LA

S
S

, T
E

M
P

E
R

E
D

 G
LA

S
S

 O
R

 S
A

FE
TY

 P
LA

S
TI

C
.  

G
LA

ZI
N

G
 U

S
E

D
 IN

-
D

O
O

R
S

 A
N

D
 P

A
N

E
LS

 O
F 

S
H

O
W

E
R

S
 A

N
D

 T
U

B
 E

N
C

LO
S

U
R

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 F
U

LL
Y 

TE
M

P
E

R
E

D
 G

LA
S

S
.

D
R

Y
E

R
 T

O
 B

E
 V

E
N

TE
D

 T
O

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 W
IT

H
 4

"0
 D

U
C

T 
LI

N
E

.
(1

4"
-0

" M
A

X
IM

U
M

 R
U

N
)

P
R

O
V

ID
E

 A
 N

O
N

-R
E

M
O

VA
B

LE
 B

A
C

K
FL

O
W

 P
R

E
V

E
N

TI
O

N
 D

E
V

IC
E

 A
T 

H
O

S
E

-B
IB

S
.

W
IN

D
O

W
S

 IN
 S

LE
E

P
IN

G
 R

O
O

M
S

 S
H

A
LL

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

:

M
IN

IM
U

M
 N

E
T 

C
LE

A
R

 O
P

E
N

A
B

LE
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 O
F 

5.
7 

S
.F

. I
N

 A
R

E
A

M
IN

IM
U

M
 N

E
T 

C
LE

A
R

 O
P

E
N

A
B

LE
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 O
F 

24
 IN

C
H

E
S

 IN
 H

E
IG

H
T

M
IN

IM
U

M
 N

E
T 

C
LE

A
R

 O
P

E
N

A
B

LE
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 O
F 

20
 IN

C
H

E
S

 IN
 W

ID
TH

O
P

E
N

IN
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 T
H

E
 B

O
TT

O
M

 O
F 

TH
E

 C
LE

A
R

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

 N
O

T 
G

R
E

AT
E

R
 T

H
A

N
 4

4"
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 F
LO

O
R

TH
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 N

AT
U

R
A

L 
LI

G
H

T 
FO

R
 E

V
E

R
Y 

S
PA

C
E

 IN
TE

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

 O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
Y 

W
IT

H
 G

LA
ZE

D
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 A

R
E

A 
O

F
N

O
T 

LE
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 8

%
 O

F 
R

O
O

M
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
E

A
. (

C
B

C
 1

20
5.

2)

TH
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 N

AT
U

R
A

L 
V

E
N

TI
LA

TI
O

N
 IN

 O
C

C
U

P
IE

D
 S

PA
C

E
S

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 O

P
E

N
A

B
LE

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 W
A

LL
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 A

R
E

A 
N

O
T

LE
S

S
 T

H
A

N
 4

%
 O

F 
TH

E
 A

R
E

A 
B

E
IN

G
 V

E
N

TI
LA

TE
D

. (
C

B
C

 1
20

4.
1)

U
S

E
 IN

D
IV

ID
U

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

VA
LV

E
S

 O
F 

TH
E

 P
R

E
S

S
U

R
E

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 O
R

 T
H

E
 T

H
E

R
M

O
S

TA
TI

C
 M

IX
IN

G
 T

Y
P

E
 A

T 
TH

E
 S

H
O

W
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 T

U
B

-
S

H
O

W
E

R
 C

O
M

B
IN

AT
IO

N
.

S
M

O
K

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 S

O
U

N
D

 A
N

D
 A

LA
R

M
 A

U
D

IB
LE

 IN
 A

LL
 B

E
D

R
O

O
M

S
 O

F 
TH

E
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E
.

S
M

O
K

E
 D

E
TE

C
TO

R
S

 S
H

A
LL

 R
E

C
E

IV
E

 T
H

E
IR

 P
O

W
E

R
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 H
O

U
S

E
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
W

IR
E

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 A

LS
O

 H
AV

E
 B

AT
TE

R
Y 

B
A

C
K

-U
P.

IN
S

TA
LL

 U
FE

R
 G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 2

00
 A

M
P 

E
LE

C
TR

IC
A

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

E
R

 N
E

C
 2

50
-5

0(
c)

.

K
IT

C
H

E
N

 C
O

U
N

TE
R

 O
U

TL
E

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 S

PA
C

E
D

 S
O

 T
H

AT
 N

O
 P

O
IN

T 
A

LO
N

G
 T

H
E

 W
A

LL
 L

IN
E

 O
F 

TH
E

 C
O

U
N

TE
R

 IS
 M

O
R

E
 T

H
A

N
 2

'-0
"

FR
O

M
 A

N
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

O
U

TL
E

T.

TH
E

 M
A

S
TE

R
 B

AT
H

R
O

O
M

 O
U

TL
E

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
A

U
LT

 C
IR

C
U

IT
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
.

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 O
U

TL
E

TS
 (W

P
/G

FC
I) 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 A
T 

TH
E

 F
R

O
N

T 
A

N
D

 R
E

A
R

 O
F 

TH
E

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

.

AT
 L

E
A

S
T 

O
N

E
 2

0-
A

M
P 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 C
IR

C
U

IT
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

P
P

LY
 B

AT
H

R
O

O
M

 R
E

C
E

P
TA

C
LE

 O
U

TL
E

TS
, O

TH
E

R
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
(L

IG
H

TI
N

G
, E

X
H

A
U

S
T 

FA
N

S
), 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E
 S

A
M

E
 B

AT
H

R
O

O
M

, M
AY

 B
E

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 S

A
M

E
 B

R
A

N
C

H
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 W
H

E
R

E
 T

H
E

 B
R

A
N

C
H

C
IR

C
U

IT
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

 A
 S

IN
G

LE
 B

AT
H

R
O

O
M

 O
N

LY
.

AT
 L

E
A

S
T 

O
N

E
 2

0-
A

M
P 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 C
IR

C
U

IT
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 T
O

 S
U

P
P

LY
 L

A
U

N
D

R
Y 

R
E

C
E

P
TA

C
LE

 O
U

TL
E

TS
.

C
LO

TH
E

S
 D

R
Y

E
R

 A
N

D
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 R
A

N
G

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 H
AV

E
 A

 4
-W

IR
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

E
D

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
A

L 
O

U
TL

E
T.

P
R

O
V

ID
E

 W
E

E
P 

S
C

R
E

E
D

S
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

E
R

IM
E

TE
R

 O
F 

R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

 W
H

E
R

E
 C

E
M

E
N

T 
P

LA
S

TE
R

 F
IN

IS
H

 O
C

C
U

R
S

.  
P

R
O

V
ID

E
 4

" C
LE

A
R

A
B

O
V

E
 E

A
R

TH
 A

N
D

 2
" C

LE
A

R
 A

B
O

V
E

 P
AV

E
D

 A
R

E
A

S
.

A
LL

 W
AT

E
R

 C
LO

S
E

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 H

AV
E

 A
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
 F

LU
S

H
 V

O
LU

M
E

 O
F 

1.
28

 G
A

LL
O

N
S

, A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
 M

E
E

T 
O

R
 E

X
C

E
E

D
 T

H
E

 M
IN

IM
U

M
P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 C

R
IT

E
R

IA
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
E

D
 F

O
R

 C
E

R
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
H

IG
H

-E
FF

IC
IE

N
C

Y 
TO

IL
E

TS
 U

N
D

E
R

 T
H

E
 W

AT
E

R
 S

E
N

S
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
A

D
O

P
TE

D
 B

Y 
TH

E
 E

PA
.

P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 F
IX

TU
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 F

IT
TI

N
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 M

E
E

T 
TH

E
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S
 R

E
FE

R
E

N
C

E
D

 IN
 C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

N
 4

.3
03

.3
W

AT
ER

 C
LO

SE
TS

 
 

= 
1.

28
 G

P
F

SH
O

W
ER

H
EA

D
S 

 
= 

M
A

X
. 2

.0
 G

P
M

 @
 8

0 
P

S
I

M
U

LT
IP

LE
 S

H
O

W
ER

H
EA

D
S 

= 
2.

0 
G

P
M

 @
 8

0 
P

S
I C

O
M

B
IN

E
D

LA
VA

TO
R

IE
S 

FA
U

C
ET

S 
 

= 
M

A
X

. 1
.2

 G
P

M
 @

 6
0 

P
S

I
K

IT
C

H
EN

 F
A

U
C

ET
S 

 
= 

M
A

X
. 1

.8
 G

P
M

 @
 6

0 
P

S
I

IN
 A

U
TO

M
AT

IC
 IR

R
IG

AT
IO

N
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 C
O

N
TR

O
LL

E
R

S
 F

O
R

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

 A
R

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 B
U

IL
D

E
R

 A
N

D
 IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 A

T 
TH

E
 T

IM
E

O
F 

FI
N

A
L 

IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

, T
H

E
Y 

S
H

A
LL

 C
O

M
P

LY
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 O

F 
C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.3

04
.1

M
IN

IM
U

M
 5

0%
 O

F 
TH

E
 N

O
N

-H
A

ZA
R

D
O

U
S

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 O
R

 D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 D
E

B
R

IS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
C

Y
C

LE
D

 A
N

D
/O

R
 S

A
LV

A
G

E
D

, U
N

LE
S

S
A 

LO
C

A
L 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 W

A
S

TE
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 IN

 M
O

R
E

 S
TR

IN
G

E
N

T.
  W

H
E

R
E

 T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
L

JU
R

IS
D

IC
TI

O
N

 D
O

E
S

 N
O

T 
H

AV
E

 A
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
TE

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

, A
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
TE

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

P
LA

N
 C

O
M

P
LY

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.4

08
.2

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 S
U

B
M

IT
TE

D
 F

O
R

 A
P

P
R

O
VA

L

AT
 T

H
E

 T
IM

E
 O

F 
FI

N
A

L 
IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
, A

N
 "O

P
E

R
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

N
U

A
L"

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
LA

C
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 T

H
AT

C
O

N
TA

IN
S

 T
H

E
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
B

LE
 IT

E
M

S
 L

IS
TE

D
 IN

 C
G

B
S

C
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.4
10

.1
.

IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 G
A

S
 F

IR
E

P
LA

C
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 D

IR
E

C
T-

V
E

N
T 

S
E

A
LE

D
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

O
N

 T
Y

P
E

 (C
G

B
S

C
 4

.5
03

.1
)

D
U

C
TS

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 R

E
LA

TE
D

 A
IR

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

S
H

A
LL

 H
AV

E
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 W

IT
H

 T
A

P
E

, P
LA

S
TI

C
, S

H
E

E
T 

M
E

TA
L

O
R

 O
TH

E
R

 A
C

C
E

P
TA

B
LE

 M
E

TH
O

D
S

. (
C

G
B

S
C

 4
.5

04
.1

)

FI
N

IS
H

 M
AT

E
R

IA
LS

, C
A

R
P

E
T 

S
Y

S
TE

M
S

, R
E

S
IL

IE
N

T 
FL

O
O

R
IN

G
, A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 W
O

O
D

 P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
M

P
LY

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

P
O

LL
U

TA
N

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 O

F 
C

G
B

S
C

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 4
.5

04
.2

 A
N

D
 4

.5
04

.3
.

C
A

R
P

E
T 

A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 5
0 

(V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
C

A
R

P
E

T 
PA

D
 A

D
H

E
S

IV
E

 =
 5

0 
(V

O
C

 L
IM

IT
)

W
O

O
D

 F
LO

O
R

IN
G

 A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 1
00

 (V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
S

U
B

FL
O

O
R

 A
D

H
E

S
IV

E
 =

 5
0 

(V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

)
D

R
Y

W
A

LL
 A

D
H

E
S

IV
E

 =
 5

0 
(V

O
C

 L
IM

IT
)

M
O

IS
TU

R
E

 C
O

N
TE

N
T 

O
F 

W
A

LL
 A

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 F
R

A
M

IN
G

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 V

E
R

IF
IE

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 E

N
C

LO
S

U
R

E
, F

R
A

M
IN

G
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
 E

N
C

LO
S

E
D

 W
H

E
N

 M
O

IS
TU

R
E

 C
O

N
TE

N
T 

E
X

C
E

E
D

S
 1

9%
 (C

G
B

S
C

 4
.5

05
.3

)

B
AT

H
R

O
O

M
 E

XH
A

U
ST

 F
A

N
S 

SH
A

LL
 C

O
M

PL
Y 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

:
E

N
E

R
G

Y 
S

TA
R

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
T 

A
N

D
 B

E
 D

U
C

TE
D

 T
O

 T
E

R
M

IN
AT

E
 O

U
TS

ID
E

 O
F 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

.  
U

N
LE

S
S

 F
U

N
C

TI
O

N
IN

G
 A

S
 A

 P
A

R
T 

O
F 

A 
W

H
O

LE
H

O
U

S
E

 V
E

N
TI

LA
TI

O
N

 S
Y

S
TE

M
, F

A
N

S
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
 C

O
N

TR
O

LL
E

D
 B

Y 
A 

H
U

M
ID

IS
TA

T 
W

H
IC

H
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 R

E
A

D
IL

Y 
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

LE
.  

H
U

M
ID

IS
TA

T
C

O
N

TR
O

LS
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

A
PA

B
LE

 O
F 

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
T 

B
E

TW
E

E
N

 A
 R

E
LA

TI
V

E
 H

U
M

ID
IT

Y 
R

A
N

G
E

 O
F 

50
-8

0%
.

D
U

C
T 

S
Y

S
TE

M
S

 A
R

E
 S

IZ
E

D
, D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T 
IS

 S
E

LE
C

TE
D

 P
E

R
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.5
07

.2
.  

H
VA

C
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 IN
S

TA
LL

E
R

S
 M

U
S

T 
B

E
TR

A
IN

E
D

 A
N

D
 C

E
R

TI
FI

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

P
E

C
IA

L 
IN

S
P

E
C

TO
R

S
 E

M
P

LO
Y

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 E
N

FO
R

C
IN

G
 A

G
E

N
C

Y 
M

U
S

T 
B

E
 Q

U
A

LI
FI

E
D

.

P
R

O
TE

C
T 

A
N

N
U

LA
R

 S
PA

C
E

S
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
E

S
, E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

C
A

B
LE

S
, C

O
N

D
U

IT
S

 O
R

 O
TH

E
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 A
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 W
A

LL
S

 A
G

A
IN

S
T

TH
E

 P
A

S
S

A
G

E
 O

F 
R

O
D

E
N

TS
 (4

.4
06

.1
).

C
O

V
E

R
 D

U
C

T 
O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 R

E
LA

TE
D

 A
IR

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T 
O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 (4

.5
04

.1
).

PA
IN

T,
 S

TA
IN

S
 A

N
D

 O
TH

E
R

 C
O

AT
IN

G
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
 C

O
M

P
LI

A
N

T 
W

IT
H

 V
O

C
 L

IM
IT

S
 (4

.5
04

.2
.2

).

A
E

R
O

S
O

L 
PA

IN
TS

 A
N

D
 C

O
AT

IN
G

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
T 

W
IT

H
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T 

W
E

IG
H

TE
D

 M
IR

 L
IM

IT
S

 F
O

R
 R

O
C

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 T

O
X

IC
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
S

 (4
.5

04
.2

.3
). 

 V
E

R
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

.

M
IN

IM
U

M
 8

0%
 O

F 
FL

O
O

R
 A

R
E

A 
R

E
C

E
IV

IN
G

 R
E

S
IL

IE
N

T 
FL

O
O

R
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
M

P
LY

 W
IT

H
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 4

.5
04

.4
.

PA
R

TI
C

LE
B

O
A

R
D

, M
E

D
IU

M
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y 
FI

B
E

R
B

O
A

R
D

 (M
D

F)
 A

N
D

 H
A

R
D

W
O

O
D

 P
LY

W
O

O
D

 U
S

E
D

 IN
 IN

TE
R

IO
R

 F
IN

IS
H

 S
Y

S
TE

M
S

 S
H

A
LL

C
O

M
P

LY
 W

IT
H

 L
O

W
 F

O
R

M
A

LD
E

H
Y

D
E

 E
M

IS
S

IO
N

S
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S
 (4

.5
04

.5
).

IN
S

TA
LL

 C
A

P
IL

LA
R

Y 
B

R
E

A
K

 A
N

D
 V

A
P

O
R

 R
E

TA
R

D
E

R
 A

T 
S

LA
B

 O
N

 G
R

A
D

E
 F

O
U

N
D

AT
IO

N
S

 (4
.5

05
.2

).

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10
.

11
.

12
.

13
.

14
.

15
.

16
.

17
.

18
.N
O

TE
S:

G
R

EE
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
:

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10
.

11
.

12
.

13
.

14
.

15
.

16
.

17
.

18
.

19
.

A
1.

7

R
O

O
F 

P
LA

N
FL

O
O

R
 P

LA
N

 N
O

TE
S

A
pr

il 
28

, 2
02

0

Page 102 of 124



Agenda No. 6 E 

CITY OF PACIFIC GROVE
300 Forest Avenue, Pacific Grove, California 93950

TO: Chair Boyle and Members of the Architectural Review Board
FROM: Alex Othon, Assistant Planner
MEETING DATE: 08/11/2020
SUBJECT: Sign Permit (SP) No. 20-0040 for 1140 Forest Avenue (APN 007-641-008)
CEQA: Categorical Exemption, CEQA Guidelines Section 15311, Class 11, Accessory

Structures

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Architectural Review Board approve Sign Permit (SP) 20-0040 subject to findings,
a Class 11 CEQA exemption, and conditions of approval, with the additional condition: " Compliance
with PGMC 20.04.050: Proposed sign No. 1 shall be limited to a change of copy, with no digital display
added. Proposed sign Nos. 3, 4, 5, 7, and the proposed pump signage shall be removed in order to comply
with the size and location standards set out in PGMC 20.04.050."

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Sign Permit (SP) Application #20-0040 to allow for the refacing of three (3) existing signs and the
installation of eight (8) new signs, to read "Valero" to be installed in various locations around the property.

BACKGROUND
On January 27, 2020, Sign Development, Inc applied for a Sign Permit to allow three (3) sign face
changes and to install eight (8) new signs for a proposed rebranding of an existing gas station, currently
operated by 89, to read “Valero”.

DISCUSSION
Municipal Code
The Pacific Grove Municipal Code (PGMC) §20.04.050 allows for signs and their support structures to be
designed to respond to building architecture and setting, with a Sign Permit. The code further states
in §20.04.060 that signs designed in excess of standards may be reviewed and approved by the
Architectural Review Board if the Board finds that the sign is of unique design and provides an
aesthetically beneficial impact that could not be obtained through strict adherence to the code. In its
current design, Staff does not recommend that the ARB make these findings for the reasons detailed
below. 
 
PGMC Section 20.04.050 regulates the allowed amount of signage as well as placement. Under this title
the following signage is allowed:  

One primary sign per individual business. (PGMC 20.04.050 (b)) 
Allowed size (PGMC 20.04.050 (c)) : 

Page 103 of 124



One square foot for each lineal foot of primary business frontage.
One half square foot for each lineal foot of secondary frontage may be allowed on a
secondary business frontage.
No sign shall exceed 150 square feet. The ARB may restrict sign size to a lesser size
than the maximum.

Placement (PGMC 20.04.050 (c) (1) & (3)) 
Signs mounted on or above the roof of a building or attached to the fascia and
exceeding the height of said fascia shall be discouraged.
Projecting, marquee, awning, and suspended signs shall maintain a minimum eight (8)
foot clearance to grade immediately below.

Freestanding signs. 
Shall not exceed 12 feet in height.

Illuminated Signs 
No illumination is allowed for primary signs.
The area of an illuminated nonprimary sign shall not exceed three square feet.

The submitted plans proposed the following signage: 

Sign #1 – 48 sf – Re-facing of an existing sign, with illuminated displays showing price per gallon
and gas station branding. To read “Valero”. The existing sign is with the 20 ft apex of Forest Ave
and Forest Hill Blvd, making the sign nonconforming per PGMC §23.64.130 (b)(2). Per
PGMC §20.04.130 (b) & (d), Staff recommends this sign be limited to only a change of copy, with
no digital displays added. 
Sign #2 – 18 sf – Re-facing of an existing sign with added illuminated displays showing price per
gallon and gas station branding. To read “Valero”. The current sign is non-conforming due to it’s
height. The applicant proposes to lower the sign to meet the required 12’ height maximum as apart
of this application.
Sign #3 – 143 sf – Proposed new illuminated sign to be installed in conjunction with sign Nos. 4, 5,
& 7 on existing canopy to square canopy. To read “Valero” with illuminated banding.
Sign #4 – 143 sf – Proposed new illuminated sign to be installed in conjunction with sign Nos. 3, 5,
& 7 on existing canopy to square canopy. To match Sign #3.
Sign #5 – 63 sf – Proposed new illuminated sign to be installed in conjunction with Sign Nos. 3, 4,
& 7. Proposed design includes Valero logo and banding with brand colors. The banding is proposed
to be illuminated.
Sign #6 – 34 sf – Re-facing of an existing sign, to read “Auto Care”. To be illuminated.
Sign #7 – 63 sf – Proposed new illuminated sign to be installed in conjunction with sign Nos. 3, 4,
& 5 on existing canopy to square canopy. Proposed design includes banding with brand colors, no
logo or illumination are proposed.
Pump Sign(s) – 37 sf ea. – Proposed addition of banding and signs to read “Valero” on each face of
the four existing pumps. Across all four (4) pumps the total signage amounts to 147.8 sf.

In total, the project proposes approximately 660 sf of new and refaced signage. This exceeds the allowed
standards of PGMC §24.04.050 by 493 sf. This includes the banding & other decals on the canopy and
pumps. While individually each sign complies with the Municipal Code (save Sign #1, detailed above),
when looked at as a whole the application does not comply with the requirements of PGMC §20.040.050. 
 
June 9th ARB Meeting
The ARB met on June 9th to review the project, after discussion the item was continued to the August
meeting agenda to allow the applicant time to gather information on the lumens of the proposed
illuminated signs, as well as to allow Staff to research past signage approvals at gas stations throughout
the City.
 

Page 104 of 124



Per the direction of the ARB, the applicant has resubmitted plans which note each LED module produces
18 lumens. These LED modules are to be placed under the fascia of the proposed canopy.
 
No other changes to the application have been made.

Staff has found the following Sign Permits for gas stations around the City:
 
Chevron Station – 1152 Forest Ave – SP 15-0759
Signs approved: One illuminated 9 sq. ft. sign to read “Extra Mile”.

Staff has also researched existing gas station signage without permit records and found the following:

Shell Station - 1201 Forest Ave - No Permits on Record
1 monument logo/price sign - internally illuminated.

Shell Station - 687 Lighthouse Ave - No Permits on Record
1 monument logo sign - internally illuminated.
1 monument price sign - internally illuminated (LED).
1 wall sign for convenience store - not illuminated. 

Required Findings
Per PGMC 23.70.060(f)(5), the Architectural Review Board shall make the following finding in order to
approve the Sign Permit: “The proposed sign effectively conveys the business identity to the public and
possesses pleasing elements of design that protect and enhance the architectural character and harmony
of the buildings and neighborhood in which it is located.”

Because the proposed signage is in excess of what is allowed under PGMC 20.04.050, Staff recommends
the Architectural Review Board add the following condition in order to comply with the required
standards:

"Compliance with PGMC 20.04.050: Proposed sign No. 1 shall be limited to a change of copy, with no
digital display added. Proposed sign Nos. 3, 4, 5, 7, and the proposed pump signage shall be removed in
order to comply with the size and location standards set out in PGMC 20.04.050."

CEQA
The project includes the proposal of an on-premise sign, and therefore qualifies for a Class 11 Exemption
from CEQA requirements, pursuant to Section 15311(a), Accessory Structures. The proposed alterations
do not present any unusual circumstances that would result in a potentially significant environmental
impact.

Attachments
Application 
Notice of Exemption 
Sign Permit 
Plan Set 

Page 105 of 124



Page 106 of 124



Page 107 of 124



Page 108 of 124



Page 109 of 124



Page 110 of 124



Page 111 of 124



Page 112 of 124



1
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 
C

A
 9

3
9
5
0

N

F
O

R
E

S
T

 H
IL

L
 B

LV
D

.

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1/
32

’’
=

 1
’-

0’
’

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 

FOREST AVE.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E

C
A

N
O

P
Y

47
’-

 9
”

21’- 0”

32
’-

 9
”

62’- 1”

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 113 of 124



2
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
/F

 P
R

IC
E

/I
D

 S
IG

N

R
E

L
A

M
P

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 T
E

S
T

.
R

E
F

A
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 D

/F
 P

R
IC

E
/I

D
 S

IG
N

48
.3

9 
sq

.f
t

S
C

A
L

E
: 

3/
8’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’

5’
- 

1”

9’- 6 1/4”

7’ - 0”

PA
IN

T
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
C

A
B

IN
E

T
, 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

R
S

,
A

N
D

 P
O

L
E

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 

V
A

L
E

R
O

 L
IG

H
T

 G
R

A
Y

8”
 L

E
D

P
R

IC
E

 D
IG

IT

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

X
4-

9-
20

, 
F

L
E

E
T

 S
IG

N
N

O
T

 A
L

L
O

W
E

D
 B

Y
 C

IT
Y

.

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 114 of 124



3
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
/F

 P
R

IC
E

/I
D

 S
IG

N

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

36
 1

/2
’’

  

73’’  

8”
 L

E
D

P
R

IC
E

 D
IG

IT

R
E

L
A

M
P

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 T
E

S
T

.
R

E
F

A
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 D

/F
 P

R
IC

E
/I

D
 S

IG
N

18
.5

0 
sq

.f
t

S
C

A
L

E
: 

3/
8’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’

PA
IN

T
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
C

A
B

IN
E

T
, 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

R
S

,
A

N
D

 L
IG

H
T

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 
V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

IG
H

T
 G

R
A

Y

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

144’’  

168’’  

L
O

W
E

R
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 

F
R

O
M

 1
4’

-0
” 

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 H

E
IG

H
T

T
O

 1
2’

-0
” 

F
R

O
M

 G
R

A
D

E
.

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 115 of 124



4
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

3
6
’’

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
  

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1
/8

’’=
1
’-
0
’’

47
’-

9’
’

3
6
’’

S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
  

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1
/8

’’=
1
’-
0
’’

47
’-

9’
’

2’-
0”

PR
E-

FA
B

CO
RN

ER
PA

NE
L

N
O

T
E

S
: 

PA
IN

T
 A

L
L

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

M
P

E
R

 P
O

L
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
O

L
L

A
R

D
S

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 B
L

U
E

 .
PA

IN
T

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 C
O

L
U

M
N

S
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

IG
H

T
 G

R
A

Y
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 I
S

L
A

N
D

 C
U

R
B

S
 (

F
A

C
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
) 

V
A

L
E

R
O

 D
A

R
K

 G
R

A
Y

.
R

E
M

O
V

E
 A

N
Y

 A
D

 S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 B

A
N

N
E

R
S

 O
N

 B
U

M
P

E
R

 P
O

L
E

S
 O

R
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

O
L

U
M

N
S

.
R

E
M

O
V

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

S
H

 A
N

D
 W

A
S

H
 C

A
D

D
IE

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

S
T

A
L

L
 N

E
W

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 T
R

A
S

H
 C

A
D

D
IE

S
.

IL
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

E
D

W
O

R
D

 M
A

R
K

 S
IG

N

IL
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

E
D

W
O

R
D

 M
A

R
K

 S
IG

N

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

A
N

O
P

Y
 T

O
 3

6”

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

.

IN
S

T
A

L
L

 N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

, 
U

S
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
S

.

IN
S

T
A

L
L

E
R

 T
O

 S
E

A
L

 A
L

L
 

N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

IN
S

T
A

L
L

 N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

, 
U

S
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
S

.

IN
S

T
A

L
L

E
R

 T
O

 S
E

A
L

 A
L

L
 

N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

W
A

S
H

, 
P

R
E

P,
 P

R
IM

E
 &

PA
IN

T
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

E
IL

IN
G

W
A

S
H

, 
P

R
E

P,
 P

R
IM

E
 &

PA
IN

T
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

E
IL

IN
G

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 116 of 124



5
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 E
A

S
T

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

N
O

T
E

S
: 

PA
IN

T
 A

L
L

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

M
P

E
R

 P
O

L
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
O

L
L

A
R

D
S

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 B
L

U
E

 .
PA

IN
T

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 C
O

L
U

M
N

S
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

IG
H

T
 G

R
A

Y
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 I
S

L
A

N
D

 C
U

R
B

S
 (

F
A

C
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
) 

V
A

L
E

R
O

 D
A

R
K

 G
R

A
Y

.
R

E
M

O
V

E
 A

N
Y

 A
D

 S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 B

A
N

N
E

R
S

 O
N

 B
U

M
P

E
R

 P
O

L
E

S
 O

R
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

O
L

U
M

N
S

.
R

E
M

O
V

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

S
H

 A
N

D
 W

A
S

H
 C

A
D

D
IE

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

S
T

A
L

L
 N

E
W

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 T
R

A
S

H
 C

A
D

D
IE

S
.

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

A
N

O
P

Y
 T

O
 3

6”

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

.

36”

IL
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
V

A
L

E
R

O
L

O
G

O

21
’-

0’
’

21
’-

0’
’

IN
S

T
A

L
L

 N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

, 
U

S
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
S

.

IN
S

T
A

L
L

E
R

 T
O

 S
E

A
L

 A
L

L
 

N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

IN
S

T
A

L
L

 N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

, 
U

S
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
S

.

IN
S

T
A

L
L

E
R

 T
O

 S
E

A
L

 A
L

L
 

N
E

W
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

W
A

S
H

, 
P

R
E

P,
 P

R
IM

E
 &

PA
IN

T
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

E
IL

IN
G

W
A

S
H

, 
P

R
E

P,
 P

R
IM

E
 &

PA
IN

T
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 C

E
IL

IN
G

7’
-0

’’

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 117 of 124



6
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 E
A

S
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

N
O

T
E

S
: 

R
E

M
O

V
E

 A
N

D
 D

IS
P

O
S

E
 O

F
 A

L
L

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 A
D

 P
A

N
E

L
S

, B
A

N
N

E
R

S
  A

N
D

 W
IN

D
O

W
 D

E
C

A
L

S
 

PA
IN

T
 F

R
O

N
T

 A
N

D
 T

W
O

 (
2)

 S
ID

E
S

 O
F

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 S

A
N

D
 S

T
O

N
E

 (
D

O
 N

O
T

 P
A

IN
T

 B
A

C
K

) 
PA

IN
T

 F
R

O
N

T
 A

N
D

 T
W

O
 (

2)
 S

ID
E

S
 O

F
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 T

R
IM

 S
W

 7
71

8 
O

A
K

 C
R

E
E

K
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
T

O
N

E
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 S

A
N

D
.

PA
IN

T
 A

L
L

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

M
P

E
R

 P
O

L
E

S
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 B

L
U

E
PA

IN
T

 A
L

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 C
U

R
B

S
 (

FA
C

E
S

 O
N

L
Y

) 
V

A
L

E
R

O
 D

A
R

K
 G

R
A

Y
.

R
E

FA
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

IG
N

.

35
’-

 0
”

V
E

R
IF

Y

62
’-

 1
”

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 N
O

R
T

H
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1/
8’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’
E

A
S

T
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1/
8’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’
N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

15
’-

 6
”

2’- 2 3/4”

S
C

A
L

E
: 

1/
4’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’

R
E

L
A

M
P

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 A
N

D
 T

E
S

T
R

E
F

A
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 S

/F
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

IG
N

. 
M

O
L

D
E

D
 F

A
C

E
, 2

nd
 S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 V
IN

Y
L

 D
E

C
O

R
A

T
IO

N
.

34
.5

5 
sq

.f
t.

N
O

 T
O

U
C

H
 R

O
O

F. P
A

IN
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
B

A
Y

 D
O

O
R

S
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 S

A
N

D
.

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

S
D

I 
T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 N

E
W

 R
E

T
A

IN
E

R
S

T
O

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
 M

IS
S

IN
G

.

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 118 of 124



7
 O

F
 1

2

0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

PA
IN

T
 B

U
M

P
E

R
 P

O
L

E
S

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 B
L

U
E

.
PA

IN
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 G

U
A

R
D

 R
A

IL
S

V
A

L
E

R
O

 L
IG

H
T

 G
R

A
Y

.

R
E

M
O

V
E

 A
L

L
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 A

D
 S

IG
N

S
 A

N
D

 A
D

 F
R

A
M

E
S

F
R

O
M

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 C
O

L
U

M
N

S
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 T
R

A
S

H
 E

N
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

V
A

L
E

R
O

 S
A

N
D

.
PA

IN
T

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 T

R
A

S
H

 E
N

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
 

D
O

O
R

S
 V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

IG
H

T
 G

R
A

Y
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 L
IG

H
T

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
V

A
L

E
R

O
 L

IG
H

T
 G

R
A

Y
.

N
O

 T
O

U
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 A

IR
 &

 W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
.

PA
IN

T
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 P
A

IN
T

E
D

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 C
U

R
B

S
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 Y

E
L

L
O

W
.

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 119 of 124



0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 D

E
C

A
L

S
A

N
D

 L
O

G
O

 O
N

 B
O

N
N

E
T

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
IS

P
E

N
S

E
R

F
O

R
E

S
T

 H
IL

L
 B

LV
D

.

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 

FOREST AVE.

C
A

N
O

P
Y

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 D

E
C

A
L

S
A

N
D

 L
O

G
O

 O
N

 B
O

N
N

E
T

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

N
E

W
 D

IS
P

E
N

S
E

R
S

 T
O

 B
E

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 I

M
A

G
E

D

T
Y

P
IC

A
L

 V
A

L
E

R
O

 D
IS

P
E

N
S

E
R

 F
O

R
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
D

I 
T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

N
D

 I
N

S
T

A
L

L
 B

O
N

N
E

T
S

, A
N

D
 W

A
R

N
IN

G
 D

E
C

A
L

S
 O

N
L

Y

P
U

M
P

 T
O

P
P

E
R

A
D

 F
R

A
M

E

 

 

 

58"

U
S

E
 T

E
M

P
L

A
T

E
P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 F
O

R
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
IS

P
E

N
S

E
R

S

20
.8

8 
S

F

0.
31

 s
q.

ft
. x

 8
ea

.

35
 3

/4
”

7 /12”

1.
86

 s
q.

 f
t. 

x 
8e

a.

14
 1

/2
”

3”

14
”

11  1/2”

0.
88

 s
q.

 f
t. 

x 
4e

a.

61
 1

/2
”

29”

36
 1

/2
”

24 3/8”

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

8
 O

F
 1

2

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 120 of 124



0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

C
H

A
N

G
E

A
B

L
E

 L
E

D
 N

U
M

E
R

A
L

S
:

A
M

B
E

R
 L

E
D

 N
U

M
E

R
A

L
S

B
L

A
C

K
 B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

R
E

L
A

M
P

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 T
E

S
T

.
R

E
F

A
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 D

/F
 P

R
IC

E
/I

D
 S

IG
N

48
.3

9 
sq

.f
t

S
C

A
L

E
: 

3/
8’

’=
 1

’-
0’

’

5’
- 

1”

9’- 6 1/4”

7’ - 0”

8”
 L

E
D

P
R

IC
E

 D
IG

IT

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

36
 1

/2
’’

  

73’’  

8”
 L

E
D

P
R

IC
E

 D
IG

IT

R
E

L
A

M
P

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 T
E

S
T

.
R

E
F

A
C

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 D

/F
 P

R
IC

E
/I

D
 S

IG
N

18
.5

0 
sq

.f
t

S
C

A
L

E
: 

3
/8

’’
=

 1
’-

0
’’

144’’  

168’’  

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

9
 O

F
 1

2

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 121 of 124



0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

A
C

M
  F

A
S

C
IA

 W
IT

H
 I

L
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 C

O
P

Y

.0
50

” 
W

H
IT

E
 A

L
U

M
IN

U
M

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S 

.0
50

” 
 A

L
U

M
IN

U
M

 B
A

C
K

S 

L
E

D
s 

PE
R

 V
A

L
E

R
O

SP
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

A
PP

R
O

V
E

D
 S

U
PP

L
IE

R

PO
W

E
R

 S
U

PP
LY

D
IS

C
O

N
N

E
C

T 
SW

IT
C

H

PR
IM

A
R

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

WALL OR FASCIA

W
A

L
L

 A
N

C
H

O
R

S
O

R
 O

R
#
1
2
 T

E
C

 S
C

R
E

W
S

 x
 1

” 
L

O
N

G
(T

Y
P.

 4
 T

O
 6

 P
E

R
 L

O
G

O
/L

E
T

T
E

R
)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

P
O

L
Y

C
A

R
B

 C
L

O
U

D
 S

IG
N

IL
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
 O

U
T

L
IN

E
A

R
O

U
N

D
 L

E
T

T
E

R
S

 O
N

 F
A

C
E

W
IT

H
 I

L
L

U
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
R

E
T

U
R

N
S

1
 3

/8
’’

 x
 3

 1
/4

’’
 1

6
 G

A
 G

al
v.

 
S

te
el

 A
ng

le

1
 3

/8
’’

 x
 3

 1
/4

’’
 1

6
 G

A
 G

al
v.

 S
te

el
 A

n
gl

e

#
 1

2
 x

 1
" 

H
E
X

 W
A

S
H

E
R

 
H

E
A

D
D

R
IL

L 
&

 T
A

P
 S

M
S
 

(3
’-

0
” 

T
O

 4
’-

0
” 

 O
.C

 -
 A

T
T
A

C
H

E
D

 
T
O

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 B

R
A

C
E
S
)

NEW ACM PANEL

#
1

2
 X

 3
/4

’’
 T

E
K

 S
C

R
E

W
S

(4
 T

O
P
, 
4
 B

O
T

T
O

M
, 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 8

 
P

E
R

 1
0

' 
P

A
N

E
L

)

W
O

R
D

M
A

R
K

 &
 L

O
G

O
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
  L

E
D

  I
L

L
U

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

2
’-
9

”

3
’-
6

”

4
’-
0

”

2’- 9’’  

11
’-
 7

’’ 
 

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

1
0

 O
F

 1
2

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 122 of 124



0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

E
Y

E
B

R
O

W
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 V

IE
W

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

  L
E

D
 I

L
L

U
M

IN
A

T
IO

N

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

1
1

 O
F

 1
2

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 123 of 124



0
1

.0
6

.2
0

S
M

11
4
0
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 A

V
E

.
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
R

O
V

E
, 

C
A

 9
3
9
5
0

0
1

.1
6

.2
0

S
M

0
1

.2
7

.2
0

B
A

0
4

.0
9

.2
0

S
M

0
5

.1
8

.2
0

S
M

E
Y

E
B

R
O

W
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 V

IE
W

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 -
 S

H
IE

L
D

E
D

 L
E

D
 I

L
L

U
M

IN
A

T
IO

N

18
 L

U
M

E
N

S
 P

E
R

 M
O

D
U

L
E

18
 L

U
M

E
N

S
 

P
E

R
 M

O
D

U
L

E

C
U

R
V

E
D

A
C

M
 F

A
S

C
IA

N
IG

H
T

S
H

O
T

1
2

 O
F

 1
2

0
7

.2
0

.2
0

G
O

Page 124 of 124


	Agenda
	AI_826_Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0302 for 528 Beaumont Ave. (APN 006-686-007)
	       ATT_Application _ Project Data Sheet
	       ATT_Draft Permit
	       ATT_Notice of Exemption
	       ATT_Phase II Historic Assessment
	       ATT_Plan Set
	AI_827_Architectural Permit (AP) 20-0236 for 1031 Shell Avenue (APN: 006-026-016)
	       ATT_Application
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Notice of Exemption
	       ATT_Plans
	hadlock plan 2 planning-A-1.pdf
	hadlock plan 2 planning-A-2.pdf
	hadlock plan 2 planning-A-3.pdf
	hadlock plan 2 planning-A-4.pdf

	AI_828_Architectural Permit (AP) and Tree permit with Development (TPD) No. 20-0169 for 415 11th Street 
	       ATT_application
	       ATT_data sheet
	       ATT_AP draft
	       ATT_CEQA
	       ATT_Arborist Report
	Tree Survey Report - 415 11th Street
	Site Description

	Plans for 11th11th Street Residence_A 8x11

	       ATT_Plans
	       ATT_WWL
	AI_829_Architectural Permit (AP)  No. 20-0213 for 1256 Surf Avenue (APN 006-011-007)
	       ATT_application
	       ATT_data sheet
	       ATT_AP draft
	       ATT_CEQA
	       ATT_Plans
	AI_818_Sign Permit (SP) 20-0040 for 1140 Forest Ave (APN 007-641-008)
	       ATT_Application
	       ATT_Notice of Exemption
	       ATT_Sign Permit
	       ATT_Plan Set
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12

	Blank Page



